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CHINA SOUTH dTY Shenzhen
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Marketing campaign at outlet center, CSC Shenzhen
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CSC Shenzhen in operation
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Birdview — CSC Shenzhen
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CHINA SOUTH CITY Nanchang
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First Jiangxi Provincial Commodities Fair held at
CSC Nanchang
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Record—breaking Ride at CSC Nanchang
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Birdview — CSC Nanchang

gy MO

Birdview — CSC Nanchang
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CHINA SOUTH CITY Nanning
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China South City Nanning

China — ASEAN Expo Light Industrial Products Fair at
CSC Nanning
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CSC Nanning in operation
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Birdview — CSC Nanning

Trade center: Plaza 2
RHHL : ZHRFES

Annual Report 2013/14 F3k




CHINA SOUTH CITY Xi‘an
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China South City Xi‘an

Phase | Trade centers
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Trade center in operation
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Birdview — CSC Xi'an
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Pre-sale at CSC Harbin in May 2014
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Pavilion of CSC Harbin at China-Russia Expo
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CSC Harbin under construction
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CHINA SOUTH CITY Zhengzhou
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China South City Zhengzhou

The launch of sales at CSC Zhengzhou
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Operation and sales center
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CSC Zhengzhou under construction
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Trade center: Plaza 1
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CHINA SOUTH CITY Hefei

AL %k i iﬁk

China South City Hefei

The Ground — breaking ceremony at CSC Hefei in June 2013
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Standalone low-rise trade center shops
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CHINA SOUTH aTY Chongqing

China South City Chongqing

Rendering
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The Ground-breaking Ceremony at CSC Chongging in
March 2014
R2014F3 A RITHNEEERPERER

18  china South City Holdings Limited ZrEERER AR




RIE]

Rendering
Fio

B

v

.
g
:
4
I

7

Rendering

EIERRE




Financial Highlights
IBRE

(in HK$'000F& )

Revenue Profit attributable to owners of the parent
WA ISYNGIE ZEDN S F D

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Core net profit attributable to owners of the parent

SR RER AEGEZOFRE

Net assets value

EERE

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2010 2011

2012 2013 2014
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Financial Highlights (Continued)

B RE(E)

For the year ended 31 March
BZE3AMHLEE

2014 2013  Approximate
HKS$ HKS$ Change %
AT BT BEAI 1R %
Contracted sales BREE 14,106.0 millionH & 8,205.6 milion & & 71.9
Revenue WA 13,468.3 millionBE & 7,488.1 million& & 79.9
Gross profit EA 6,547.2 millionE & 4,176.7 milion & & 56.8
Gross profit margin ESy N[ 49% 56%
Profit attributable to owners S REHE AEN
of the parent el 3,494.5 millionHE 2,749.9 million & & 271
Core net profit attributable to [SYNCIE 2S PN
owners of the parent* AN e 2,677.7 milionE & 1,776.4 milionB & 50.7
Earnings per share — Basic BREF — &R HK55.71 centsi&fli  HK45.62 centsi& (Il 22.1
Gearing ratio BAREBH R 24% 32%
Proposed final dividend per share  #ERAHIAL 2 (FAL) HK14.0 cents3&{l HK10.0 centsj# 1l 40.0
Dividend payout ratio IR B R 36% 34%

* Represents the net profit attributable to owners of the parent excluding fair value gains on investment properties and related tax effects, fair

value gain on derivative financial instrument and loss on redemption of the 2011 Notes.

REKRFHREVELATERE MEBRBZE  TTEERTAATERSENBER0MFRE 2 BENE R AES AREFEFE -

Geographical Diversifyin

THEREVHESNEE

Contracted Sales

FY2010/11 FY2012/13 329, 6%
2010/ 11 AR EE 2012/138 R
HK$2,169 million HK$8,206 million
21.69{8/8 7T 82.061E/8 7T
e e 9% 30%
FY2009/10 FY2011/12 FY2013/14
2009/108f B & 2011120 R E 2013/14 R EE
HK$1,495 million HK$7,101 million HK$14,106 million
14,9518 7T 71.01E%7T 141.0618%8 T

Shenzhen /&3l
Xi'an AA%

@ Heyuan AR
© Harbin REE

@® Nanchang @&

@ Zhengzhou )1

@ Nanning %
@ Hefel A
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Chairman’s Statement
FERS

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of China South City
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), together with its subsidiaries (“China
South City” or the “Group”), | am pleased to report the annual results of
the Group for the fiscal year ended 31 March 2014 (“FY2013/14" or the
"Year”).

Results and Dividend

The Group maintained a strong growth momentum in FY2013/14 and
continued to deliver its financial targets. During the reporting period,
the Group's revenue significantly increased by 79.9% to HK$13,468.3
million (the fiscal year ended 31 March 2013 (“FY2012/13"): HK$7,488.1
million). Net profit attributable to equity owners of the parent also rose
by 27.1% to HK$3,494.5 million (FY2012/13: HK$2,749.9 million). Basic
earnings per share were HK55.71 cents (FY2012/13: HK45.62 cents).

The Board proposed a final dividend of HK14 cents per share for
FY2013/14 (FY2012/13: HK10 cents per share), subject to shareholders’
approval at the Company'’s forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM")
to be held on 21 August 2014.

Review of the Operation

Rapid Growth Driven by Successful Replication of
Business Model

As the leading large-scale integrated logistics and trade center developer
and operator in China by gross floor area, the Group continued to benefit
from a stable macro environment and the successful replication of China
South City’s business model. During the Year, the Group continued to
implement its development strategy and diversify its revenue source.
During the Year, China South City had its Contracted Sales (including
property sales in finance lease) reached HK$14.1 billion (FY2012/13:
HK$8.2 billion), to which CSC Hefei and CSC Zhengzhou, two of the
newest China South City projects, are the key contributors. The success of
the new China South City projects was a strong reflection of its successful
business model and the benefit of its diversified project portfolio.

China South City Holdings Limited ZERF3HIZREGR A T
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

FREHmE ()

Strong Growth in Recurring Revenue
As a key corporate strategy, the Group will operate the integrated logistics
and trade center projects after construction and initial sale, which ensures
a prolonged period of stable return through recurring revenue generated,
including but not limited to rental, property management, E-commerce,
logistics and warehousing service and outlet business.

During the Year, the Group reported recurring revenue of HK$655.7
million (FY2012/13: HK$309.3 million), a robust growth of 112.0%. All
the different areas of recurring revenue reported significant increase:
rental income increased by 42.5%, logistics and warehousing service
revenue increased by 176.8%, property management service income
increased by 53.9% and outlet business revenue increased by 185.7%.
With the initiation of the online membership programme for its physical
occupants, E-commerce income recorded HK$189.1 million (FY2012/13:
Nil).

Evolving Strategy

The Group has always understood the opportunities coming with the
modernization of Chinese urban wholesale markets. Over the past decade,
the Group's success has been built upon providing a professional platform
to assist SMEs in modernizing the way they conduct business. The Group
will continue to play the role as service provider which is crucial to its
SMEs.

E-commerce, the Heart of Future Strategy

Given the increasing demand from the SMEs to conduct more businesses
online, the Group believes the next step of Chinese wholesale market
revolution will occur around the merger between the far-reaching
online tools and tangible offline platforms. In order to capitalize on this
opportunity, the Group has put E-commerce at the heart of its future
strategy. One part of that strategy is assisting the SMEs operating within
China South City in establishing online trading platforms. By the end
of March 2014, CSC86.com, the Group's own E-commerce platform,
has helped approximately 5,000 occupants set up online shops and
over 1.6 million products on display. Furthermore, with the launch of
CSC Zhengzhou project, the Group introduced its online service to the
physical occupants and received positive response. In CSC Nanchang, the
E-commerce services in trial operation help its occupants expand their
business on third party online platforms. Starting from March 2014, the
Group has the beta launch of its online outlet platform, offering B2C
services to both the occupants and customers.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

FREHmE ()

Win-Win Cooperation

On 15 January 2014, the Group established strategic cooperation with
Tencent Holdings Limited (“Tencent”) to provide value-added services to
China South City’'s occupants. As the market leaders in their respective
fields, the cooperation is capable of creating an integrated online and
offline platform where millions of internet users can come in direct
contact with numerous SMEs operating within China South City. The
successful cooperation will be a major step towards the development of
"Physical + Online” business eco-system.

The Group believes that bringing in Tencent to jointly achieve” Physical +
Online” integration will expedite the upgrade of China South City’s online
services, allowing it to offer its occupants more effective integrated trade
services. The successful integration of the “Physical + Online” platform
will expand China South City’s business eco-system, providing our SMEs
with more business opportunities and greater success in a new generation
of wholesale business environment powered by E-commerce tools.

Logistics, the Value of the Network

Professional logistics service has long been an important value-added
service to the SMEs operating within China South City. For the new
generation wholesale markets powered by E-commerce tools, advanced
logistics network is more valuable than ever. The Group has not only
reserved substantial land bank dedicated to logistics and storage, but
also extended its physical presence in eight different provinces and
municipality, covering large territories from the most northerly project of
CSC Harbin to the most southerly project of CSC Nanning. During the
Year, the Group set up trial operation of a logistics information exchange
platform in CSC Nanning, through which it wishes to realize the full value
of China South City extended network.

HOBA Furnishing, Exploring Opportunities of the
Growing Business Eco-system

In July 2013, the Group entered into a subscription agreement to acquire
75% shareholding in HOBA Furnishing, a leading domestic furniture
market operator with 8 existing large stores in operation. The Group
intends to set up new HOBA stores in different China South City projects,
significantly increasing HOBA's business scope. The acquisition will also
help the Group extend its industries profile and expand its ancillary
services to take advantage of the growing business eco-system. As China
South City projects continue to grow, the Group will seek to create more
synergy through further acquisitions.

China South City Holdings Limited ZERF3HIZREGR A T
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

FREHmE ()

Continuing Expansion of Project Portfolio

The Group continued to expand its project portfolio during the Year
to maintain a stable growth dynamic. In January 2014, the Group
entered into framework agreements with Chongging Government to
build an integrated trade and logistics project with planned GFA of
13.5 million sg. m. in Banan District of Chongging, through which the
Group has its first footing set into China’s Municipality.

In February 2014, the Group entered into an agreement to acquire the
remaining 35% shareholding in CSC Xi'an project, to increase the Group’s
holding to 100%. As of the end of March 2014, the Group owns 100%
in all 8 projects it operates, maintaining a diversified project portfolio.

In March 2014, the Group also entered into a Letter of Intent with
Guangzhou Government to undertake the development of an
integrated trade and logistics project with planned GFA of approximately
10 million sg. m. in Guangzhou.

Prudent Financial Management

The Group continues to balance between its expansion strategy and
financial sustainability. As at the end of March 2014, the Group has cash
and cash equivalents and restricted cash amounted to HK$12.8 billion.
The gearing ratio was 24%. During the Year, the Group received strong
support from the financial market both domestically and internationally,
demonstrated by the ready access of a range of financing resources
including domestic and offshore bank loans, and bond issuance in the
PRC and international capital markets.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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Prospects

Looking forward, as China is entering into a new era of economy reform
where quality growth outweighs the need for quantity growth, greater
emphasis will be placed on the modernization of different aspects of the
economy. Outlined in the 12th National Five-Year Plan, the Government
will continue to carry out urbanization and industrial upgrade throughout
China. The Group believes that the current strategy to develop modern
integrated logistics network and relocation of urban wholesale markets
will remain a critical component of the Government’s new structural
reform plan. Leveraging on the Group’s unique business model, proven
operational capabilities and extensive cooperation experiences with local
governments, China South City is poised to capture the enormous market
opportunities. Furthermore, the Group will continue to strengthen the
“Physical + Online” platform. Leveraging on its cooperation with Tencent
and the opening of business in new China South City projects, the Group
will seek opportunities in providing more value-added services both online
and offline.

The Group has its annual Contracted Sales target of HK$18 billion to
HK$20 billion in the fiscal year ending 31 March 2015 (“FY2014/15").
Furthermore, with an increasing number of projects starts to contribute
recurring revenue, steadily becoming an important growth and revenue
driver, the Group’s 3-year target in annual recurring revenue ranges from
HK$1.5 billion to HK$2 billion.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my sincere gratitude to our valued shareholders, customers and
business partners for their trust and unwavering support. | would also
like to thank our management and staff for their professionalism and
wholehearted commitment.

Cheng Chung Hing
Co-Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 24 June 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Business Overview

During the Year, the Group continued to enjoy a stable market
environment in China. The Central Government continues its path of
structural reform with more emphasis on the quality of growth rather than
pure pursue of quantity growth. As a result of our prudent investment
strategy and successfully replicable business model, China South City has
seen strong demands for our new projects. Contracted Sales reached
HK$12.6 billion at the end of December 2013, already beating our annual
target of HK$11 billion. A new Contracted Sales target was revised and
increased to HK$14 billion in the same month.

As the launch of sales on new projects continues to provide strong
driver for income, the Group maintained a rapid growth momentum
in FY2013/14. Contracted Sales surged by 72% to HK$14.1 billion
(FY2012/13: HK$8.2 billion). The total revenue reached HK$13.5 billion, a
year-on-year growth of 80% (FY2012/13: HK$7.5 billion).

Details on Contracted Sales in FY2013/14 are shown in the table below:

£ dE)

RAEE  ARBEEZERPERBENTISRER -
PRBUFIHEES R TEENBNEBITENRE - B
BRENRERE LA RINERNERER - FE/
BB SR TE R - R2013F12AK - KEENE
HIHERDIE 126088 T - RWEF1M0EETHNAE
% o AEBREANREA LR A QOHEERIRZE1408
BT

2013148 RS+ $178 B MH S #ER B IR
AB  RERNEEMNRBIEZRIE - SOHEEER
F72%ZE 141185 7T (2012/13 BEE 82188 TT) ©
U AZE 13588 T - RS R80% (2012/13 81 B
g 751887t ©

20134 B FE A AHEFBHN TR -

Average selling Contracted
price ("ASP") amount
(before (before
Contracted deduction of deduction of Project
area business tax) business tax) contribution
FHEE EHEE
EHEE GOREERA) (IREERA) 15 B &Rt
(sq. m.) (HK$/sq. m.) (HK$ million)
(FERK) (BL/FEGKR) (a&%mT)

CSC Shenzhen Y ER 34,300 14,300 491.3 3.5%
Trade center (Mall) TR (G )0 8,000 24,700 198.5 1.4%
Office NI 10,700 12,600 135.1 1.0%
Residential property [Ea=c 15,600 10,200 157.7 1.1%

CSC Nanchang EEEmH 69,200 16,100 1,118.2 7.9%
Trade center (Mall) TS50 (%) 67,300 16,400 1,103.1 7.8%
Residential property [Ea=c 1,900 7,800 15.1 0.1%

CSC Nanning MEERH 92,000 8,800 809.4 5.7%
Trade center (Mall) TS50 (%) 13,300 17,700 234.2 1.7%
Residential property [Ea=2 78,700 7,300 575.2 4.0%

CSC Xi'an FRZERE 169,800 9,900 1,683.3 12.0%
Trade center (Mall) ZTH5H0(ES) 45,700 14,000 642.3 4.6%
Trade center (Detached)® T HRN(ER) 124,100 8,400 1,041.0 7.4%

CSC Zhengzhou BR AN ZERT I
Trade center (Detached) RS NERR) 568,000 7,400 4,209.0 29.8%

CSC Harbin WMEBERH
Trade center (Detached) T HHRL(ER) 171,600 7,700 1,322.6 9.4%

CSC Hefei EIEER R
Trade center (Detached) ZTHHRNL(ER) 642,900 7,000 4,472.2 31.7%

Total FEE 1,747,800 N/ATRE A 14,106.0 100.0%

Notes: BISE -

(1) Refer to multi-storey trade centers in shopping-mall style. (1) ERSTARRNZERIZTL -

(2)  Refer to standalone low-rise trade center shops. @) FEEEEENRSTOEEE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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E-commerce

Next Generation Wholesale Markets

Chinese urban wholesale markets have been a critical part of Chinese
business establishment. China South City has played a key role in
facilitating the successful upgrade of many wholesale markets in
numerous major cities across China. With increasing demands from the
SMEs to conduct business online, the Group witnessed the revolution for
a new generation of wholesale market. The new generation of wholesale
market combines the connectivity of the E-commerce tools, including
online trading platform, 020 apps, online social network etc., with the
tangible offline platform.

To build the next generation wholesale market and benefit from the
"Physical + Online” business eco-system, the Group’s short-term goal is
to help our SMEs master different E-commerce tools and bring in more
business and traffic online, whereas mid-to-long-term goal is to provide
further value-added services, including E-commerce database, micro-
financing, online payment services, etc.

VAL s

(B RN e e e T e

et SR VL LR LS
r-| s w

E-commerce Platform — CSC86.com
EFHETFA —CSC86.com

The Solution Provider

The major constraints existing SMEs in reaching their online potential
are the technical knowhow and skilled workforce. To facilitate the
transformation, the Group will play the role as a solution provider in
releasing those constraints.

As at the end of March 2014, the Group has successfully helped
approximately 5,000 of our occupants set up their own online shop
on CSC86.com, the E-commerce platform owned and operated by the
Group, to display over 1.6 million products. In many of the cases, setting
up the online shop is just the beginning. The Group provides follow-up
support and services, including website management, visual design, data
sharing and analysis, online promotion, search engine optimization, third
party certification, etc.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEET®W R (&)

Starting from FY2013/14, the Group has initiated an online membership
programme in CSC Zhengzhou. By joining the service, the occupants
will enjoy the full range of E-commerce service offered by the Group's
E-commerce platform, CSC86.com. Currently, approximately 7,000
CSC Zhengzhou's occupants have joined the programme, significantly
increased the penetration of the E-commerce services among our
occupants.

The Group is working with local universities and colleges to set up
E-commerce programme in certain China South City projects to provide
E-commerce skill training for the graduates and create a talent pool
for our SMEs. The Group believes in helping the SMEs to expand their
business with E-commerce tools and in return the enlarged business eco-
system will provide with more business opportunities.

The Group's outlet business is also taking advantage of the E-commerce
opportunity. On 8 March 2014, the Group had the beta launch of
Aolaigo.com (B#fE), the Group’s B2C outlets platform. At the same
time, the Group has set up storage and distribution facilities in CSC
Shenzhen for our online outlets platform.

Utilizing Tangible Offline Platform

Leveraging on the offline platform and supporting facilities, including
the logistics and warehousing capability, the Group is attracting a new
group of occupants from existing online businesses. As at the end of
March 2014, the Group homed approximately 250 online businesses,
cross-border E-commerce business in particular. By making their offline
presence in China South City, these online businesses are able to establish
a tangible relationship with their customers in physical showrooms; they
are able to source directly from many SMEs on the same project and are
able to manage their stocks and logistics more conveniently with readily
accessible on-site facilities, all within China South City.

Strengthening the Platform through Strategic Partnership

In order to provide more value-added services to China South City’s
occupants and customers, the Group established a strategic partnership
with Tencent, one of the most successful internet companies in China. As
the market leaders in their respective fields, the cooperation is capable of
creating an online and offline platform where millions of internet users
can come in direct contact with numerous SMEs operating within China
South City. The successful cooperation between the two parties will lead
to the development of an integrated “Physical + Online” business eco-
system.

B2013/14BFERR + ANE BN EM R AT 1T
Bt BiTE - 2HRFERKGE  APAEZASE
BEFRgE T ACSC86.comfTIREM 2 L EFHEE
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Leveraging on Tencent's internet technology, the Group will connect
different China South City platforms, including the physical platform, B2C
and B2B online platforms with Weixin platform to create an integrated
020 eco-system, allowing the Group to offer more value-added services
to our SMEs and unique 020 experiences to their customers.

Logistics

The Value is in the Network

Logistics and warehousing service is always crucial to our customers, for
most of them are SME wholesalers. In general, upon the master plan of
each project, approximately 15% of the total planned GFA are allocated
to serve logistics and storage function. As at 31 March 2014, a GFA of
approximately 82,500 sg. m. were in operation among our projects. In
FY2014/15, construction of logistics and warehousing facilities of GFA of
779,300 sg. m. will be underway across our projects.

As at the end of March 2014, the Group had 8 different China South City
projects, covering a large part of China’s territory, from the northernmost
project CSC Harbin to the southernmost project CSC Nanning. Leveraging
on the network and their enormous scale, Qianlong Logistics Group
Limited, the Group’s subsidiary specialized in logistics and warehousing
service, is building a logistics information exchange platform targeting
long-distance heavy goods vehicles (“HGV") and wholesale businesses
across China.

Using this logistics information exchange platform, tens of thousands
of SMEs operating within each China South City project in the future
can directly source their logistics needs from carriers available on our
project sites and track their goods with real time GPS data. In return their
demand could help attract HGVs in the region to our platform. Through
this platform, the Group could collect freight for HGVs and generate a
significant cash pool.

Warehousing and logistics facilities in operation

BERHA
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Outlets

Strong Driver for Future Growth

Operated under Shenzhen Huasheng Commercial Development Co., Ltd,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, the outlet business achieved
446.5% CAGR growth in revenue since its first opening in Shenzhen in
2011. Revenue from outlet business increased from HK$24.1 million in
FY2012/13 to HK$68.7 million, an increment of 185.7%.

During the Year, the outlet in CSC Shenzhen had a GFA of approximately
64,800 sq. m., with approximately 170 brands in operation, contributing
over 87.8% of overall outlet revenue, HK$60.4 million.

The other outlet stores in trial operation during FY2013/14 included CSC
Nanning, CSC Nanchang and CSC Xi'an, with a total GFA of 14,500 sq.
m., 5,900 sg. m. and 7,200 sg. m., respectively. With the existing projects
growing in scale and more new outlets starting up their operation, the
Group expects stronger growth from outlet business in the coming years.

HOBA Furnishing

Expansion of Ancillary Services

In order to expand our ancillary services to take advantage of the growing
business eco-system, the Group will seek to create greater synergy, the
increase in traffic and industry coverage on our projects through further
acquisitions of different industries. In July 2013, the Group entered into a
subscription agreement to acquire 75% shareholding in HOBA Furnishing,
a leading domestic furniture market operator with eight existing large
stores in operation. The Group intends to set up new HOBA Furnishing
stores in our different projects, significantly expanding its business scope.

Property Management

Creating Greater Brand Value

With an aim to allow better management and services on each of our
projects, the Group established Shenzhen First Asia Pacific Property
Management Company Limited to carry out professional property
management service in all China South City projects. The Group endeavors
to differentiate its projects from other wholesale markets by stepping up
efforts to strengthen standards of fire prevention, security, environmental
stewardship, maintenance services as well as the management of
transportation and parking lots on each of our project site.
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Trade Fairs

Strong Generator of Brand Recognition

Leveraging on our large operational scale and ties with the local
governments, the Group continued to attract international and regional
exhibitors to our various projects, not only creating large traffic and
business flow but also generating brand recognition and promoting the
project itself. For the up and coming trial operation at new China South
City projects, the Group proactively organized trade fairs and events to
draw attention from the market and boost traffic flow.

Trade Fairs At a Glance

China-ASEAN Expo Light Industrial Products Fair

The 10th China-ASEAN Expo Light Industrial Products Fair, co-organized
by the Ministry of Commerce of China, its ASEAN counterparts and
the China-ASEAN Secretariat and undertaken by the Government of
the Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region, was held at CSC Nanning in
September 2013. The fair, covering an exhibition area of approximately
100,000 sq. m., attracted about 1,200 exhibitors (2012: 980 exhibitors)
and approximately 960,000 domestic and international visit counts (2012:
620,000 visit counts). This annual event further enhanced the Group’s
brand recognition in the region as well as among the ASEAN members.

Guangxi (Nanning) Spring Tea Festival

CSC Nanning organized the 6th Guangxi (Nanning) Spring Tea Festival,
held between 28 April and 2 May 2013, which showcased an array of
tea and tea wares. This commercial trade fair received an overwhelming
response, attracting over 150,000 visit counts.

During the Labor Holidays in May 2014, the 7th Guangxi (Nanning) Spring
Tea Festival cum CSC Nanning Auto Expo was held in CSC Nanning,
attracting approximately 317,000 visit counts. The event significantly
boosted the sales of our tea and tea wares tenants and automobile
exhibitors. Our other tenants also benefited from the event with the
increased traffic.

Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan Commodity Fair

Followed by the success of the Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
Commodity Fair co-organized by the Trade Development Bureau of
Ministry of Commerce and the Group at CSC Shenzhen in September
2012, the Trade Development Bureau of Ministry of Commerce, the
Group, together with Nanchang Government, held the same event at
CSC Nanchang from 28 April to 2 May 2013. The fair, which covered
an area of 55,000 sq. m., drew approximately 740,000 visit counts.
Accommodating exhibitors from these three places, the fair successfully
promoted cross-regional trade and facilitated traffic flow at CSC
Nanchang.
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Jiangxi Provincial Commodities Fair & CNY Festive Bargains
Leveraging on its exhibition platform and experience, the Group also co-
organized the first Jiangxi Provincial Commodities Fair (“;I75%& b 75 fF
BEmEEE ") with the Department of Commerce of Jiangxi Province
in October 2013, attracting about 300 exhibitors and approximately
1,106,000 visit counts, which further promoted the brand name of China
South City in the regions as well as regional trade activities at Nanchang.

Following the success of Jiangxi Provincial Commodities Fair, CSC
Nanchang held a fortnight CNY festive bargains from late December
2013, attracting nearly 1 million visit counts. The success of the two

events gave our SMEs a vote of confidence for trial operation.
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Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan Commodity Fair at CSC Nanchang
RAEEAHBTEREERR I

Expanding Financing Channel

To maintain the growth momentum, the Group continued to strengthen
our financial position and expand our financing channels. With the
confidence placed in the Group’s sound business model and outstanding
operation capabilities by the capital market and banks, the Group was
able to diversify financing channels through international and domestic
banks, debt market as well as institutional strategic investors.

During the Year, the Group recorded a lowered financing cost, at a
weighted average of 7.2% p.a. as at 31 March 2014, mainly from the
favorable funding cost from domestic banks at a weighted average of
6.7% p.a. as at 31 March 2014, whereas that of offshore financing was
at 8.4% p.a.. As regards new funding in FY2013/14, the Group drew
down a HK$500 million 2-year unsecured loan in October 2013 at an
interest rate of HIBOR +2.75% with HSBC. In January 2014, the Group
successfully issued 5-year senior notes of US$400 million at 8.25% p.a.
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due 2019 for the early redemption of senior notes at 13.50% p.a. due
2016, lowering the Group’s overall financing cost.

During the Year, the Group gained positive credit outlook from rating
agencies. In November 2013, Standard & Poor’s revised the Company’s
rating outlook to ‘Positive’ from ‘Stable’ and affirmed our ‘B+' long-
term corporate credit rating. In December 2013, Moody’s also revised
the Company's outlook to ‘Positive’ from ‘Stable’ and affirmed our ‘B2’
corporate family rating. In January 2014, Fitch Ratings also assigned the
first-time ‘B+’ rating with ‘Positive’ outlook on the Company.

In April 2014, our wholly-owned subsidiary, China South International
Industrial Materials City (Shenzhen) Company Limited, obtained relevant
approval to issue 5-year medium-term notes worth up to RMB4 billion in
China. The issuance of the first tranche amounted to RMB1 billion at 7.5%
p.a. with an AA credit rating assigned by Dagong Global Credit Rating
Co., Ltd. (KA E -5 AR A 7)) was completed in the following
month.

Following the strategic investment from PAG in April 2013, a leading
alternative investment fund management group in Asia, by purchasing
convertible notes of HK$975 million at 6.5% per annum due 2018,
Tencent made strategic investment of approximately HK$1.50 billion in
the Group by subscribing an aggregate of 680,300,000 new shares of the
Company at HK$2.2 per share, representing approximately 9.9% of the
enlarged capital in January 2014. An option for 244,800,000 shares at
HK$3.50 per share has also been granted to Tencent in the transaction.
These strategic investments further strengthen the Group’s capital position
and ample liquidity.

Land Bank

During the Year, with the strong growth in Contracted Sales and capital
position, the Group acquired attributable GFA of 5.39 million sg. m. in
CSC Hefei, CSC Chongging, CSC Xi‘an and CSC Harbin at an average cost
of RMB303/s5g. m., accounting for 6.8% of the total planned GFA, which is
a strong guarantee for the Group's future growth and a reflection of our
prudent strategy.

China South City Holdings Limited ZERF3HIZREGR A T
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Land Bank as at 31 March 2014 HZ2014F3A318 2L fEE
Properties  Properties
Properties to be planned Total
under completed by  for future planned  Attributable GFA acquired
Completed properties  development®  FY2014/15@ development GFA (% to total planned GFA)
ik
12014/15
IREE
BRH BIv BREE S | BRI HARERER
BRIME VEL N0 RREENE BEAE (LARHRZEEADL)
(insq. m.) Sold Unsold Estimated Estimated Estimated %
(FRK) B2E K& izt st figt
(CSC Shenzhen AEm 670,400 1,141,800 270,000 117,000 561,800 2,644,000 2,644,000 100
(SC Nanchang EEE 589,600 311,300 853,000 394100 2,526,100 4,280,000 4,280,000 100
(CSC Nanning HEEER 186,300 626,300 765,000 558,500 3,302,400 4,880,000 2,480,000 51
CSCXi'an FRERY, 464,000 432,500 737,900 515,200 15,865,600 17,500,000 2,506,000 14
CSC Harbin REEEER - - 1,232,600 336,700 10,767,400 12,000,000 2,475,000 21
(CSC Zhengzhou B 534,500 696,100 1,499,200 560,000 9,270,200 12,000,000 4,215,000 35
(CSC Hefei ELE 638,000 170,400 1,209,400 900,600 9,982,200 12,000,000 3,941,000 33
(SC Chongaing ERERER - - 500,000 - 13,000,000 13,500,000 749,000 6
Total st 3,082,800 3378400 7,067,100 3,382,100 65275700 78,804,000 23,290,000 30
Notes: BisE
(1) Including construction underway as at 31 March 2014 and that commencing (1)  B3ER2014F3 31 BIEEY % R &K 2014/1580 B F

in FY2014/15.

(2)  Properties under development to be completed by FY2014/15.

China South City Shenzhen

CSC Shenzhen, the Group's first-ever project, is strategically located at
the heart of the Pearl River Delta region amid an extensive transportation
network. Occupying a site area of approximately 1.06 million sq. m.,
the project comprises a total planned GFA of approximately 2.64 million
sg. m.. As at 31 March 2014, the trade center and ancillary facilities at
phase |, phase Il and part of phase Ill, with a total GFA of approximately
1.80 million sq. m., were in operation. CSC Shenzhen is currently in its
phase Il development. In FY2014/15, construction of GFA of 270,000 sq.
m. will be underway, among which 117,000 sg. m. are expected to be
completed.
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In FY2013/14, CSC Shenzhen recorded total Contracted Sales of
HK$491.3 million (FY2012/13: HK$1,518.7 million), including trade
center (mall style) of GFA of 8,000 sg. m. at an ASP of HK$24,700/sq. m.
(FY2012/13: 58,500 sg. m. at HK$20,900/sqg. m.), office units of 10,700
sg. m. at an ASP of HK$12,600/sq. m. (FY2012/13: 16,600 sq. m. at
HK$10,900/sq. m.) and residential ancillary of 15,600 sg. m. at an ASP of
HK$10,200/sq. m. (FY2012/13: 12,100 sqg. m. at HK$9,400/sq. m.).

For FY2013/14, CSC Shenzhen maintained a stable growth in occupancy
rates and rental rates. As at 31 March 2014, the total occupancy rate and
rental rate of phase | trade center and shops were 95% and HK$48/sq.
m. (As at 31 March 2013: 96% at HK$40/sq. m.) respectively. The total
occupancy rate and rental rate of the launched rentable GFA of phase
Il and phase Il trade center and shops were 65% at HK$40/sq. m. (As
at 31 March 2013: 55% at HK$35/sq. m.) and 51% at HK$52/sq. m.
respectively.

China South City Nanchang

Situated in Nanchang, the capital city of Jiangxi Province, CSC Nanchang
is readily accessible to suppliers, manufacturers and merchants via major
highways, the largest port on the Gan River and a complete freight
network which includes a cargo marshal yard, a container terminus and
an international airport, coupled with Nanchang West Railway Station — a
principal high speed rail station located just 1.2 km from CSC Nanchang
commenced operation successively from September 2013.

CSC Nanchang has a site area of approximately 1.54 million sg. m. and a
total planned GFA of approximately 4.28 million sg. m., CSC Nanchang is
in phase | construction and has total GFA of 900,900 sg. m. completed,
including trade center (mall style) of 517,900 sqg. m. and residential
ancillary of 383,000 sg. m.. In FY2014/15, construction of GFA of 853,000
sg. m. will be underway, among which 394,100 sq. m. are expected to be
completed in the year. During the Year, CSC Nanchang commenced trial
operation with its phase | development close to completion.

In FY2013/14, CSC Nanchang recorded total Contracted Sales of
HK$1,118.2 million (FY2012/13: HK$2,303.9 million), including trade
center (mall style) of GFA of 67,300 sq. m. at an ASP of HK$16,400/sg. m.
(FY2012/13: 108,700 sq. m. at HK$13,700/sg. m.) and residential ancillary
of a GFA of 1,900 sg. m. at an ASP of HK$7,800/sq. m. (FY2012/13:
110,600 sqg. m. at HK$7,400/sq. m.).

China South City Holdings Limited ZERF3HIZREGR A T
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China South City Xi‘an

CSC Xi'an is strategically situated in the Xi‘an International Trade and
Logistics Park in Shaanxi Province, and enjoys access to an extensive
transportation network connected to a railway container terminal and the
largest bonded area in the northwestern region of China, along with two
planned subway lines that cross the project site.

In February 2014, the Group entered into an equity transfer agreement to
acquire the remaining 35% equity interest of CSC Xi‘an at a consideration
of RMB260 million. The transaction was completed in March 2014 and
CSC Xi'an became the Group's wholly-owned subsidiary since then.

CSC Xi'an has a total planned land area of approximately 10.0 million
sg. m. and a total planned GFA of approximately 17.5 million sq. m..
CSC Xi'an is in phase | construction and has total GFA of 896,500 sqg. m.
completed, including trade center (mall style) of 555,900 sqg. m. and trade
center (detached style) of 340,600 sg. m.. In FY2014/15, construction
of GFA of 737,900 sq. m. will be underway, among which 515,200
sg. m. are expected to be completed in the year. During the Year, CSC
Xi‘an commenced trial operation with its phase | development close to
completion.

In FY2013/14, CSC Xi'an recorded total Contracted Sales of HK$1,683.3
million (FY2012/13: HK$1,971.5 million), including trade center (mall
style) of GFA of 45,700 sg. m. at an ASP of HK$14,000/sq. m. (FY2012/13:
64,500 sg. m. at HK$14,100/sq. m.) and trade center (detached style)
of a GFA of 124,100 sg. m. at an ASP of HK$8,400/sq. m. (FY2012/13:
129,900 sg. m. at HK$8,200/sq. m.).

China South City Nanning

CSC Nanning is situated in Nanning, the capital city of the Guangxi
Zhuang Autonomous Region and a critical gateway between China and
ASEAN countries, and is easily accessible to railway stations, highways
and an international airport. Strategically located in close proximity to
Southeast Asia to take advantage of a tariff waiver on cross-border
trade activities within the China-ASEAN Free Trade Area, CSC Nanning
endeavors to serve as a key hub for cross-border trade to cater to the
strong demand from the Northern Bay Region and Southeast Asia.

CSC Nanning has a planned net land area of approximately 1.83 million
sg. m. and a total planned GFA of approximately 4.88 million sg. m..
CSC Nanning is in phase | construction and has total GFA of 812,600
sg. m. completed, including trade center (mall style) of 329,000 sq. m.,
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residential ancillary of 456,000 sg. m. and warehousing facilities of
27,600 sg. m.. In FY2014/15, construction of GFA of 765,000 sg. m. will
be underway, among which 558,500 sq. m. are expected to be completed
in the year. During the Year, CSC Nanning commenced trial operation
with its phase | development close to completion.

In FY2013/14, CSC Nanning recorded total Contracted Sales of HK$809.4
million (FY2012/13: HK$807.7 million), including trade center (mall style)
of GFA of 13,300 sg. m. at an ASP of HK$17,700/sq. m. (FY2012/13:
37,900 sq. m. at HK$15,500/sq. m.) and residential ancillary of a GFA of
78,700 sq. m. at an ASP of HK$7,300/sq. m. (FY2012/13: 33,700 sq. m.
at HK$6,500/sg. m.).

China South City Harbin

Located in the Daowai district of Harbin, the capital city of Heilongjiang
Province, CSC Harbin fully leverages its advantageous location in northeast
China, a premier hub for cross-border trade with countries in northeast
Asia, and its proximity to the China-Russia border to tie in with economic
activities within and across the region. Tapping the opportunities
arising from the area’s emerging development potential, CSC Harbin
will endeavor to become the largest integrated logistics trade center in
northeast China.

CSC Harbin has a planned land area of approximately 10.0 million sq. m.
and a total planned GFA of approximately 12.0 million sq. m.. CSC Harbin
is in phase | construction. In FY2014/15, construction of GFA of 1.2 million
sg. m. will be underway, among which 336,700 sq. m. are expected to be
completed in the year.

In FY2013/14, CSC Harbin recorded total Contracted Sales of HK$1,322.6
million (FY2012/13: HK$248.1 million) from trade center (detached style)
of GFA of 171,600 sq. m. at an ASP of HK$7,700/sq. m. (FY2012/13:
33,500 sg. m. at HK$7,400/sq. m.).

China South City Zhengzhou

CSC Zhengzhou is located in Zhengzhou, the capital city of Henan
Province, which is highly accessible and enjoys extensive transportation
networks — it is a mere 16 km away from Zhengzhou Xinzheng
International Airport and only a couple of kilometers away from the
Beijing-Guangzhou Railway Freight Station and Beijing-Hong Kong-Macao
Highway.

China South City Holdings Limited ZERF3HIZREGR A T
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CSC Zhengzhou has a total planned net land area of approximately
7.0 million sq. m. and a total planned GFA of 12.0 million sq. m.. CSC
Zhengzhou is in phase | development and has total GFA of 1.23 million
sg. m. of trade center completed. In FY2014/15, construction of GFA of
1.5 million sg. m. will be underway, among which 560,000 sg. m. are
expected to be completed in the year.

In FY2013/14, CSC Zhengzhou recorded total Contracted Sales of
HK$4,209.0 million from trade center (detached style) of GFA of 568,000
sg. m. at an ASP of HK$7,400/sq. m. (FY2012/13: Contracted Sales of
HK$1,355.7 million from trade center (mall style) of GFA of 103,000 sg. m.
at HK$13,200/sq. m.).

China South City Hefei

CSC Hefei is located in Hefei, the capital city of Anhui Province, a
transportation and economic hub at the heart of eastern China. CSC Hefei
benefits from its strategic location in the Hefei Taohua Industrial Park,
its well-developed infrastructure, as well as an extensive transportation
system that includes railways, highways and river transport across China.

CSC Hefei has a total planned net land area of approximately 10.0 million
sq. m. and a total planned GFA of 12.0 million sq. m.. CSC Hefei is in
phase | construction and has total GFA of 808,400 sg. m. of trade center
completed. In FY2014/15, construction of GFA of 1.2 million sq. m. will
be underway, among which 900,600 sq. m. are expected to be completed
in the year.

CSC Hefei was the first project to launch for sales and generate revenue
in the first year of project, with exceptional overwhelming response to
become the main contributor in sales. In FY2013/14, CSC Hefei recorded
total Contracted Sales of HK$4,472.2 million (FY2012/13: Nil) from trade
center (detached style) of GFA of 642,900 sg. m. at an ASP of HK$7,000/
sg. m. (FY2012/13: Nil).
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China South City Chongqing

CSC Chongging is located in Banan District, Chongqging Municipality,
the first municipality the Group stepping into. The project site is highly
accessible to city center and other regions given its strategic location
in Chongging Highway Logistics Base, the state-level transportation
infrastructure and large highway base in the Western region.

According to the Framework agreement signed with Chongqing
Government on 17 January 2014 for the development of a large-scale,
integrated logistics and trade center in Chongging, CSC Chongging has a
total planned net land area of approximately 6.3 million sg. m. and a total
planned GFA of 13.5 million sg. m.. Phase | has a total planned GFA of 2.4
million sg. m., including trade center of 1.26 million sq. m., commercial
facilities of 500,000 sq. m., warehousing facilities of 100,000 sq. m. and
ancillary residential of 500,000 sg. m..

CSC Chongging acquired the first batch of land of attributable GFA of
749,000 and 581,400 sq. m. in March and May 2014 respectively. On 28
March 2014, the ground-breaking ceremony was held at CSC Chongging.
Construction of GFA of 500,000 sq. m. is scheduled to commence in
FY2014/15.

Financial Review

For FY2013/14, the Group reported a strong growth in its financial
performance, with revenue growth of 79.9% to HK$13,468.3 million
(FY2012/13: HK$7,488.1 million), and net profit attributable to owners of
the parent for the Year grew 27.1% to HK$3,494.5 million (FY2012/13:
HK$2,749.9 million). Excluding the effects of fair value gains on
investment properties and related tax effects, fair value gain on derivative
financial instrument and loss on redemption of the 2011 Notes, core
net profit attributable to owners of the parent for the Year as adjusted
increased by 50.7% to HK$2,677.7 million (FY2012/13: HK$1,776.4
million). Basic earnings per share increased to HK55.71 cents (FY2012/13:
HK45.62 cents).

Revenue
Revenue increased by 79.9% to HK$13,468.3 million (FY2012/13:
HK$7,488.1 million). The increase was mainly due to the delivery of newly
completed properties in our Hefei, Zhengzhou, Xi'an and Nanning projects
during the fiscal year under review, and the growing demand of our trade
center units.

China South City Holdings Limited ZERF3HIZREGR A T

EEREmRW
EFEMRRRMUERERTERE  RAKEE(E
EFEEMMIAR - EENBERARXBEE-BER
B A — BB I A - 2P ER M E AT A B
i ERTENSREABMESE - ATREIETHLO
NEMME - BF OB ENBRES -

RIFEBERAN2014F1 A17ERNEERE AL
RABMBYREEMR ST LEITNIER S 5B
ER PR ENF (N ABAMEELE308 F 5K - IREIE
SETE1,3508F K - Ep - —HIBRBEEEE
200BF K - BIE126B8FHANERT SO
500,000 5 KE B E %  100,000F 5 KK & %
7 }2.500,000F F K ECE(EE -

EEEMEOAIN2014F3ARSARDBES S
M - RIS F4)749,000 %2 581,400 5 K °
2014637280 + EEFEREMETT TR AEEM
& B ZER R 20141 5 B FERMAEEERE
500,000°F J5 KK ©

ot 75 51

2013148 B E - A S B B 75 3= 30 8115 R § 38
£ WAKENNT79.9% & 134.6831E8 T (2012/138F K
F[E 74881188 7L) - AFELRRERABEF
IR N127.1%FE 34,9455 70 (2012/13F BFE -
27499188 7T) o MR EMHE QN T EW = RAEAN
B TEemIARATEREMER201MFR
BoEBE - ARENAFESRREE AREZDS
EAE EFH50.7% £=26.77718 78 7T (2012/13 8 B &
[§ 117764873 7T) - BIREARAFIEINESS5.71781U
(2012/138 B E + 45.62741l) ©

PN

W A 32 079.9% Z 134.683 878 7T (2012/13 81 B 4F
[E:74881B%) TERHREREVRFERN
RITERE - BN - LM EIE B FEMAYE - A
RAZSH O EEN R EFAFTE -



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEE W& (&)

FY2013/14 FY2012/13 Change
2013/14 2012/13
MBEE HRFE =il ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 %
FET FAT
Sales of properties Y HE 12,534,980 6,899,068 81.7%
Sales of trade center units HERZHP OB 11,778,160 5,190,427 126.9%
Sales of residential properties HEFTEYZE 756,820 1,708,641 (55.7%)
Finance lease income mEREWA 277,603 279,644 (0.7%)
Rental income AL IA 304,866 213,995 42.5%
Property management service YEEERFWA
income 67,074 43,589 53.9%
E-commerce income EXESLION 189,128 - N/A
Other fee income H it B AUA 94,671 38,474 146.1%
Income from hotel operations JEE S EIA - 13,291 (100%)
13,468,322 7,488,061 79.9%
Revenue from Sales of Properties SHEWMEWA

Revenue from sales of properties increased by 81.7% to HK$12,535.0 $5EWEUW AL ING1.7% = 125.3518F 70 (2012/13
million (FY2012/13: HK$6,899.1 million). The increase was mainly due to  BfER&E : 68.99118/8 L) » £ & 2 M T EEE I
the delivery of newly completed properties in our Hefei, Zhengzhou, Xi'an ~ FERZNEME « BN - AL AMEEE B HEk sy
and Nanning projects during the fiscal year under review, and the growing % ARXZ S OEHEOESR FFAE - KB B

demand of our trade center units. Sales for each project are as follows: EB/RNT
Average selling price (before Sales revenue (before Sales revenue
deduction of business tax) GFA sold deduction of business tax) (net of business tax)
(HKS/sq. m.) (sg. m.) HKS million HK$ million
THER HEWA HEWA
(B EHA) BERSER (MBREEHA) (NBEER%)
(B7/FA%) (F7K) G (BB#R)

FY2013/14  FY201213  FY2013/14  FY201213  FY2013/14  FY2012/13  FY2013/14  FY2012/13
2013/14 201213 201314 201213 201314 201213 2013/14 201213
MREE  MBER  MEEE  MEER  MEER  MEER  MBEE  MBAER

(CSC Shenzhen FIER 24,700 20,900 8,000 58,500 198.5 12229 187.8 1,156.1
CSCXi'an FRER 9,300 12,400 286,700 177,300 2,654.0 2,196.7 2,512.7 2,073.7
(CSC Hefei AIEEEH 7,000 - 638,000 - 4,440.7 - 4,196.5 -
(SC Zhengzhou Pz 8,500 - 534,500 - 4,568.4 - 42985 -
(CSC Nanning HEEREN

- Trade center units “RAPUOEH 17,700 15,500 13,300 37,900 2342 586.8 2209 5539

~Residential properties —FENE 7,100 - 110,300 - 786.6 - 7426 -
(SC Nanchang BEERN

- Trade center units ~REMLEE 15,900 13,700 24,200 108,700 384.0 1,490.1 361.8 1,406.7

— Residential properties ~FENE 7,800 6,500 2,000 280,400 15.1 1,810.0 14.2 1,708.7
Total Bt N/ARER NIATER 1,617,000 662,800 13,281.5 7,306.5 12,535.0 6,899.1
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Finance Lease Income

Finance lease income, derived from the leasing of office towers and
residential properties, slightly decreased by approximately 0.7% to
HK$277.6 million (FY2012/13: HK$279.6 million).

During the fiscal year under review, the Group entered into finance lease
arrangements with tenants for approximately 26,200 sg. m. (FY2012/13:
28,700 sq. m.) at an average price of HK$11,200/sq. m. (FY2012/13:
HK$10,300/sq. m.).

Rental Income

Rental income increased by 42.5% to HK$304.9 million (FY2012/13:
HK$214.0 million). The increase was mainly attributable to the continuous
increase in rental income of phase I, Il and Il trade center units of CSC
Shenzhen, and the newly contribution from HOBA Furnishing during the
fiscal year under review.

Occupancy at CSC Shenzhen has been driven by the demand for large-
scale integrated logistics and trade center facilities and the growing
profile of China South City. As at 31 March 2014, the total occupancy
rate of phase | trade center and shops remained stable at approximately
95% (31 March 2013: 96%), while the total occupancy rate for phase
Il trade center and shops gradually increased to 65% (31 March 2013:
55%) of the launched area. For the total occupancy rate of phase llI
trade center and shops, it represented 51% of the launched area. The
average effective monthly rental rate for phase I, phase Il and phase Il
trade centers and shops were approximately HK$48/sq. m. (31 March
2013: HK$40/sq. m.), HK$40/sg. m. (31 March 2013: HK$35/sq. m.) and
HK$52/sq. m. respectively.

Property Management Service Income

Income from property management services rose by 53.9% to HK$67.1
million (FY2012/13: HK$43.6 million). The increase in income was mainly
from the contribution of projects other than CSC Shenzhen and the rising
contribution of property management fees from CSC Shenzhen phase
Il and phase Il trade centers and supporting facilities with an increase
in the total occupancy rate of launched area of up to 65% and 51%,
respectively as at 31 March 2014.

China South City Holdings Limited ZERF3HIZREGR A T
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E-commerce Income

E-commerce income, derived from the E-commerce services provided
to our customers during the fiscal year under review. During the Year,
the Group has initiated an online membership programme in CSC
Zhengzhou. By joining the service, the occupants will enjoy the full range
of E-commerce service offered by the Group’s E-commerce platform,
CSC86.com.

Other Fee Income

The other fee income rose by 146.1% to HK$94.7 million (FY2012/13:
HK$38.5 million). The increase was mainly contributed by outlet center
operation of HK$68.7 million (FY2012/13: HK$24.1 million) and
warehousing services of HK$24.8 million (FY2012/13: HK$9.0 million)
during the fiscal year under review.

Increase in income from outlet center operation was mainly due to the
growth of outlet operations and increase in operating area during the
fiscal year under review. Increase in warehousing services was mainly due
to the growth of logistics and warehousing operations during the fiscal
year under review.

Income from Hotel Operations

The Group has leased out its hotel properties to a third party to operate
since September 2012. Accordingly, no hotel operating income was
generated during the fiscal year under review.

Cost of Sales

The Group's cost of sales mainly includes construction costs of properties
sold, construction costs of properties held for finance lease and rental
expenses. Cost of sales increased by 109.0% to HK$6,921.2 million
(FY2012/13: HK$3,311.4 million).

The increase was in line with the area of properties sold and properties
entered into finance lease contracts during the fiscal year under review.

Gross Profit

Gross profit increased by 56.8% to HK$6,547.2 million (FY2012/13:
HK$4,176.7 million). Gross profit margin dropped to 49% during the
fiscal year under review (FY2012/13: 56%) was mainly due to the change
in product mix with the addition of new projects generating sales.
During the fiscal year under review, a large portion of sales revenue was
recognized for trade center units sold in our new projects. At the early
stage of sales launched by our new projects, the Group usually set a
lower price so as to allow customer to have more room for future price
appreciation. Accordingly, gross profit margin is usually lower than those
more matured projects.

BREWA
RERABBEMREEANARTFIREESEREHUK
A RAFE  AEEREMNERRFTHITR LSS
el 2HBREKREE  BPAEZASEETEE
FECSC86.comPTiR it 2 T A E F i B ARTE -

HtEHARKRA
HBBUAKENN146.1%Z9,4708 77T (2012/138F
IREE : 3,850887T) » 1L INE 2 BRI E B
BB L EEE6,8708 5T (2012/138F
WEE 241088 T) MERIRE ER2,4808B 8 T
(2012/138 B E : 90088 L) FTEN ©
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Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains increased by 224.0% to HK$187.8 million
(FY2012/13: HK$58.0 million). The increase was mainly due to the fair
value gain of the option granted to Tencent to subscribe the shares of
the Company, which was treated as a derivative financial instrument,
amounting to HK$103.3 million during the fiscal year under review;
however, there was no such fair value gain in FY2012/13. The increase in
bank interest income during the fiscal year under review also led to the
increase in other income and gains.

Fair Value Gains on Investment Properties

The fair value gains on investment properties increased by 1.2% to
HK$1,266.3 million (FY2012/13: HK$1,251.4 million). The increase was
mainly contributed by new properties at CSC Harbin and CSC Nanchang,
and the stable growth of existing properties at CSC Shenzhen and CSC
Nanning.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased by 101.2% to HK$581.2
million (FY2012/13: HK$288.8 million). The increase was mainly
attributable to marketing and advertising expenses incurred by our
projects in Xi‘an, Zhengzhou, Harbin and Hefei, which launched more
sales activities during the fiscal year under review. In addition, increase in
staff costs incurred for the expansion of sales and marketing team also led
to the increase in selling and distribution expenses during the fiscal year
under review.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by 60.7% to HK$863.0 million
(FY2012/13: HK$536.9 million). The increase was primarily due to the
increase in business activities at new projects, the expansion of the
management team and the increase in number of employees. During
the fiscal year under review, the Group has granted 234,300,000 share
options to certain Directors, independent non-executive Directors and
employees, and HK$63.4 million share option expenses were recorded
(FY2012/13: HK$27.2 million).

Finance Costs

Finance costs were up by 14.7% to HK$152.9 million (FY2012/13:
HK$133.3 million). The rise was mainly attributable to an increase in new
bank and other loans for general business purposes with interest expenses
recorded through profit or loss.

China South City Holdings Limited ZERF3HIZREGR A T
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Tax

Tax expenses recorded an increase of 53.9% to HK$2,472.5 million
(FY2012/13: HK$1,606.5 million). The increase in tax expenses was
attributable to the increase in current income tax expenses and land
appreciation tax as a result of the income generated from CSC Shenzhen,
CSC Nanchang, CSC Nanning, CSC Xi‘an, CSC Zhengzhou and CSC Hefei
during the fiscal year under review.

Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables increased by 13.5% to
HK$729.5 million (31 March 2013: HK$642.6 million), due to the
net effect of i) an increase in prepayment of business taxes of pre-
sold properties in CSC Harbin, CSC Zhengzhou and CSC Nanchang, ii)
an increase in balance arising from new project, and iii) a decrease in
consideration receivables of disposed subsidiaries in the previous year.
As at 31 March 2014, the remaining consideration receivable from the
disposal was approximately HK$202.1 million.

Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables increased by 69.1% to HK$13,809.9 million
(31 March 2013: HK$8,165.7 million). The increase was mainly due to
the increase in construction fees and retention payables as construction
of new projects are underway, the increase in sales and rental deposits
received and receipts in advance (including those received for Contracted
Sales) arising from new projects, and increase in other tax payables arising
from the sales of properties during the fiscal year under review. As at 31
March 2014, the balance of construction fees and retention payable and
deposits received and receipts in advance were HK$5,979.2 million and
HK$5,120.3 million, respectively.

Liquidity and Financial Resources
The Group finances its operations primarily through internally generated
funds, bank and other loans, senior notes and convertible notes financing.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had HK$12,777.1 million in cash and
cash equivalents and restricted cash (31 March 2013: HK$6,777.8 million),
among which non-restricted cash and cash equivalents amounted to
approximately HK$11,303.0 million (31 March 2013: HK$6,264.7 million).
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash were primarily
denominated in Renminbi, HK dollars and US dollars.
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Borrowing and Charges on the Group’s Assets

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had approximately HK$17,518.7
million in interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, senior notes and
convertible notes (31 March 2013: HK$11,853.4 million). The Group had
aggregated interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of approximately
HK$12,452.4 million as at 31 March 2014 (31 March 2013: HK$9,000.0
million), of which HK$5,841.7 million will be repayable within one year
or on demand, approximately HK$2,834.2 million will be repayable in the
second year, approximately HK$3,182.1 million will be repayable in the
third to fifth years and approximately HK$594.4 million will be repayable
after five years. As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings of approximately HK$8,491.2 million were secured
by certain buildings, investment properties, properties under development
and properties held for sales with a total carrying value of approximately
HK$19,992.7 million.

Except for the bank loan equivalent to HK$500.0 million, which
is denominated in HK dollars and bear interest at floating rates of
HIBOR+2.75%, all other interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
of the Group are denominated in Renminbi and bear interest at rates
that range from 5.40% to 7.87% (31 March 2013: 5.40% to 7.54%)
per annum. Furthermore, as at 31 March 2014, the Group had unused
banking facilities of approximately HK$4,171.1 million. The Group will
deploy these banking facilities as appropriate, depending on project
development needs and working capital status.

In January 2011, the Company issued senior notes due in January 2016
with a nominal value of US$250 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,950 million) at a coupon rate of 13.5% per annum for the purpose
of financing existing and new projects and for general corporate use.
In the fiscal year ended 31 March 2012 (“FY2011/12"), the Company
repurchased from the market a portion of the senior notes with nominal
value of US$9 million. In October 2012, the Company further issued
senior notes due in October 2017 with a nominal value of US$125 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$975 million) at a coupon rate of 13.5%
per annum for the purpose of funding its properties under development
and properties planned for future development, and refinancing a portion
of its existing debt and for general corporate purposes. In January 2014,
the Company issued senior notes due in January 2019 with a nominal
value of US$400 million (equivalents approximately HK$3,120 million) at a
coupon rate of 8.25% per annum for the purpose of redeeming all of the
outstanding senior notes due in January 2016 and for general corporate
purposes. In February 2014, US$241 million senior notes due in January
2016 were fully redeemed. As at 31 March 2014, the carrying value of
the Group’s senior notes was HK$4,056.8 million.
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In April 2013, the Group issued convertible notes due in April 2018 with
a principal amount of HK$975 million at a coupon rate of 6.5% per
annum for the purpose of funding its properties under development and
properties planned for future development, and for refinancing a portion
of its existing debt, and for general corporate purposes. As at 31 March
2014, the carrying value of the Group’s convertible notes was HK$1,009.4
million.

In May 2014, the Group completed the issuance of the first tranche of
the PRC medium-term notes in the national inter-bank market in the PRC
with total principal amount of RMB1 billion with a maturity period of 5
years and at an interest rate of 7.5% per annum. The proceeds thereof
are intended to be used for repaying existing short-term bank loans of the
Group.

Gearing Ratio
The Group's gearing ratio (net debt divided by total equity) was 24% as at
31 March 2014 and 32% as at 31 March 2013.

Net Current Assets and Current Ratio

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had net current assets of HK$5,798.7
million (31 March 2013: HK$3,053.1 million) at a current ratio of 1.24
(31 March 2013: 1.20).

Contingent Liabilities

The Group has provided guarantees with respect to banking facilities
granted by certain banks in connection with mortgage loans entered
into by purchasers of the Group's trade centers and residential properties
and bank loans entered into by lessees of the Group’s residential and
commercial properties. As at 31 March 2014, the guarantees amounted
to HK$3,741.0 million (31 March 2013: HK$1,366.4 million). The
guarantees granted to purchasers will be released when the purchasers
obtain building ownership certificates, which will then be pledged to the
banks. For leased residential and commercial properties, the guarantees
will be released accordingly along with the repayment of loan principals
by the lessees.

Commitments

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had future capital expenditure
contracted but not yet provided in the amount of HK$5,763.6 million
(31 March 2013: HK$3,636.4 million).
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Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group conducts its business mainly in Renminbi; this includes our
income and expenses, assets and liabilities. During the fiscal year under
review, the exchange rate of Renminbi to HK dollars and US dollars
remained stable. The Group’s management believes that the fluctuation of
the Renminbi will not have a significant impact on the Group's operations.
The Group has not issued any financial instruments for hedging purposes.

Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiary and Associated
Company

Except for the acquisition of HOBA Furnishing in December 2013
and the acquisition of the remaining equity capital of CSC Xi‘an from
non-controlling interests in March 2014, the Group had no material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and associated companies during
the fiscal year under review.

Land for Projects and Restriction on Sales

The Group signs project agreements with local governments prior to the
development of all projects in order to outline the blueprints of relevant
projects in the area. These agreements generally set out the intended size
and use of land. However, the acquisition of land, actual land area and
other land restrictions are subject to the relevant regulations and local
government procedures involving public tender, auction and listing. The
actual area of the land acquired and other relevant conditions are subject
to these procedures.

The progress of the land acquisition and project development depends
on the progress of the Group’s planning and construction of the relevant
projects, as well as the procedures and time required for each of these
procedural formalities as determined by the different local government
departments, including the approval for land use quotas, the requisition
and planning of land, changes in land use, and the evaluation and
valuation process prior to the procedures of public tender, auction and
listing. As the time taken and requirements for such procedures vary in
different places, as do the formalities and time that the Group requires
to apply for certificates for different projects, the Group adjusts the
development of each project accordingly. In view of its substantial land
bank and greater flexibility in project planning, the Group believes such
circumstances have little impact on its development as a whole.

China South City Holdings Limited ZERF3HIZREGR A T
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEE W& (&)

Pursuant to certain land grant contracts signed by CSC Shenzhen, the
saleable GFA of CSC Shenzhen properties built on these parcels of land
is limited to 30% of the total buildable GFA. Pursuant to certain land
grant contracts signed by CSC Nanchang and CSC Nanning in 2010, the
saleable GFA of trade centers and storage facilities built on these parcels
of land are limited to 60% of the total buildable GFA. This restriction does
not apply to the properties built for residential, commercial and other
uses. Pursuant to certain land grant contracts signed by CSC Hefei in
May 2013, June 2013 and April 2014, the saleable GFA of trade centers
built on these parcels of land are limited to 50% of the total buildable
GFA. This restriction does not apply to the properties built for residential,
commercial and other uses. Except for the conditions mentioned above,
there is no restriction on sales of the land acquired by the Group. The
Group holds and builds the properties with restrictions for leasing and
self-use.

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had a workforce of approximately 6,440
people, including approximately 6,280 people directly employed by the
Group and approximately 160 people employed by our joint venture.
The number of the Group's staff increased by 72.7% from 3,730 as at
31 March 2013. The Group aims to recruit, retain and develop competent
individuals who are committed to the Group’s long-term success and
growth. Remunerations and other benefits of employees are reviewed
annually in response to both market conditions and trends, and are
based on qualifications, experience, responsibilities and performance. In
addition to basic salaries and other staff benefits, discretionary bonuses
and share options may be awarded to employees who display outstanding
performance and contributions to the Group. During the fiscal year under
review, the Company granted 234,300,000 share options to certain
Directors, independent non-executive Directors and employees.

MEEE MRS BIBEFIERRBEITNE T L
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PROJECT PORTFOLIO

HAAS

Properties held for sale/finance lease

FEHE/RMEREYRE

Project site
Group's area Approx. GFA  Completion
Project Location Interest (sg. m.) Description (sg.m.) Year
HEEHERE BREEEE
BH bk rEEER (E7K) RE (FAK) BRIEH
China South City Shenzhen  No. 1 Hua Nan Main Road, 100% 1,060,000 Phase | trade centers 5900 2004
Y Pinghu, Longgang District, —BRZ 50
Shenzhen, China
RE RS MR EE T Phase Il residential facilities 9,500 2008
ERAE—R “HEERESE
Phase Il commercial and other
supporting facilities
“HmEREMEERE
— Warehouse 43,900 2008
— R
— Office tower 3,500 2010
— e
Phase Il trade centers 1,300 2009
ZHRGF
Phase lll commercial and other
supporting facilities
—HEEREMEERE
— Office tower 17,000 2012-2013
— o
Phase Il trade centers 4900 2013
ZHRSFL
Phase Il residential facilities 17,900 2013

China South City Holdings Limited ZERF3HIZREGR A T
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Project Portfolio (Continued)
HBEMAS ()

Properties held for sale/finance lease

HEHE/RMEBREYE

Project site
Group's area Approx. GFA  Completion
Project Location Interest (sg. m.) Description (sg.m.) Year
R G ER BRRERR

R e AEEER (FHK) BB (FHK) BRIEH
China South City Nanchang ~ No. 1, Huannan Avenue, 100% 1,534,000 Phase | trade centers 30,100 2012, 2014
HEERA Honggutan New District, —HIZ SN

Nanchang City,

Jiangxi Province, China Phase | residential facilities 2,200 2012

MEDIAE R EMANENR —HEERERE

ERRE-R
China South City Nanning No. 56, Shajing Avenue, 100% 890,000 Phase | trade centers 249,400 2012
HEERN Jiangnan District, —BR 550

Nanning City, Guangxi

Zhuang Autonomous Region, Phase | residential facilities 225,200 2013

China — TR ERE

hEEALR R RREED

TR @D HRE56%E
China South City Xi’an No. 8, Port Avenue, Xi'an 100% 947,000 Phase | trade centers 321,800 2013
FLZERY, International Trade & Logistics —HZ S0

Park, Xi'an City,

Shaanxi Province,

China

hEREEERD

AREREBR

AHAESH
China South City Zhengzhou  Longhu Town, Xinzheng City, 100% 1,686,000 Phase | trade centers 477,400 2014
i ey Zhengzhou City, Henan Province, —HZ SR

China

o B 8 N R

B
China South City Hefei Fanhua Avenue, Tachua 100% 1,356,000 Phase | trade centers 130,300 2014
SRR Industrial Park, Feixi County of — i S

Hefei City, Auhui Province, China
REZHE S ETEREEIE
SN
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Project Portfolio (Continued)
HBEMAS ()

Properties for Investment

U
Group's Approx. GFA®M
Project Location Interest  Description (sg.m.)  Lease Term
BRREERO
HH bk rEEER AR (ERK)  BEREH
China South City Shenzhen ~ No. 1 Hua Nan Main Road, 100%  Phase | trade centers 167,100  Medium Term Lease
RYER Pinghu, Longgang District, —HRSH0 hERR Y
Shenzhen, China
RERYI MR R Phase | commercial and other
THERRE—R supporting facilities
—HEE R E MR ERE
— Business centers 22,400  Medium Term Lease
— BB HERZZA
— Hotel properties 32,100  Medium Term Lease
— BENE R4
Phase Il trade centers 352,800  Medium Term Lease
ZHRSF HERZ2A
Phase Il commercial and other
supporting facilities
ZHEE R E MR ERE
— Office tower 15,100  Medium Term Lease
— g A
— Shopping plaza 15,200  Medium Term Lease
— &% R4
Phase IIl trade centers 95,100  Medium Term Lease
ZHRSF FERZZA
Phase lll commercial and other
supporting facilities
HEE R MR ERE
— Office tower 4400  Medium Term Lease
— g R4
— Residential properties 32,100  Medium Term Lease
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Project Portfolio (Continued)

HEAS (&)

Properties for Investment

BREWMZE

Group's Approx. GFA®M
Project Location Interest  Description (sg.m.)  Lease Term
BHRERFD
L] bk rEEEE RA (FHXK) ZH5FH
China South City Nanning No. 56 Shajing Avenue, 100%  Phase | trade centers 492,100  Medium Term Lease
BEER Jiangnan District, Nanning City, —HRSH0 HERZZA
Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous
Region, China
BRI RREED
TRRY H RES65R
China South City Nanchang ~ No. 1 Huannan Avenue, 100%  Phase | trade centers 46,000  Medium Term Lease
HEEMN Honggutan New District, —HRGH0 FEIRY
Nanchang City, Jiangxi Province,
China
MBS EMANENR
EHAET
China South City Harbin Tuan Jie Town, Daowei District, 100%  Phase | trade centers 349,000  Medium Term Lease
RREEEN Harbin City, —BR 50 HEEA
Heilongjiang Province,
China
REREIERRATENR
Bl
Note 1:  The approximate GFA does not include the area of undergound facilities. WaE1 : MAEEEETREMERERE -
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Project Portfolio (Continued)
HBEMAS ()

Properties under Development — with Land use Rights Certificates

BREDYE-RELHERERS

Approx. Estimated
Group's  Project site Approx. GFA under completion
Project/Location Interest areal”) GFA®@  Description construction®  Stage of completion calendar year
(sq. m.) (sq. m.) (sq. m.)
BRERR #R
BR/EH rEBER BERY EBEER0 AR EEREERY TAKR BiRIEE
(F5%) (FHK) (FHX)
China South City Shenzhen 100% 1,060,000 2,133,000 a.  Warehouse and 270,000 Foundation work and 2014-2015
RYIEmH, other supporting facilities superstructure in progress
No. 1 Hua Nan Main Road, Pinghu, REBREMEE WEATRREETRENT
Longgang District, Shenzhen, China
RERYMERETH b.  Remaining portions - Planning -
ERAE-H BTEH e
China South City Nanning 100% 890,000 2,480,000 a.  Trade centers, residential, commercial, 765,000 Foundation work and 2014-2015
BEZEY warehouse and supporting facilities superstructure in progress
No. 56, Shajing Avenue, Jiangnan RgRb - FE - BE ARREMEE WETER FETRETTR
District, Nanning City, Guangxi R
Zhuang Autonomous Region, China
hEER RS AR ER b. Remaining portions - Planning -
ITREDHAES 5 BTEH e
China South City Nanchang 100% 1,534,000 3,529,000 a.  Trade centers, residential, commercial, 853,000 Foundation work and 2014-2015
EEER 2 warehouse and supporting facilities superstructure in progress
No. 1, Huannan Avene, XL HE BE AHREMEE WATRR FETRETT
Honggutan New District, B
Nanchang City, Jiangxi Province,
China b. Remaining portions - Planning -
FEIREHEMIAENE AN HRElT
EN i
China South City Xi'an 100% 947,000 2,506,000 a.  Trade centers, commercial, warehouse and 737,900  Foundation work and 2014-2015
BREHN other supporting facilties superstructure in progress
No.8, Port Avenue, Xi’an International Rl % ERREMEERS WEATRREETRENT
Trade & Logistics Park, Xi'an City,
Shaanxi Province, China b. Remaining portions - Planning -
FERBERRTERERERE BTEH e
BIAES 5
China South City Harbin 100% 821,000 2,475,000 a.  Trade centers, residential, commercial, 1,232,600  Foundation work and 2014-2015
REEERY warehouse and other supporting facilities superstructure in progress
Tuan Jie Town, Daowei District, XL HE BE AHREMEE WEATRRFETRENT
Harbin City, Heilongjiang Province, China Bl
HEREIERAETENERREE
b, Remaining portions - Planning -
BTEH e
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Project Portfolio (Continued)
HEAS (&)

Properties under Development — with Land use Rights Certificates

BREDYE-RELHERERS

Approx. Estimated
Group's  Project site Approx. GFA under completion
Project/Location Interest areal”) GFA®@  Description construction®  Stage of completion calendar year
(sq. m.) (sq. m.) (sq. m.)
BRERR )
BR/EH rEBER BERY EBEER0 AR EEREERY TARR BiARIEE
(F5%) (FHK) (FHX)
6. China South City Zhengzhou 100% 1,686,000 4,215,000 a.  Trade centers, residential, commercial, 1,499,200  Foundation work and 2014-2015
PEZp) warehouse and other supporting facilities superstructure in progress
Longhu Town, Xinzheng City, ReHL T BE  ARRHMERE WETRR FETREND
Zhengzhou City, Henan Province, Bl
China
REAREEN ST b.  Remaining portions - Planning -
EifE BTEH G
7. China South City Hefei 100% 1,356,000 3,941,000 a.  Trade centers, residential, commercial, 1,209,400  Foundation work and 2014-2015
SRERY warehouse and other supporting facilities superstructure in progress
Fanhua Avenue, Taohua Industrial XL HE BE EHREMEE WEATRL FETRENT
Park, Feixi County of Hefei City, Auhui B
Province, China
FEZHERETER b.  Remaining portions - Planning -
WEIEAZERE BTHH G
8. China South City Chongging 100% 375,000 749,000 a.  Trade centers and other supporting 500,000 Foundation work 2015-2016
EEZEY facilities WETE
No. 1 Dongcheng Avenue, Nanpeng, RePOREMEERE
Banan District, Chongging
Municipality, China b. Remaining portions - Planning -
PEERTEEREZRAAEIR BTHH e

Note 1: The Group has acquired these parcels of land as at 31 March 2014.
Note 2: The approximate GFA does not include the area of underground facilities.
Note 3: The approximate GFA under construction includes the area of underground

facilities.

MRET + ANEEMN2014563A31 BB REEZ SR -
MisE2 © BEAREEBE B IEHK RS o
MEE3 « BRI IR RERE R KREmE -
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Financial Summary

BATEEER

Year ended 31 March

BZ3RANBLEE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THET THR THI THT
RESULTS £
Revenue A 13,468,322 7,488,061 3,670,767 2,234,033 1,570,229
Gross Profit EF 6,547,164 4,176,695 2,236,096 1,333,048 982,707
Profit before tax RN 6,168,828 4,473,136 3,305,515 2,452,776 2,112,991
Income tax expenses FremEEx (2,472,478) (1,606,468) (1,257,959) (908,658) (785,345)
Profit for the year NEEFE 3,696,350 2,866,668 2,047,562 1,544,118 1,327,646
Attributable to: THIEHER
Owners of the parent SARERA 3,494,481 2,749,864 2,070,708 1,552,455 1,329,593
Non-controlling interests IFERER 201,869 116,804 (23,146) (8,337) (1,947)
Core net profit attributable to BRRIEB AEEGZOF
owners of the parent* pilhed 2,677,696 1,776,382 922,641 542,339 410,692
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Non-current assets FERBEE 29,918,774 23,917,451 17,421,439 15,398,215 11,379,165
Current assets MBEE 30,042,168 18,427,574 13,244,904 5,985,682 4,920,603
Total assets AEBE 59,960,942 42,345,025 30,666,343 21,383,897 16,299,768
Current liabilities TEaE 24,243,429 15,374,448 10,894,500 3,920,948 2,853,708
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 15,573,368 10,927,816 6,776,552 6,844,913 4,419,375
Total liabilities AERSE 39,816,797 26,302,264 17,671,052 10,765,861 7,273,083
Equity attributable to owners BRAFGEE A
of parent T 19,969,505 15,853,253 12,938,680 10,540,914 8,913,024
Non-controlling interests EEE 174,640 189,508 56,611 77,122 113,661
Total equity eyt 20,144,145 16,042,761 12,995,291 10,618,036 9,026,685
Earnings per share attributable ~BERBARZER
to ordinary equity holders BRBEAZ
of the parent SREF
Basic HEAR HK55.71 cents  HK45.62 cents  HK34.58 cents  HK25.95cents  HK25.32 cents
] gl il &l L
Diluted #E HK47.93 cents  HK45.60 cents ~ HK34.51 cents ~ HK25.80 cents  HK25.10 cents
o] gl B bl pAll

* Represents the net profit attributable to owners of the parent excluding fair  *  RERFBEMELATERE - DEMBRFKE R

value gains on investment properties, gain on disposal of subsidiaries and ZEWEMEBABREYE TEeRITAEAFERSE
their respective related tax effects, fair value gain on derivative financial MEER201MFRE BENERATHE AREFFE -

instrument and loss on redemption of the 2011 Notes.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Key Management

ESRTEEEERE

Executive Directors

Mr. CHENG Chung Hing, aged 53, is our Co-Chairman and an executive
Director. He is a co-founder of our Group and has been a Director
since 2 August 2002. He is primarily responsible for formulating the
overall strategies and assessing the performance of the Group as well
as providing leadership for the Board. He has more than 31 years of
management experience in the manufacturing, wholesale and distribution
businesses. Mr. Cheng has been awarded the “Young Industrialist Awards
of Hong Kong 1997” from the Federation of Hong Kong Industries, the
Distinguished International Entrepreneur of the Year Award 1997 from
San Francisco State University and the Chinese Outstanding Entrepreneur
Award 2008 from the China Enterprise Confederation and the China
Enterprise Directors Association. Mr. Cheng is the vice chairman of the
China Chamber of International Commerce, a standing member of the
Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference and a member of the 3rd, the 4th and
the 5th Shenzhen Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference. Mr. Cheng is also presently the foundation honorary
chairman of Gem and Jewelry Committee of China General Chamber of
Commerce, a standing member of the China Enterprise Confederation
and the China Enterprise Directors Association, vice president of the China
Federation of Logistics and Purchasing, vice president of the Guangxi
Zhuang Autonomous Region Federation of Industry and Commerce, vice
president of the Guangxi Overseas Friendship Association, vice president
of the China Chamber of International Commerce Shenzhen, chairman of
the Shenzhen Logistics and Supply Chain Management Association, vice
chairman of the Federation of Shenzhen Industries, honorary life president
of the Hong Kong Gemstone Manufacturers’ Association Limited,
honorary chairman of Zhejiang Pearl Trade Association and member of
the Shenzhen Overseas Friendship Association. Mr. Cheng is the chairman
and non-executive director of Man Sang International Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 938). He was also the director
of China Metro-Rural Holdings Limited (formerly known as Man Sang
International (B.V.l.) Limited), a company listed on the New York Stock
Exchange MKT (ticker symbol: CNR) until his resignation effective from 5
December 2013. Mr. Cheng is a younger brother of Mr. Cheng Tai Po, a
non-executive Director.

HITES
ERFAELSEE - 53 MR EERNITES - BRAE
EMAHAZ— B2002F8A2HEZTAES
TEARREREBNBERE R ARERENE
BWEEEEE WERERNESHERTE
HEBNFEELR WETERBIEASME
1997 FBBEFTFLERE B=FmMIMNIKRERE
Distinguished International Entrepreneur of the Year
Award 1997 » LAREHRBIPEBS S RPECERRD
BIREE2008F FEIEFBERE - LA KT =
FgElgRk  PREARBRHRESEEAMLEKERE
ZEgRZURFTREARB A A EEERE AT
FZE FHERFEFLEZESZEE - FREEBITAT
EEEmeeREamntaesiagek  PED
e hTECERNEEBEE - PEYIRER
EHagRlek EBEAUKERARIAKEER &
mEEEERE R AIEREgEE R  RIIH
mEfEEEREReeR  AIILEEgSRIER
EREOREEKREEGR MIERKRTERS
BEERIRNNEINSHEGEE - BEERRERRKR
BRAR(—RKREBHMAERHABER DG ([ FHH
P ER ETEIRA] - BORSE - 938) VL fEFRIE
#ITEE IR AChina Metro-Rural Holdings Limited
(gifMan Sang International (B.V.l.) Limited) (—Z#
HHZZAMKT EE R F] - IRHASE - CNR)EIE
=E2013F12A5HBHER I - BAEERENTES
BRMFE I -
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Biographical Details of Directors and Key Management (Continued)

ESERTECEEERE (E)

Mr. LEUNG Moon Lam, aged 58, is the Chief Executive Officer and
an executive Director. He is a co-founder of our Group and has been a
Director since 1 June 2002. He is primarily responsible for the execution
of the Board’s decision and the overall management of the Group. He
has more than 31 years of management experience in the garment
manufacturing, wholesale and distribution businesses. Mr. Leung received
the Chinese Outstanding Entrepreneur Award 2008 from the China
Enterprise Confederation and the China Enterprise Directors Association.
Mr. Leung was a member of the 2nd, 3rd and the 4th Shenzhen
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference and
a member of the Liaoning Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference. He was also the chairman of the 7th Shenzhen
Textile Industry Association Committee. Mr. Leung was appointed as
a member of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference in February 2013. Mr. Leung is also presently
a member of the Consultative Committee on Economic and Trade Co-
operation between Hong Kong and the Mainland, the vice chairman of
the Jiangxi Chinese Overseas Friendship Association, an honorary chairman
of the Shenzhen Longgang Charity Association, the honorary professor
of Business of Hang Seng School of Commerce and the president of
the Federation of Hong Kong Shenzhen Associations. Mr Leung is the
chairman of Wetter (China) Limited and Kings Faith International Limited.

Professor XU Yang, aged 75, is an executive Director. Professor Xu
joined our Group as a senior consultant in September 2002, and has
been a Director since 4 February 2008. He is primarily responsible for the
general development direction, operational strategy, market promotion,
and governmental relations of the Group. Professor Xu has over 24 years
of experience in capital operations management, focusing on optimizing
allocation and managing the use of capital in business operations. From
1992 to 2000, Professor Xu was the chairman of Shenzhen Investment
Limited (previously known as Shum Yip Investment Limited, which is
listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, stock code:
604). He was the vice chairman of the 2nd Shenzhen Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, deputy chief secretary
of the Shenzhen Municipal Government and director of the Shenzhen
Economic Development Bureau. Professor Xu is currently the permanent
honorary chairman of the Federation of Shenzhen Industries and the
honorary chairman of Shenzhen Enterprise Confederation and Shenzhen
Entrepreneur Association. Professor Xu graduated from Harbin Institute
of Technology in 1964. He completed the Stanford executive program
at Stanford University in 1988. He also holds the qualification of senior
engineer.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Key Management (Continued)

ESERTECEEERE (E)

Non-Executive Directors

Dr. MA Kai Cheung, s8s, B88S, aged 72, is our Co-Chairman and
a non-executive Director. He is a co-founder of our Group and has
been a Director since 2 August 2002. He is primarily responsible for
advising on the formulation of the Group’s general business models and
development strategies and the resolution of major issues. Dr. Ma has
more than 42 years of management experience in garment distribution
and manufacturing businesses. Dr. Ma was awarded a Bronze Bauhinia
Star (BBS) and a Silver Bauhinia Star (SBS) by the Government of Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region in 2003 and 2009 respectively.
He was also a member of the 9th, 10th and 11th National Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. Dr. Ma is
currently the permanent honorary president of Shenzhen Overseas
Chinese International Association, the permanent honorary president of
Hong Kong Chiu Chow Chamber of Commerce Limited, the chairman
of Federation of Hong Kong Guangdong Community Organizations, the
permanent honorary president of Hong Kong & Kowloon Chiu Chow
Public Association and the permanent honorary chairman of Federation
of Hong Kong Chiu Chow Community Organizations. Dr. Ma received
an honorary doctoral degree in philosophy from the Morrison University
in the United States in 2004. He received a fellowship from the Asian
Knowledge Management Association in 2008. Dr. Ma is also the Honorary
Chairman of Carrianna Group Holdings Company Limited (formerly
known as Tak Sing Alliance Holdings Limited), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 00126).

Mr. SUN Kai Lit Cliff, B8s, Jp, aged 60, is a non-executive Director. He is
a co-founder of our Group and has been a Director since 2 August 2002.
He is primarily responsible for advising on the formulation of the Group’s
general business models, development strategies and the resolution of
major issues. Mr. Sun is an associate of the Institute of Industrial Engineers
of Ohio and has over 34 years of management experience in the
businesses of wholesale distribution and manufacturing of kitchenware
and other metal and plastic products. He was appointed as Justice of
the Peace (JP) and was awarded a Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) by the
Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in 2003 and
2006 respectively. At present, Mr. Sun is a member of the 11th Zhejiang
Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. He is
also the honorary chairman of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries,
the honorary chairman of The Hong Kong Exporters’ Association, the
honorary chairman of the Hong Kong Q Mark Council, the president
of the Hong Kong Plastics Manufacturers Association Limited and the
honorary founding president and the executive president of Shenzhen
Overseas Chinese International Association. Mr. Sun is the executive
director of Kinox Enterprises Limited and Kin Hip Metal and Plastic
Factory Limited. He is currently an independent non-executive director of
Ming Fai International Holdings Limited (stock code: 3828) and Ka Shui
International Holdings Ltd., (stock code: 822), both of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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Dr. MA Wai Mo, aged 69, is a non-executive Director. He is a co-
founder of our Group and has been a Director of the Company since 2
August 2002. He is primarily responsible for advising on the formulation
of the Group’s general business models, development strategies and the
resolution of major issues. He has more than 35 years of management
experience in the printing and packaging, manufacturing, wholesale
and distribution businesses. Dr. Ma was a member of the 3rd and the
4th Shenzhen Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, the chairman of the 13th, 14th, 16th and 17th Hong
Kong Corrugated Paper Manufacturers’ Association. Currently, he is
a member of the Committee of Foreign and Overseas Chinese Affairs,
the Standing Committee of Shenzhen Municipal People’s Congress, the
honorary chairman of the 2nd and 3rd Chaoyang District Shantou City
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
the vice chairman of the 7th general committee of the China Packaging
Federation, the honorary chairman of the 7th and 8th Shenzhen
Packaging Association, the vice president of the 7th and the 8th
Guangdong Printing Association, the executive vice president of the
Guangdong Overseas Chinese Enterprises Association, the honorary
founding president and the executive vice president of Shenzhen Overseas
Chinese International Association, and the chairman of the Shenzhen
Graphic Society and Shenzhen Longgang Cultural Industry Association.
Dr. Ma is also the chairman of Luk Ka International Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of Luk Ka Overseas Investments Limited. Dr. Ma was
awarded the World’s Outstanding Chinese in 2005 and received an
honorary doctor of science degree from Armstrong University in the same
year. Dr. Ma was awarded the Bisheng Printing Outstanding Achievement
Award by the Printing Technology Association of China in 2013 and the
Global Outstanding Chinese Award by the Global Outstanding Chinese
Association in 2014.

Mr. CHENG Tai Po, aged 62, is a non-executive Director. He has been
a Director since 30 April 2010 and is primarily responsible for advising on
the formulation of the Group’s general business models, development
strategies and the resolution of major issues. Mr. Cheng has over 31
years' experience in manufacturing, wholesale and distribution businesses.
He is a board member of the Zhanjiang Ocean University, China, a general
committee member of the Hong Kong Jewelry Manufacturers’ Association
and the chairman of Hong Kong Overseas Puning Sheshan Clansmen
Association.
chairman of Man Sang International Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 938) and the
director and vice-chairman of China Metro-Rural Holdings Limited (formerly
known as Man Sang International (B.V.1.) Limited), a company listed on
the New York Stock Exchange MKT (ticker symbol: CNR). Mr. Cheng is an
elder brother of Mr. Cheng Chung Hing, the Co-Chairman and executive
Director and the controlling shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Cheng is also the executive director and deputy
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Mr. LIN Ching Hua, aged 41, has been a non-executive Director since
28 June 2014. He is primarily responsible for advising on the formulation
of the Group’s general business models, development strategies and the
resolution of major issues. He joined Tencent Group (“Tencent Group”
includes Tencent, shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange with stock code no. 700, and its subsidiaries)
as the General Manager of Strategic Development Department since
April 2013, with responsibilities mainly to establish the strategic platform
of Tencent, to formulate the business development strategies of the
Tencent Group, and to lead the research and development of various
business models in the Tencent Group and the business cooperation
with external strategic partners who the Tencent Group has equity
investments. Mr. Lin has taken a crucial and leading role in promoting
Tencent's recent strategic initiatives, including Weixin commercialization,
important strategic investments and cooperations, and the business
planning and development in internet finance. Before joining Tencent,
Mr. Lin was a partner at McKinsey & Company, Inc and General Manager
of its branch in Taiwan. He mainly served clients and performed research
in technology sector, including hi-tech manufacturing, internet service,
telecommunication and media during his 12 years with McKinsey &
Company, Inc. His various research received wide coverage in a number
of Business and Financial media in China. Before joining McKinsey, Mr.
Lin worked at Deloitte Consulting Inc., Taiwan Office, as a consultant. He
received his MBA degree from Harvard Business School in 2001.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LEUNG Kwan Yuen Andrew, GBS, SBS, JP, aged 63, has been an
independent non-executive Director since 4 September 2009. He has more
than 34 years of management experience in the textile manufacturing,
wholesale and distribution businesses. Mr. Leung is a member of the
Industrial (First) Functional Constituency of the Legislative Council of
Hong Kong, also a member of the National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference. Mr. Leung is currently the
honorary chairman of Textile Council of Hong Kong, a council member
of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council, the honorary president of
the Federation of Hong Kong Industries, a fellow of The Textiles Institute
as well as The Clothing and Footwear Institute in the United Kingdom. In
addition, Mr. Leung is the chairman of Sun Hing Knitting Factory Limited.
He is also an independent non-executive director of Dah Sing Banking
Group Limited (stock code: 2356) and Harbour Centre Development
Limited (stock code: 51), both are companies listed on the Main Board
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Leung was an independent non-
executive director of Meadville Holdings (BVI) Limited (formerly known as
“Meadville Holdings Limited”), a company withdrawing the listing of its
shares from the Hong Kong Stock Exchange effective 19 April 2010 (stock
code: 3313), until his resignation effective from 1 June 2010.
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Mr. LI Wai Keung, aged 57, has been an independent non-executive
Director since 4 September 2009. Mr. Li has more than 36 years of
experience in financial management. Mr. Li graduated from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic and holds a master degree in Business Administration
from the University of East Asia, Macau, currently known as the University
of Macau. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Li is the executive director and chief financial officer of GDH Limited,
executive director of Guangdong Land Holdings Limited (formerly known
as Kingway Brewery Holdings Limited) (“GDL"), non-executive director
of Guangdong Investment Limited (“GDI”) and an independent non-
executive director of Shenzhen Investment Limited (“SZ Investment”)
and Hans Energy Company Limited (“Hans"). GDL, GDI, SZ Investment
and Hans are companies listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange (stock codes: 124, 270, 604 and 554 respectively). He is
a director of Shenzhen City Airport (Group) Company Limited, the vice
chairman of the Council of the Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra Limited, a
member of China Overseas Friendship Association and the vice chairman
and secretary of the Financial and Accounting Affairs Steering Committee
of the Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises Association. Mr. Li had worked
for Henderson Land Development Company Limited (stock code: 12) and
was an independent non-executive director of Sun Century Group Limited
(formerly known as Hong Long Holdings Limited) (stock code: 1383) until
27 May 2011.

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung Stephen, Jr, aged 67, has been an independent
non-executive Director since 11 April 2011. Mr. Hui has over 43 years of
experience in the securities and investment industry. He has served as a
council member and vice chairman of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
a member of the Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Commission, a director of the Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited, a member of the Listing Committee of the Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited, an appointed member of the Securities
and Futures Appeal Tribunal, a member of the Standing Committee on
Company Law Reform and an appointed member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants Investigation Panel A for a
number of years. He was also a member of the Committee on Real Estate
Investment Trusts of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission
and a member of Government “Appointees” (independent member) of
Appeal Panel of the Travel Industry Council of Hong Kong. Mr. Hui was
appointed by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region a Justice of the Peace (JP) in 2004 and was also appointed as a
member of the Zhuhai Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference in 2006. He also serves as a non-
executive director of Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (stock code:
590) and an independent non-executive director of Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited (stock code: 388), Zhuhai Holdings Investment Group
Limited (formerly known as Jiuzhou Development Company Limited) (stock
code: 908), Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1212),
Chun Wo Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 711), Gemdale
Properties and Investment Corporation Limited (formerly known as Frasers
Property (China) Limited) (stock code: 535) and SINOPEC Engineering
(Group) Co., Limited (stock code: 2386), whose shares are listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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Mr. YUNG Wing Ki Samuel, s8s, MH, JP, aged 55, has been an
independent non-executive Director since 1 March 2013. Mr. Yung has
over 32 years of experience in insurance sector. He was awarded an
EMBA from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology and has
attained certain professional qualifications, including Certified Financial
Planner, Registered Financial Consultant, fellow Chartered Financial
Practitioner, Certified Manager of Financial Advisor and Chartered
Insurance Agency Manager. Mr. Yung is currently an executive district
director of AIA International Limited. He was also an independent non-
executive director of Group Sense (International) Limited, a company the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (stock code: 601) until his retirement as independent non-
executive director effective from 11 September 2013. Mr. Yung is also
presently a member of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, the founding president of Hong Kong
Professionals and Senior Executives Association, the chairman of Betting
and Lotteries Commission and the chairman or committee member of
several Government committees and non-governmental organizations.

Mr. Yung was elected the “Ten Qutstanding Young Persons Award” in
1994. He was also a Municipal Commission Standing member of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of Jilin, Standing
Committee member of All-China Youth Federation, member of
Commission on Strategic Development of the HKSAR, member of Central
Policy Unit, chairman of Hong Kong United Youth Association, chairman
of The Outstanding Young Persons’ Association, director & chairman
of International Committee of General Agents & Managers Association
International, co-chairman of the Asia Pacific Financial Services Association
and president of The Life Underwriters Association of Hong Kong and
president of General Agents and Managers Association of Hong Kong.

Key Management

Mr. FUNG Sing Hong Stephen, aged 49, is our Group's chief financial
officer. Mr. Fung joined our Group in July 2006, and is responsible for
the overall financial management of the Group, formulating corporate
financing and merger and acquisition strategy, and actuated the strategic
cooperation with Tencent. Mr. Fung graduated from the University of
Wales, United Kingdom with a master degree in business administration.
He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Chartered Global Management Accountants. He is
also a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Fung
has more than 21 years of experience in financial management, mergers
and acquisitions, capital markets financing and corporate restructuring.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Fung was an executive director and the
chief financial officer of Guangdong Investment Limited (“GDI"). From
December 2002 to November 2004, Mr. Fung served as an executive
director and the chief financial officer of Guangdong Land Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Kingway Brewery Holdings Limited) (“GDL").
Both GDI and GDL are companies listed on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange (stock codes: 270 and 124, respectively). Mr. Fung
was also a key member of the Guangdong Enterprises (Holdings) Limited
("GDE") restructuring team and has been extensively involved in the
US$5.3 billion debt restructuring of GDE.
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Ms. TSE Man Yu, aged 43, is the company secretary and the Group’s
deputy chief financial officer. Ms. Tse joined our Group in February 2008.
She assists the chief financial officer in the overall financial management
of the Group and is responsible for merger and acquisition, investor
relations and the company secretarial duties. Ms. Tse graduated from
the City University of Hong Kong with a bachelor of science (honours)
degree in finance. She is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Ms. Tse has more than 18 years of experience in financial
management, mergers and acquisitions, corporate finance and asset
management. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Tse was the assistant chief
financial officer of GDI which is a company listed on the Main Board
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 270). Ms. Tse was an
alternate director of Guangdong Development Fund Limited (“GDF"),
which is a company listed on the London Stock Exchange (code: gdf), and
a director of Guangdong Investment Management Limited, which is the
fund manager of GDF. Ms. Tse had also been a senior corporate finance
executive of Tung Fong Hung (Holdings) Limited (now known as Freeman
Financial Corporation Limited) and Sing Pao Media Group Limited (now
known as China Gamma Group Limited), which were companies listed on
the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock codes: 279 and
164, respectively).

Mr. JIANG Kai, aged 61, is the Group's vice president. He joined our
Group in January 2007, and is responsible for managing construction
projects of the Group, including coordinating the planning and designs,
managing tenders and bids, budgeting, costing and construction
management. Mr. Jiang graduated from the Underground Construction
Faculty of Tongji University in 1982 with a bachelor degree in underground
construction, and holds a qualification of senior engineer. Mr. Jiang has
over 19 years of management experience in the construction industry. Mr.
Jiang had been working for the 1st branch of the Shenzhen Architectural
Design Institute as the chief engineer, Shenzhen Construction Investment
Holdings Ltd. as the manager of the construction department, and
Shenzhen New World Group Co., Ltd. as the group deputy general
manager.
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Ms. JIANG Ling, aged 41, is the Group’s vice president. She joined our
Group in November 2003, and is responsible for the Group's strategic
development, including market research, project planning and public
relations. Ms. Jiang graduated from the Department of Journalism,
Huazhong University of Science and Technology in 1994. She later
completed Advanced Business Management Course at HSBC Business
School, Peking University in 2009 and the postgraduate course in fashion
buying at Hong Kong Institute of Fashion Buying in 2011. She has also
attained the qualification of senior planner from the Ministry of Labor
and Social Security of the People’s Republic of China (which has been
renamed as the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of the
People’s Republic of China). Ms. Jiang has over 13 years of management
experience in the property industry and 3 years of experience in the
media industry. She was the manager of the development department
of Shanghai Chenghuang Temple Fuyoumen Small-Commodities
Market Corporation Limited, the director of Shenzhen Column Editorial
Department, Hong Kong Ta Kung Pao and the general manager of
Shenzhen Tongyuan Nanling Cultural and Creative Park Corporation
Limited.

Mr. Li Sen, aged 41, is the Group’s Vice President. He joined our
group in August 2010, and is responsible for the Group’s operations
and human resources management. He graduated from Wuhan
University of Technology with a degree in engineering and motors
in School of Automotive Engineering. He later completed courses
like business administration, CEO training and study of enterprise
strategic management at the Graduate School at Shenzhen, Tsinghua
University. Mr. Li is expertized in group control, operations management,
consultation and training. Mr. Li was the Human Resources Director of
Shenzhen Good Family Enterprise Co., Ltd and Shenzhen Galaxy Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

Ms. LIU Qiang, aged 44, is the Group's vice president. Ms Liu joined our
Group in December 2007, and is responsible for the Group’s construction
project management, including cost management, tender management
and construction management. Ms. Liu graduated from Wuhan University
of Technology in 1992 with a bachelor degree in science and holds
a qualification of senior engineer. Ms. Liu later passed accounting
professional examination held by Ministry of Personnel of the People’s
Republic of China and became a qualified certified public accountant in
1998. She hence attained the qualification of cost engineer from Ministry
of Personnel and Ministry of Construction of the People’s Republic of
China, certified public valuer from Ministry of Personnel and Ministry
of Finance of the People’s Republic of China and registered consulting
engineer from Ministry of Personnel and National Development and
Reform Commission of the People’s Republic of China in 2000, 2001 and
2004 respectively. Ms. Liu has over 11 years of management experience
in the construction industry. She had worked for Shenzhen Chengxinhang
Engineering Consulation Company Limited.
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Report of the Directors

EEEWSE

The Board has pleasure in presenting this annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the fiscal year ended
31 March 2014.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Group is developing and operating large-
scale integrated logistics and trade centers in China, providing a
comprehensive trading platform of raw materials and finished products
for domestic and international wholesale suppliers, buyers, manufacturers
and distributors. With its unique business model, the Group not only sells
and leases well-designed, high quality trade center units for businesses to
display and sell their products, but also provides trade center occupants
and their customers with a full range of facilities and services such
as E-commerce services, logistics and warehousing services, property
management, offices, residential facilities, convention and exhibition
facilities, hotels, restaurants, banking services, on-site government
services in a bid to offer one-stop convenient supply chain solutions. The
successful business model was first pioneered by CSC Shenzhen and has
been replicated across China such as Nanchang, Nanning, Xi‘an, Harbin,
Zhengzhou, Hefei and Chongging, initially forming a strategic network
covering the Chinese North-South and East-West logistics corridors. At
the same time, through the cooperation with Tencent, the Group is
actively building an 020 business eco-system to facilitate the industrial
upgrade of the occupants. Details of the principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries, joint venture and associates are set out in notes 19 to 21 to
the financial statements respectively.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s results for the fiscal year ended 31 March 2014 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 95 to 214 of this annual
report.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK14.0 cents
per share in respect of FY2013/14 (FY2012/13: HK10.0 cents). Subject to
the approval of the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) at
the AGM to be held on 21 August 2014, the proposed final dividend will
be distributed on or about 11 September 2014 to Shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on 29 August
2014.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 28 August
2014 to 29 August 2014, both days inclusive. In order to be qualified
for the proposed final dividend, all transfer forms accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with the
Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 27 August
2014.
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Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in the section headed “Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity”
statements, respectively.

and in note 37 to the financial

Distributable Reserves

Details of the Company'’s reserves available for distribution as at 31 March
2014, calculated in accordance with the provision of Section 79B of the
old Companies Ordinance (previous Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong
Kong, which was rewritten and superseded with effect from 3 March
2014), amounted to HK$1,277.77 million (31 March 2013: HK$645.34
million), of which HK$967.00 million (31 March 2013: HK$605.36
million), subject to the adjustment with the number of shares which may
be allotted after the date of this report but before the date of book close,
has been proposed as final dividend for the fiscal year under review, are
disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements.

Senior Notes

On 14 January 2011, the Company issued senior notes due January 2016
with a nominal value of US$250 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,950 million) at a coupon rate of 13.5% per annum (“2011 Notes")
for the purpose of financing the development of the existing and new
projects and for general corporate use. In FY2011/12, the Company
cancelled a portion of the 2011 Notes with a nominal value of US$9
million after it was repurchased from the market. On 20 February
2014, the Company has redeemed all the outstanding 2011 Notes in
an aggregate amount of US$241 million at a redemption price equal to
106.750% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid
interest to (but not including) the redemption date. All 2011 Notes were
cancelled and delisted from the official list of the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited then.

On 17 October 2012, the Company issued senior notes due October 2017
with a nominal value of US$125 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$975 million) at a coupon rate of 13.5% per annum for the purpose
of, amongst others, funding its properties under development and
planned for future development (including land grant fees) and for
general corporate purposes.

On 29 January 2014, the Company issued senior notes due January 2019
with a nominal value of US$400 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$3,120 million) at a coupon rate of 8.25% per annum (“2014 Notes")
for the main purpose of, amongst others, to redeem all of the outstanding
2011 Notes of the time, and for general corporate purposes.

Further details of the senior notes are set out in note 32 to the financial
statements.
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Convertible Notes

On 9 April 2013, ASEAN City (BVI) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, issued convertible notes due April 2018 with a nominal
value of HK$975 million at a coupon rate of 6.5% per annum (“Convertible
Notes”) for the purpose of, amongst others, funding its properties under
development and planned for future development (including land grant
fees) and for general corporate purposes. The terms of the Convertible
Notes were amended on 6 March 2014 to synchronize with the improved
terms in 2014 Notes.

Further details of the Convertible Notes are set out in note 34 to the
financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note
14 to the financial statements.

Donations
During the fiscal year under review, to care about the society where the
Group operates its business, the Group made charitable donations totaling
HK$22.5 million (FY2012/13: HK$2.71 million) to various charitable
organizations.

Subsidiaries
Details of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2014 are
set out in note 19 to the financial statements.

Directors
The Directors during the fiscal year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Chung Hing (Co-Chairman)

Mr. Leung Moon Lam (Chief Executive Officer)
Professor Xu Yang

Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Ma Kai Cheung (Co-Chairman)
Mr. Sun Kai Lit Cliff

Dr. Ma Wai Mo

Mr. Cheng Tai Po

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew

Mr. Li Wai Keung

Mr. Hui Chiu Chung Stephen

Mr. Yung Wing Ki Samuel
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In accordance with the Company’s Memorandum of Association and New
Articles of Association (the “Articles”), Mr. Leung Moon Lam, Dr. Ma Kai
Cheung, Mr. Sun Kai Lit Cliff and Mr. Hui Chiu Chung Stephen shall retire
from office and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM. Should there be any Director appointed after the date
of this report but before the date of the forthcoming AGM, according to
the Articles, such Director shall retire from office and be eligible for re-
election at the said AGM.

The Board has received an annual confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Rules governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The Board considers all independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive Directors has entered into service contract with the
Company while each of the non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors has entered into letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years. The service contract and the letter of
appointment may be terminated by either party thereto by giving not less
than one month'’s prior written notice.

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

None of the Directors had a material beneficial interest, whether directly
or indirectly, in any significant contract to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, its holding companies or a subsidiary of its holding
companies was a party during the fiscal year or as at 31 March 2014.

Biographical Information of Directors and

Key Management

The biographical information of the Directors and key management of
the Company is set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Key Management” on pages 57 to 65 of this annual report.
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Enforcement of the Deed of Non-Competition
Pursuant to the deed of non-competition dated 4 September 2009
(“Non-Competition Undertaking”) entered into by each of Mr. Cheng
Chung Hing, Mr. Leung Moon Lam and Mr. Cheng Tai Po, each of them
has undertaken with the Company (for itself and on behalf of each other
member of the Group) that so long as the Company is listed on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and so long as any of:

(i) in respect of Mr. Cheng Chung Hing, he remains as the controlling
shareholder or a director of the Company;

(i) in respect of Mr. Leung Moon Lam, he remains as a director of the
Company;

(i) in respect of Mr. Cheng Tai Po, he remains as the controlling

shareholder of the Company,

that he shall not, and shall procure his associates not to, either alone
or jointly with any other person or entity, or for any other person, firm
or company, or as principal, partner, director, employee, consultant or
agent through any body corporate, partnership, joint venture or other
contractual arrangement, be engaged, invested, or otherwise involved,
whether as a shareholder, director, employee, partner, agent or otherwise,
directly or indirectly, in the carrying on of any business in any form or
manner in China that is in competition or is likely to be in the competition,
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group, unless those business
opportunities have been first offered to the Group upon terms which are
fair and reasonable and the Board has declined such opportunities, in
accordance with the provisions of the Non-Competition Undertaking, Mr.
Cheng Chung Hing, Mr. Leung Moon Lam and Mr. Cheng Tai Po or any
of them or their respective associates may pursue such opportunities.

The Company has received an annual confirmation from Mr. Cheng
Chung Hing, Mr. Cheng Tai Po and Mr. Leung Moon Lam confirming their
compliance with the Non-Competition Undertaking for the fiscal year
ended 31 March 2014. The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed their compliance with the Non-Competition Undertaking during
the fiscal year under review.

Directors’ Emoluments
Particulars of the Directors’ emoluments for the fiscal year ended 31
March 2014 are set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

Save as disclosed above, the Company has received confirmations from
all Directors that none of them have engaged or were interested in any
business which were in competition or were likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group during the fiscal year
under review.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in

Securities

As at 31 March 2014, the interests and short positions of the Directors
in the shares of the Company (the “Shares”), underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the

“SFO")) as recorded in the register maintained by the Company under
section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) were as follows:

Long position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

EERFETHRAEREZES

M201463A31H - EERAR RIS E A ER
(EERFH RSN ([FEHRAEGED ) EXVED)
KRR ARG (TR ]) - BERGD REEEPEESH
ABRNEIMRIBEESF RS GO EIEETFENE
sfft - SRR EMBITAESETESFR HHIZEST
BI(TMZESPRI D) BERE AR 8 REBH R FTHEZR &
KRBT

RAR BN RABRBEROWEF R

Number of Shares
R#
Approximate
percentage of
the Company's
total
Corporate Personal Family Share number of
Name of Directors Class of Shares interest interest interest options Total issued shares®
fEARLH
BT
ROAZHL
Expg R &R AR AR FiERR B @t BAL®
Cheng Chung Hing Ordinary Shares 2,367,180,976" 76,000,000 - - 2,443,180,976 35.37%
LN gl
Cheng Tai Po Ordinary Shares 2,367,180,976” 4,936,000 - - 2372,116,976 34.34%
ElyNd LER
Leung Moon Lam Ordinary Shares/Share options 523,899,770° 57,389,977 2,000,000 120,670,000¢ 703,959,747 10.19%
P Lidk/ BRE
Ma Kai Cheung Ordinary Shares 138,966,649 - - - 138,966,649 2.01%
SNE LiEk
Ma Wai Mo Ordinary Shares 126,197,662° - - - 126,197,662 1.82%
HER EER
Sun Kai Lit Cliff Ordinary Shares 125,241,662" - - - 125,241,662 1.81%
7EL LEk
Xu Yang Ordinary Shares/Share options - 15,996,000 - 10,000,000% 25,996,000 0.37%
iHa EER/ ERE
Li Wai Keung Ordinary Shares/Share options - 7,500,000 - 2,000,000 9,500,000 0.13%
Flag LR/ EhE
Mr. Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew  Share options - - - 2,000,000 2,000,000 0.02%
REE RRE
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung Stephen  Share options - - - 2,000,000 2,000,000 0.02%
FHRA RRE
Mr. Yung Wing Ki Samuel Share options - - - 2,000,000 2,000,000 0.02%
Ak BEE
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Notes:

)

3

)

Mr. Cheng Chung Hing is interested in 50% and 58.7% of the respective
issued share capital of Accurate Gain Developments Limited and Proficient
Success Limited which in turn holds 1,339,913,759 and 1,027,267,217
Shares respectively and is therefore deemed to be interested in an aggregate
of 2,367,180,976 Shares of the aforesaid. Mr. Cheng is a director of each
of Accurate Gain Developments Limited and Proficient Success Limited. Mr.
Cheng Chung Hing is the younger brother of Mr. Cheng Tai Po.

Mr. Cheng Tai Po is interested in 50% and 41.3% in the respective issued
share capital of Accurate Gain Developments Limited and Proficient Success
Limited which in turn holds 1,339,913,759 and 1,027,267,217 Shares
respectively and is therefore deemed to be interested in an aggregate of
2,367,180,976 Shares of the aforesaid. Mr. Cheng is a director of each of
Accurate Gain Developments Limited and Proficient Success Limited. Mr.
Cheng Tai Po is the elder brother of Mr. Cheng Chung Hing.

Mr. Leung Moon Lam owns 100% of the issued share capital of Kings Faith
International Limited which in turn holds 523,899,770 Shares and is therefore
deemed to be interested in the aforesaid 523,899,770 Shares. Mr. Leung
Moon Lam is a director of Kings Faith International Limited.

The relevant interests are share options granted to Mr. Leung Moon Lam,
Professor Xu Yang, Mr. Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew, Mr. Li Wai Keung, Mr.
Hui Chiu Chung Stephen and Mr. Yung Wing Ki Samuel pursuant to the
Company’s share option scheme adopted on 4 September 2009. Further
details of the share option scheme are set out in the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” in this report.

Dr. Ma Kai Cheung, as beneficial owner and beneficiary of trust and through
the interest of his spouse, being interested in 40.76% of the issued share
capital of Carrianna Group Holdings Company Limited which through a
number of intermediaries, wholly owns Carrianna Development Limited,
Dr. Ma Kai Cheung is therefore deemed to be interested and duplicated
interested in an aggregate of 138,966,649 Shares held by Carrianna
Development Limited via its holding company. Dr. Ma is a director of each of
Carrianna Group Holdings Company Limited, Carrianna Development Limited,
Sincere United Holdings Limited, Carrianna Holdings Limited, Gartrend
Development Limited and Carrianna (BVI) Limited.
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(6) By virtue of Dr. Ma Wai Mo's 50% shareholding interests in Luk Ka Overseas
Investments Limited which is interested in 100% interests in Luk Ka
International Limited, Dr. Ma is deemed to be interested and duplicate in the
interest in the same 126,197,662 Shares held by Luk Ka International Limited.

(7)  Mr. Sun Kai Lit Cliff owns the entire interests in Kinox Holdings Limited and
is therefore deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 125,241,662 Shares
held by Kinox Holdings Limited.

(8)  The percentage shareholding is calculated on the basis of 6,907,114,000
Shares issued as at 31 March 2014.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, to the knowledge of the
Board, none of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be: (i) notified to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which the
Directors and chief executive were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); (i) entered in the register kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) notified to the Company and
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

(6) N EE 1 L% A Luk Ka Overseas Investments
Limited¥I50% M {5 #E25 - Mk A RlE h =R EE
BRAFIMI00%HEZ BB HREER N=EERE
B AR R AT R 126,197,6628 A% 19 7R 1k A 25 o 42

HEM -

(7) MR FERREL L & # A Kinox Holdings Limited 2 & &6
2% 0 B 18 & 7 Kinox Holdings Limited FT # & #£
125,241,662 RAR 15 P B 2 o

8) WABSHDIBEN2014F383MBEEHTZ
6,907,114,000/ %551 H -

Br EXPIIREEE SN - IREEGMA - N2014F3A31
B BEEERARFTIETRABRARRREE
I HREHEE (E % REH LIS GHIEXVER BB -
HEER O REEE T EE T : MRIEE SRS K
IEEXVEDF 7 R F 8D BB E AN R MEBM A FTH
BudAR (BREEREBETRABRERE S LY
EIRPIBBGHEFIIRERER 2 BREAR) -
(VAR BRERE 7 KB E G E3525ATH R TR
iz EERSORE - StiNRBIEEFRIZENG AR
B BB P 2 R R TORE ©
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Interests of Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 March 2014, to the knowledge of the Directors, the following
persons (other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) had or
were deemed or taken to have interests or short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares which were required to be disclosed to the Company

FERFRELS

M2014F3A31H  BEZFA L TAL(ESER
KA EETHRABRIN RO SIBEROF#EES
PR B EERERIBEES RS EHIEXVEDSE2
K3DEMEBRAARRRE TR - A ARRARIRIEE

under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which

were recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section & :

336 of the SFO:

Long/Short Position in the Shares

RERGHNEFR/

7 M HIE (R D)5 336157

FTHEENELMAER IR

B

Approximate
percentage of

/4

Number of the Company's

Shares or total number

underlying Long/short of issued

Name Nature of interest Shares held position shares”
iR % L=
HAE BOTROEH
HEIEB BEME R #E HRIXR BHEAHED

Accurate Gain Developments Limited Beneficial owner 1,339,913,759" long position 19.39%
EaBEA e

Proficient Success Limited Beneficial owner 1,027,267,217% long position 14.87%
EaBAA e

Mr. Chen Hong Tian Deemed interest in controlled corporation 967,986,000° long position 14.01%
BRALK S A WIRERZ ZHEEE S FaE

Mrs. Chen Li Ni Yao Deemed interest in controlled corporation 967,986,000 long position 14.01%
BRIkEfe L+ WIRER R AEER e

Chen Family Assets Management Company Limited ~ Deemed interest in controlled corporation 967,986,000 long position 14.01%
IRER IR ZEER e

Chen’s International Investment Limited Beneficial owner 967,986,000° long position 14.01%
EaBEA A

Naspers Limited Deemed interest in controlled corporation 925,100,000 long position 13.39%
BREZ I EE RS e

MIH TC Holdings Limited Deemed interest in controlled corporation 925,100,000 long position 13.39%
WRER ZHEE R e

Tencent Deemed interest in controlled corporation 925,100,000 long position 13.39%
55 WIRER ZHEEE S 5o

THL H Limited Beneficial owner 925,100,000“ long position 13.39%
ERfEBA e

PAG Holdings Limited Deemed interest in controlled corporation 706,136,000 long position 10.22%
WIRER IR ZEER e

404,458,974°  short position 5.85%
KA

Pacific Alliance Group Limited Deemed interest in controlled corporation 706,136,000 long position 10.22%
BREZ I EE RS e

404,458,974°  short position 5.85%
)

Pacific Alliance Investment Management Limited Deemed interest in controlled corporation 706,136,000°! long position 10.22%
WIRER ZHEEE S 5o

404,458,974°  short position 5.85%
we
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of the Company's
Shares or total number
underlying Long/short of issued
Name Nature of interest Shares held position shares”
Fris R4 HAARE
HAEE BITROAH
wEIEE BEME RHEE HRIXR BHEsHE"
Pacific Alliance Group Asset Management Limited Deemed interest in controlled corporation 706,136,000 long position 10.22%
BREZ I EE S e
404,458,974°  short position 5.85%
KB
Pacific Alliance Asia Opportunity Fund L.P. Beneficial owner 706,136,000 long position 10.22%
ERBEAA 1A
404,458,974°  short position 5.85%
KA
Kings Faith International Limited Beneficial owner 523,899,770 long position 7.58%
REERERAR EalEA A
Notes: 3T
(1) Mr. Cheng Chung Hing and Mr. Cheng Tai Po each own 50% of the issued (1) B #A B 5 4 % 86 K 3} 5 4 5 % A Accurate Gain
share capital of Accurate Gain Developments Limited. Developments Limited 2 2 TR A #)50% ©
(2)  Mr. Cheng Chung Hing and Mr. Cheng Tai Po own 58.7% and 41.3%  (2)  EF#A 848 4 % B K 3R 55 4 9 Bl A Proficient Success
respectively of the issued share capital of Proficient Success Limited. Limited 2 B1TARANH)58.7 % 241.3% ©
(3) Chen’s International Investment Limited is wholly owned by Chen Family (3)  Chen'’s International Investment Limited g§Chen Family
Assets Management Company Limited. Mr. Chen Hong Tian and Mrs. Chen Assets Management Company Limited2 & A R
Li Ni Nao each owns 50% of the issued share capital of Chen Family Assets SRS R BRIk BB YR & £ & HEA Chen Family Assets
Management Company Limited. Management Company Limited 2 21T AR 2N 8950 % 1&
(4)  Pursuant to the Investment and Cooperation Agreement entered into  (4) MRIBEALQTN2014F1 158 ETHL H Limitedz] 2 &9
between the Company and THL H Limited on 15 January 2014, 680,300,000 WEREGERZ  ARBIBER2014%1 8238 ETHL
Shares were issued and allotted by the Company to THL H Limited on 23 H Limited % 77 ) it 3 680,300,000 % f% 15 ° AN A Al IR
January 2014. The Company has also granted an option to THL H Limited MTHL H Limited % B A% % - LA SR 244,800,000 ik
to subscribe for 244,800,000 Shares. THL H Limited is wholly owned by f&f5 ° THL H Limited A2 E A  BEEHMIH TC
Tencent. Tencent is owned as to 33.81% by MIH TC Holdings Limited which is Holdings Limited # & H 33.81% Z # # * M MIH TC
indirectly owned by Naspers Limited . Holdings Limited Bl fiNaspers Limited & 2 & A °
(5)  Pacific Alliance Group Asset Management Limited is the general partner (5)  Pacific Aliance Group Asset Management Limited 4 Pacific

of Pacific Alliance Asia Opportunity Fund L.P.. Pacific Alliance Group Asset
Management Limited is wholly owned by Pacific Alliance Investment
Management Limited. PAG Holdings Limited owns 99.17% of the issued
share capital of Pacific Alliance Group Limited which owns 90% of the issued
share capital of Pacific Alliance Investment Management Limited. Thus, all of
the above mentioned entities are deemed to be interested in an aggregate
of 706,136,000 Shares held by Pacific Alliance Asia Opportunity Fund L.P.,
amongst which 625,000,000 Shares are the shares of the Company which
may be issued upon full exercise by Pacific Alliance Asia Opportunity Fund
L.P. of the conversion rights attached to the Convertible Notes held by Pacific
Alliance Asia Opportunity Fund L.P.

Alliance Asia Opportunity Fund L.P.#) @4 % A © Padific
Alliance Group Asset Management Limited i Pacific Alliance
Investment Management Limited 2 &4 © Pacific Aliance
Group Limited#% 7 Pacific Alliance Investment Management
Limited 2 Z /T AR AR #790% # 7+ MPAG Holdings Limited
1 7 Pacific Alliance Group Limited 2 377 i% 7N £999.17%
B & 8 AR & 7 Padific Alliance Asia
Opportunity Fund L.P. BT %5 #Y 706,136,000 A% A% 7 &
B  H 625,000,000 B 1 £ Pacific Alliance Asia
Opportunity Fund L.P.FTH5A 89 AT AR 15 &R S8 12
MEREITZ RATRLE -
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(6)  These 523,899,770 Shares are held by Kings Faith International Limited which
in turn is 100% owned by Mr. Leung Moon Lam.

(7)  The percentage shareholding is calculated on the basis of 6,907,114,000
Shares issued as at 31 March 2014.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, to the knowledge of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company, no other person (other than
a Director or chief executive of the Company) had, or were deemed or
taken to have interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares
which were required to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Share Capital
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
fiscal year under review are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

Information on Share Options

Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 4 September 2009
(the “Share Option Scheme”). The major terms of the Share Option
Scheme are summarized as follows:

1. The purpose is to provide incentives to eligible persons for their
contribution to the Group and to enable the Group to recruit high-
calibre employees and attract human resources that are valuable to
the Group.

2. The Board may at its discretion grant options to directors, employees,
officers, agents, consultants or representatives of the Group.

3. The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all share options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme must not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from
time to time. The total number of Shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme is not permitted to
exceed 10% in nominal amount of the issued Shares as at the date
of commencement of the listing of Shares on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange unless with the prior approval from the Shareholders.
The Share Option Scheme limit was refreshed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 21 August 2013, and hence the
maximum number of the Shares available for issue upon exercise
of all share options which may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme is 564,522,400 Shares, representing approximately 8.17%
of the total number of issued shares of the Company as at 31 March
2014.

China South City Holdings Limited ZERF3HIZREGR A T

(6) 7%523,899, 770 MBI RERBEERAFRFAE - H
100% H MRt £ R ©

7) BABSHDIBER2014E383MBEEHTZ
6,907,114,000f D515 -

B EXFRIREESN - 2014938318 @ BEHRA
AREBITRABHA  BHEEMAL(EELAR
BIEZTIRABBRIN AR5 S AR RARR 15 7 ¥ B Stk
BAESWEERERIEES KRS IEHEXVEE2R3
DEZNEBARRRHE - JRIEES LBAEED
FE336M(FARARFEME LMz EmARE -

g
AR R4 B R B4R FE O PO R A 2
RMFFESS «

BRBRENER

B REsTE
AARIER200949 A4 B T —EMBRMEBI(1E
MEstE))) - SRR BAOE BIERASIT

EACE SR T

1. ZEIAEERBAERATHASEMERR
WHEAEBBAREEFE T RRSIAL -

2. EFCHARDBEALAKEZES ER -
82 ERSRRRHERE -

= AR

3. EBERETEETCEHESRTEZNEER
REEITE M A T EHITHRMOAE - TEBBRT
B EEITRMDM30% o BRIEARD G JXETE ST
A BRIRIRBEARERT &0 T 5 B A AR FT
HRBRHEE - TEBBRGORESH A
FH BB BTROEEN10% - B
T2 EBRER2013F8 A21 HERITZ AR AIKE
REXRE FEH - WABRETSE T FEE
BT RE AR T T T AT (R B TR D 1B A
564,522,400/% * HHE R AR T R20145F3 A31
HEZETIRNBELIS. 7% °
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The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon the
exercise of share options granted under the Share Option Scheme
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options) to
each grantee in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall
not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to approval of the Shareholders.

The period during which a share option may be exercised will be
determined by the Directors at their absolute discretion, save that no
share option may be exercised more than 10 years after grant.

The consideration paid by each grantee for each grant of options is
HK$1.

The exercise price in relation to each share option will be determined
by the Directors at their absolute discretion and shall not be less than
the highest of (i) the official closing price of the Shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheet of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on the
date of grant; (ii) the average closing prices of the Shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheets of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of the Shares on the date of grant.

The Share Option Scheme will expire on 29 September 2019 after
which no further options will be granted under the Share Option
Scheme. In respect of the options granted and accepted prior to
such expiration and not then exercised, they shall continue to be
valid and exercisable subject to and in accordance with the Share
Option Scheme.

8.

Akt SR T ER L BRE(REDRITE -
AESH R ORTTE 2 BB R ) AT MR E 1218 A
HIRER D B H RS AR A BT RAGET
HIRR B8 - MREBARTNE L AMEHT
IRAREN1% © A — IR KRB I PR B AV BB AR
R ZRERCRALE -

EE 2 EMNERATERENITES  HEAER
EEREZI0F AR -

EABRABZMATERERERBEENR

E

EFT2ENBRESBRENTTEE ETE
BERTIRRZ&ESE  (BORELABRES
BB BRERMAIIE T RHE - (DR
EERHBMMAEEXAETEHIMERAR
BRMHIFHWTE  Ri)RHRE LR B
HE -

BRI 25420199 A29 AR I - B BT
BEAR RSN ST B — IR ARE - IRIBERR
R EIWEERRT - RZRLERTE R H s
MR R ARITE 2 BARESTAB R L A]TT
o
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The table below summarized the details of the movements in the share RN B NIB SIS 2)45% H B IR S B 2L 155

options granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme during the Year: R TERZA :
Number of Share Options
BREHA
As at Cancelled/ As at Exercise
Name Date of Grant 1 April 2013 Granted Exercised Lapsed 31 March 2014 Price Exercisable Period
R2013 & 2014 &
8 RiAH 4818 2R BT EE#/ &R 3A31H 1RE R
HKS
BT
Directors
Es
Leung Moon Lam 2716/2012 29,935,000 - - - 29,935,000 115 2716/2012-26/6/2017
2R 29,935,000 - - - 29,935,000 115 2716/2013-26/6/2017
2716/2013 - 30,400,000 - - 30,400,000 1.69 27/6/2013-26/6/2018
- 30,400,000 - - 30,400,000 1.69 2716/2014-26/6/2018
Xu Yang 11/412011 5,000,000 - (5,000,000) - - 1.29 11/4/2011-10/4/2016
F5 5,000,000 - (5,000,000) - - 1.29 11/4/2012-10/4/2016
5,000,000 - (5,000,000) - - 1.29 11/4/2013-10/4/2016
2716/2012 5,000,000 - (5,000,000) - - 115 2716/2012-26/6/2017
5,000,000 - (5,000,000) - - 115 2716/2013-26/6/2017
2716/2013 - 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 1.69 2716/2013-26/6/2018
- 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 1.69 2716/2014-26/6/2018
Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew  17/2/2014 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 414 17/2/2014-16/2/2019
Z2EE - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 414 17/2/2015-16/2/2019
Li Wai Keung 171212014 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 414 17/2/2014-16/2/2019
ZfEy - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 414 17/2/2015-16/2/2019
Hui Chiu Chung Stephen 171212014 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 414 17/2/2014-16/2/2019
FHRT - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 4.14 17/212015-16/2/2019
Yung Wing Ki Samuel 171212014 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 414 17/2/2015-16/2/2019
Bk - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 414 17/2/2016-16/2/2019
Employees 11/412011 71,200,000 - (57,900,000) (900,000) 12,400,000 1.29 11/4/2011-10/4/2016
EE 42,700,000 - (38,100,000) (2,000,000) 2,600,000 1.29 11/412012-10/4/2016
42,700,000 - (32,750,000) (2,000,000) 7,950,000 1.29 11/4/2013-10/4/2016
11,500,000 - - (2,700,000) 8,800,000 1.29 11/4/2014-10/4/2016
2716/2012 20,500,000 - (3,000,000) - 17,500,000 115 2716/2012-26/6/2017
23,500,000 - (5,000,000) - 18,500,000 115 2716/2013-26/6/2017
3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 115 2716/2014-26/6/2017
2716/2013 - 46,000,000 (11,500,000) - 34,500,000 1.69 2716/2013-26/6/2018
- 57,750,000 - (5,000,000) 52,750,000 1.69 2716/2014-26/6/2018
- 11,750,000 - (3,500,000) 8,250,000 1.69 27/6/2015-26/6/2018
171212014 - 19,000,000 - - 19,000,000 414 17/2/2014-16/2/2019
- 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000 414 17/2/2015-16/2/2019
- 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 414 17/2/2016-16/2/2019

299,970,000 234,300,000  (173,250,000)  (16,100,000) 344,920,000

/8  china South City Holdings Limited Z &R R A &



Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEEWmE(E)

Notes:

1. The closing prices of the Shares immediately before the date on which the
share options granted on 27 June 2013 and 17 February 2014 was HK$1.71
and HK$4.18 per share respectively.

2. The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the date
on which the share options were exercised was approximately HK$2.44 per
share.

3. Details of the Share Option Scheme is set out in note 36 to the financial
statements.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or

Debt Securities

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests in Securities” and “Information on Share Options” in this report
and in note 36 to the financial statements, at no time during the fiscal
year under review was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executives of the
Company (including their spouses or children under 18 years of age) to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

Issuance and Allotment of New Shares and Grant of
Option under the General Mandate

On 15 January 2014, the Company entered into the Investment and
Cooperation Agreement with THL H Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
of Tencent, a company whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 700). Pursuant to the Investment
and Cooperation Agreement and the general mandate granted by the
Shareholders to the Directors at the Company’s annual general meeting
held on 21 August 2013, THL H Limited has subscribed for an aggregate
of 680,300,000 Shares at the subscription price of HK$2.20 per share and
the Company has also granted an option to THL H Limited to subscribe for
244,800,000 Shares at the option price of HK$3.50 per share (subject to
adjustments (if any)). The issuance and allotment of the said 680,300,000
Shares were completed on 23 January 2014.

The net proceeds from the subscription of Shares under the Investment
and Cooperation Agreement are approximately HK$1.50 billion and an
addition of approximately HK$856.8 million if the option is exercised,
which the Company intends to use part of the proceeds for intended
cooperation with Tencent and the remaining will be for general corporate
purposes.

Details of the Investment and Cooperation Agreement were disclosed in
the respective announcements of the Company dated 15 January 2014
and 23 January 2014.

G

1. BEN2013F6A278 &2014F2 8178 HR T BERER
HRARARIRMOKTES R AER1.71EITRL18
T o

2. EEERETE B HAIARR ARG INEFE KT EL
BE%2.448 7T ©

3. BRRERRIMFB RN RRMEE -

EERBEROVEHEZNER

BABREEEREIETRABRESNES IRIF
BERENEN  EHRMBRRMEI6AREE
S AR B SREALIHTE A TR BB B S A A
FHREETEM LS - BEEFRARREETR
AB (BRERENIBI8EA T FX) B BUREAR
DA SEEAEA B R R A D S (EREE RN 25

BRE—BREEZTREZFIRORELE
i #E

2014918158 » AAFEETHL H Limited (BE51(—
RRBEBHRAMERET - BRHARIEAE700HRQF])
NE2EMBRARDEIVIERAIERE - REKRER
AEH AR A 2013F8 A21 B AR AR EBF X
R TFESRZ —MIEE - THL H Limited A& /%2.20
7 7T B A $£680,300,000 I A% 15+ AN A & JRIAITHL
H Limited % H B IS4 - LABBIAETT(#E (B EA3.50/8 7T
(R] FHAEE (A ) ) #E — 5 RHE 244,800,000 % B 17 -
_F#t680,300,0000% f% 17 H 8% 7T R A B B FA201451 A
23H5ERK °

BRELRAIEHRHBATRERN ZA/FIRFROA
15.01878 7T R 851N A) £98.568 1878 7T ({1 B AR i 1 17
8) » RRBEH BB BRI MR REEAN A
TEELIE MR BU RIE— RO EME -

BERERAERENEBE D HIERRRR20145
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Connected Transaction

On 10 February 2014, China South City Group Limited GEFEEEH
fR /A |]), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into an equity transfer agreement with Mr. Huang Wenjie (2 X7) to
acquire 35% equity interest in Xi'an China South City Company Limited
(LM AR AR)("Xi'an China South City”), a subsidiary of the
Company indirectly owned as to 65% by the Company at the time, for
a consideration of RMB260 million which was paid within five business
days from the completion of the acquisition (the “Equity Transfer”). The
Company is of the view that the development and operation of large-
scale integrated logistics and trade centers by Xi'an China South City (the
“Xi'an Project”) represents the Group's strategic expansion in northwest
of the PRC, and gaining complete control of Xi'an China South City
would enhance management and operation efficiency in carrying out the
Group's business decisions and development strategies in respect of the
Xi'an Project. The Equity Transfer will also enhance the Group's return on
its investment in the Xi'an Project.

As at the date of the Equity Transfer, Mr. Huang Wenjie was a
substantial shareholder of Xi‘an China South City, an indirect non
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and therefore a connected
person of the Company. Accordingly, the Equity Transfer constituted a
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, subject to the reporting, announcement and the independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules. The Equity
Transfer was approved by independent Shareholders at the Company'’s
extraordinary general meeting held on 13 March 2014. As at 26 March
2014, the Equity Transfer has been completed.

Details of the Equity Transfer were disclosed in the announcement of the

Company dated 10 February 2014 and the circular of the Company dated
25 February 2014, respectively.

China South City Holdings Limited ZERF3HIZREGR A T
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Continuing Connected Transaction

On 23 February 2011, the Company entered into a sharing of office
agreement with Man Sang Jewellery Company Limited (the “Man Sang
Jewellery”) in relation to the sharing of an office premises situated at
Suite 2205, 22nd Floor, Sun Life Tower, The Gateway, 15 Canton Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong (“Sharing of Office Agreement”). The
estimated annual caps (the maximum aggregate value of the transactions
contemplated under the Sharing of Office Agreement) set for each of the
four fiscal years ended 16 March 2014 are as follows:

M201152A238 » ARRHEREKEFRARITER
SHB DI EABRRAE G ([ XBRAE =) -
RNABBHEBANRE B NERNDIBERE1SHBR
KEXBPELBAE22E0ENRAETNE - BE
2014F3F16H L2 MEMREE - HARAERS
ZEFENET ERSEEMT

From For the fiscal For the fiscal From

17 March 2011 to year ended year ended 1 April 2013 to

Party A Party B 31 March 2011 31 March 2012 31 March 2013 16 March 2014

BZE BE

B2011$3817H 201243A31H 2013543 A31H H20135481A

B Vvl Z2011F3H31H LHREE LHHREE Z201453 8160

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT AT

Man Sang Jewellery The Company 80,000 1,900,000 1,900,000 1,800,000
REKE VNG

As at the date of the Sharing of Office Agreement, Man Sang Jewellery
was wholly owned by Man Sang International Limited (“Man Sang”)
which was held as to approximately 19.21% by Mr. Cheng Chung Hing
directly, approximately 8.48% by Mr. Cheng Tai Po directly and 38.2%
by a private company which was owned as to 60% by Mr. Cheng
Chung Hing and 40% by Mr. Cheng Tai Po respectively. Both of Mr.
Cheng Chung Hing and Mr. Cheng Tai Po are Directors and deemed to
be the substantial Shareholders of the Company. Therefore, Man Sang
Jewellery was an associate of Mr. Cheng Chung Hing and Mr. Cheng Tai
Po, connected persons of the Company. Accordingly, the transactions
contemplated under the Sharing of Office Agreement constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company under chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules and were subject to reporting and announcement
requirements. The premises is used as the office of the Company. The
Sharing of Office Agreement was entered in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group and the terms of which were determined after
arm’s length negotiations by reference to the prevailing market rent for
comparable properties and rent charged by the landlord to Man Sang
Jewellery. Details of the transactions were disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 24 February 2011.
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The actual rentals and related fees paid by the Company to Man Sang
Jewellery in respect of the Sharing of Office Agreement for the period
from 17 March 2011 to 31 March 2011, FY2011/12, FY2012/13 and
from 1 April 2013 to 16 March 2014 were amounted to approximately
HK$79,380, HK$1,822,000, HK$1,828,000 and HK$1,782,000
respectively.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors of the Company have conducted an annual review and
confirmed to the Board that the above continuing connected transactions
were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company; (ii) on normal commercial terms; and (iii) in accordance with
the Sharing of Office Agreement on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’'s independent auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued
its unqualified letter containing the findings and conclusions in respect
of the Group’s continuing connected transactions as disclosed above
in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. The independent
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

The Sharing of Office Agreement has been renewed on 13 March 2014 in
respect of the sharing of the office premises for a term commencing from
17 March 2014 and expiring on 16 March 2017, and the transactions
contemplated under which also constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company under chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
but such transactions were exempt from reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
pursuant to Rule 14A.31(2)(a) of the Listing Rules.

As far as the transactions set out in note 43 to the financial statements
under the heading of “Related Party Transactions” are concerned, in
the fiscal year under review, the transactions relating to the amount of
HK$398,000 set out in note 43(a)(ii), the amount of HK$1,121,000 set
out in note 43(a)(iii) and the amount of HK$367,000 set out in note 43(a)
(iv) were connected transactions which were exempt from reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval
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requirements under the Listing Rules. The transactions set out in note
43(a)(i) were continuing connected transactions, details of which are
disclosed above. As far as the transactions set out in note 43(d) are
concerned, the remuneration of the Directors as determined pursuant to
the service contracts or letters of appointment entered into between the
Directors and the Group constitute connected transactions which were
exempt from reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the fiscal year under
review.

The Company repurchased a total of 31,336,000 shares of the Company
at prices ranging from HK$3.27 to HK$3.64 per share on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange from 11 April 2014 to 5 May 2014. Details of the
repurchases of such Shares were as follows:
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Aggregate

Number of Highest Lowest consideration

Shares price paid price paid paid (excluding

repurchased per share per share expenses)

BRE

Date of the repurchase BEAH BEHROEE BRESE BR&EE (FEERX)
HK$ HKS HK$

B B B

11 April 2014 20144118 8,230,000 3.64 3.50 29,463,660
14 April 2014 2014F4 145 7,800,000 3.56 3.48 27,351,400
15 April 2014 201447158 5,808,000 3.59 3.52 20,679,860
2 May 2014 2014%5H2H 5,212,000 3.37 3.27 17,349,380
5 May 2014 201445 H5H 4,286,000 3.46 3.38 14,781,260
31,336,000 109,625,560

All 31,336,000 Shares repurchased will be cancelled but not yet cancelled
as at the date of this report. The Directors believe that the repurchases of
Shares will lead to an enhancement of the net value of the Group and its
assets and its earnings per Share.

Bank Borrowings
Details of the Group’s bank borrowings as at 31 March 2014 are set out
in note 30 to the financial statements.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The aggregate sales to the Group’s five largest customers were less than
3% of the Group’s total revenue. The aggregate purchases from the
five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 33%
(FY2012/13: 42%) of the Group's total purchases and purchases from the
largest supplier accounted for approximately 14% (FY2012/13: 20%) of
the Group’s total purchases for the fiscal year ended 31 March 2014.

None of the Directors, their associates, or any Shareholders which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s total
number of issued Shares has any interests in the Group's five largest
suppliers or customers.

Corporate Governance
Principal corporate governance adopted by the Company is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report contained in this annual report.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors at the latest practicable date prior
to the issue of this report, the Company has maintained the public float of
the issued shares of the Company as required under the Listing Rules.

Financial Summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five fiscal years is set out on page 56 of the annual report.

Management Contract

During the fiscal year, no contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

Subsequent Events
The subsequent events are set out in note 47 to the financial statements.

Auditors

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs. Ernst & Young who
will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment at the
forthcoming AGM. A resolution for the reappointment of Messrs. Ernst &
Young as auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM.

For and on behalf of the Board
CHENG CHUNG HING
Co-Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 24 June 2014
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Company recognizes the value and importance of achieving high
standard of corporate governance to enhance the corporate performance
accountability and is committed to doing so. The Board is also committed
to the principles of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code")
contained in the Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the
provisions set out in the CG Code throughout the fiscal year ended 31
March 2014, save and except for the following deviations:

Code Provisions A.6.7 & E.1.2

Under Code Provisions A.6.7 & E.1.2, the Chairman of the Board,
independent non-executive Directors and other non-executive Directors, as
equal Board members, should attend general meetings of the Company.
During the Year, due to other prior business engagements, two non-
executive Directors were unable to attend the last annual general meeting
of the Company held on 21 August 2013, and one executive Director, one
non-executive Director and one independent non-executive Director were
unable to attend the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held
on 13 March 2014. Attendance of the Directors at the general meetings is
set out in this report.

The Board of Directors

Board Composition

As at 31 March 2014, the Board comprises eleven Directors, including
three executive Directors, four non-executive Directors and four
independent non-executive Directors. On 28 June 2014, Mr. Lin Ching
Hua was appointed as a non-executive Director of the Company. A Board
Diversity Policy was adopted by the Board during the fiscal year under
review and the implementation of which will be monitored and reviewed
by the Nomination Committee as appropriate. The brief biographical
details of the Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographical
Details of the Directors and Key Management” on pages 57 to 65 of this
annual report.

During the fiscal year under review, the Board has at all times met the
requirements of Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10(A) of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors and representing at least one-third of the board with at least one
independent non-executive director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise.

For the fiscal year under review, all existing independent non-executive
Directors have confirmed their independence to the Company in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
that each of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

ARRRAERSFEENERE A URESEREAN
BMEHNEERERZY  YEBERNNLER - EF
G AGRE ST ETR R S4mE bR E AT
(MEvasrRI DB RA -

BEFERE AREREE2014F3A31HILBIREE
W—E BT E AT AIEF ST » AT ST B BR
Hh

FEMELEA6. 71 RE.1.21%
RIFTAMENEABTIEREN2IE EFSEF - B
SEHITEEREMIENTERIEABREMERES
RSN ESENE @ BHERARAINBRREAS -
FRN - AEEMERNERES  MAFERTES
REEHEARRTIR2013F8 A21 BERIT 2 RRBFA
g BEEAWTEF —EIIFPTEER—RB
IFMITEERELEARFN2014F38 1388172
BREFRAE - REASHEFLREBEREA R RS
ﬁq °

EEg

EEFHEMK

MR201463A31H - EFEH T —BESEN - 821
“ERPTES  WEIRTEERUEBILIENITE
F o R201456 A28H - MIRHELEERTRARRR]
ZIRITESE c REEVREEN  EEQRMNTE
HEREZIILBR  VARERZEQERAMEZ
HMITREBE B ERFZEGE - EFEEABENA
FRESTESHEERTEEHERE]—F -

REBEHBFEAN  EFEREARE—E/{E LT
FRAIE3.10(1) ~ 3.10Q) &3.10A) B EK - ZEHK
P ERBUERATESIHETENEAREL =S
2 MEL—BEUIINTESBABEEEEES
& REF BRI E IR E XA -

REBEFREEAN - 2RBIUFNTEZCAARA
BRKETE EHRAEIBERENELIE - AR
ARAEBILIFMTERIBE -

Annual Report 2013/14 €£§

85



36

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

ERERRE (E)

Role and Function

The Board is responsible for overall strategic formulation and performance
monitoring of the Group. It delegates day-to-day operations of the
Group to the executive Directors and senior management within the
control and authority framework set by the Board. In addition, the Board
has also delegated various responsibilities to the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. Further details
of these committees are set out in this report.

Relationship between Directors
Mr. Cheng Tai Po is the brother of Mr. Cheng Chung Hing.

Change in Information of Directors

The change in the information of Directors since the publication of the
2013/14 interim report is set out below pursuant to Rule 13.51(B)(1) of
the Listing Rules:

Directors’ Experience

Mr. Cheng Chung Hing was a director of China Metro-Rural Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange MKT (ticker
symbol: CNR) until his resignation with effective from 5 December 2013.

Compliance with the Model Code for Securities
Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code of the Listing Rules as a
code of conduct of the Company for Directors’ securities transactions.
Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Directors have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the
fiscal year ended 31 March 2014. Employees who are, or likely to be, in
possession of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the
Company or its Shares are required to prohibit from dealing in shares of
the Company during the black-out period.
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Board Meetings

During the fiscal year under review, four Board meetings were convened
by the Company. The attendance of the Directors at the Board meetings

was as follows:

EEEER

REBEFBEER - ARF
EFEERNEFTHEBRLT

AHABHMREESSE

Number of

attendance
Directors = H R 8
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing (Co-Chairman) EET@E@?‘EE( EEE) 4/4
Mr. Leung Moon Lam (Chief Executive Officer) R (7T AR E,) a/4
Professor Xu Yang R 6o 3/4
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Dr. Ma Kai Cheung (Co-Chairman) SNEET(HELE) /4
Mr. Sun Kai Lit Cliff BRRRISESE 4/4
Dr. Ma Wai Mo BEREL 4/4
Mr. Cheng Tai Po B RSmAEAE 4/4
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYEHTES
Mr. Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew REERE 3/4
Mr. Li Wai Keung TEREE 4/4
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung Stephen SR A 3/4
Mr. Yung Wing Ki Samuel BABTE 4/4
The Directors are provided with agenda and relevant information related ~ EER & #2178 HZRMEENE
to the agenda in advance before the meeting. They can access to the %} o 1% A BERS 2 ZK&TIEJ?&EEE/\E\ RARwEE
senior management and the company secretary of the Company at all & » YW AJIEHAIE FABLEXER BARA

time and, upon reasonable request, seek independent professional advice = 2 &JEYE o

at the Company’s expense.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into service contract with the
Company while each of the non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years.

The Company’s Articles provide rotation and re-election for all Directors. As
provided by the Articles, at each annual general meeting of the Company,
one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their number is not
three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third, shall retire from office by rotation. The Articles also provide
that any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy on the
Board shall hold office only until the next following general meeting
of the Company and shall then be eligible to offer for re-election, and
any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the Board shall
hold office only until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible to offer for re-election. Accordingly,
five Directors, namely, Mr. Leung Moon Lam, Dr. Ma Kai Cheung, Mr. Sun
Kai Lit Cliff, Mr. Lin Ching Hua and Mr. Hui Chiu Chung Stephen shall
retire and stand for re-election at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the roles of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer are segregated. Mr. Cheng Chung Hing
and Dr. Ma Kai Cheung are Co-Chairman of the Company and they
provide leadership for the Board and ensure the proper and effective
functioning of the Board in the discharge of its responsibilities. Mr. Leung
Moon Lam, the Chief Executive Officer, is accountable to the Board
for the overall implementation of the Company’s strategies and the
coordination of overall business operations.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, to handle particular responsibilities of the Board and the
Company’s affairs. All board committees of the Company are established
with defined written terms of reference which have been uploaded to
the website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and that of the Company.
The board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expense.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is responsible for the review and supervision of
the Group’s financial reporting process, internal controls and review of
the Company’s financial statements. The written terms of reference are
in line with the provisions under the CG Code and the roles and the
responsibilities delegated to the Audit Committee by the Board, which
include to determine the appropriate corporate governance practices
applicable to the Group’s circumstances and to ensure processes and
procedures are in place to achieve the Group's corporate governance
objectives.

During the fiscal year under review, the Audit Committee consists of Mr.
Li Wai Keung as chairman, Mr. Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew, Mr. Hui Chiu
Chung Stephen and Mr. Yung Wing Ki Samuel. All the Audit Committee
members are independent non-executive Directors. During the fiscal year
under review, two meetings of Audit Committee were held to review the
FY2012/13 annual results and the FY2013/14 interim results of the Group
before submission to the Board.

During FY2013/14, the Audit Committee had reviewed the internal
control system, connected transactions, interim results and annual results
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of the Group and the accounting principles and practices adopted by the  EEFHAMN ST RAIEZIEN - BEXEESSHNES
Group. The attendance of the Directors at the Audit Committee meetings HEERINT -
was as follows:
Number of
attendance
Directors 2= HERE
Mr. Li Wai Keung (chairman) MEREE(EE) 2/2
Mr. Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew REERE 172
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung Stephen FFRRAR S A 2/2
Mr. Yung Wing Ki Samuel BB HE 1/2

During the fiscal year under review, a meeting of Independent Board
Committee, which comprises of the independent non-executive Directors,
was held to consider the discloseable and connected transaction for the
acquisition of the 35% equity capital of Xi'an China South City. All the
independent non-executive Directors attended the meeting.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendations
on the Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration and other
benefits. The remuneration of all Directors and senior management is
subject to regular monitoring by the Remuneration Committee so as
to ensure that the level of their remuneration and compensation are
reasonable. The written terms of reference are in line with the provisions
of the CG Code.

The Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-executive
Directors and one executive Director, including Mr. Li Wai Keung as
chairman, Mr. Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew and Mr. Cheng Chung Hing.

The primary goal of the Group’s remuneration policy for executive
Directors is to enable the Company to retain and motivate executive
Directors by linking their compensation with their individual performance
as measured against the Group’s corporate objectives and operating
results, taking into account also the comparable market conditions. The
principal elements of the remuneration package of an executive Director
include basic salary, performance and/or discretional bonus, participation
in the Share Option Scheme and other benefits. Remuneration of non-
executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
includes mainly the director’s fee and participation in the Share Option
Scheme which is a matter for the Board to decide by reference to
the duties and responsibilities of non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) and the comparable market
conditions.

During the fiscal year under review, one Remuneration Committee
meeting was held to review the structure of the remunerations for
Directors and senior management of the Company and the granting
of share options under the Share Option Scheme to two Directors and
certain employees of the Company. The attendance of the Directors at the
Remuneration Committee meeting was as follows:
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Number of
attendance
Directors = HERE
Mr. Li Wai Keung (chairman) TEREE(EE) ”n
Mr. Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew REERE 071
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing /N 1/1
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is responsible for making recommendation to
the nomination of Directors with a view to appointing suitable individuals
with relevant expertise and experience to enhance the constitution of
the Board and to contribute to the Board. The written terms of reference
were revised during the Year and are in line with the provisions of the CG
Code.

The Nomination Committee comprises two independent non-executive
Directors and one executive Director, including Mr. Leung Kwan Yuen
Andrew as chairman, Mr. Li Wai Keung and Mr. Cheng Chung Hing.
For FY2013/14, no physical meeting was convened by the Nomination
Committee but it has reviewed the structure, size and composition of
the Board, including the skill, knowledge, experience and diversity of
background of its members.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity by adopting a board
diversity policy which stipulates that when identifying individuals
suitably qualified to become Directors, the Nomination Committee will
consider the benefits of all aspects of diversity including, but not limited
to, a number of factors, such as age, race, cultural and educational
background, professional and business-related experience, reputation of
candidates for integrity and his/her accomplishment, skills, knowledge and
length of service, in order to maintain an appropriate range of balance
of skills, experience and background on the Board. The appointments of
Directors will base on meritocracy and take into account the aforesaid
factors as a whole for the benefits of the Company, as well as taking into
consideration its own business model and specific needs from time to
time.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the internal control of the Group and for
reviewing its effectiveness. A defined management structure with specified
limits of authority and responsibilities is developed for safeguarding assets
against unauthorized use or disposition, the maintenance of proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for publications and the compliance of applicable laws,
rules and regulations.

An internal audit department has been established to perform regular
financial and operational reviews and recommend necessary actions to
the relevant management. The works carried out by the internal audit
department ensure the internal controls are in place and function properly
as intended. The results of the internal audit and reviews are reported
to the executive Directors and Audit Committee of the Company. The
Directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
system and are satisfied with the adequacy of the system of internal
control of the Group for the fiscal year under review.

REEEE
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Sk o R2013/148RFE - REZEGUELFE
o EEBRNEETSER  ABLENK  BEES
EREMRE  ANE - KBREESHZENE -

EEERESTILBE

REHEFEREZ LI ARRRMEFINES
TEBER - RERBZEGVEABAEERELE
EZATR  $ERZITCES T ENER - BFEE
PRN—EERFIMFR - Bk - ERBEES
HENEBRBLR  REANBRERE LB 2K -
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For the annual review on the internal controls, the Audit Committee
considered the internal control report was satisfied as to effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control system. There were no matters of material
concerns relating to financial, operational or compliance controls. The
Board is satisfied with the adequacy of the system of the internal control
of the Group during the fiscal year under review.

Independent Auditors’ Remuneration

The Group’s independent auditors are Messrs. Ernst & Young. For
FY2013/14, the remuneration paid and payable by the Group to the
independent auditors in respect of audit and non-audit services provided
by them were as follows:

PAREENFEENMNS @ BRZ8eFRNE
BHRE - YENANEEAFEERAGBEXN - BXE
BN  BRSAREEMARERINERE - &
FEEMAEEREEYBREENANEERRER
% o

B REET &
AEBNBIZBRHAZKGHAEHN - BE
20131 4B TR - AN B P B ST A B B 1 5 4R
HERRIFBERBEE A RESOHEDT

HK$'000

FAT

Audit and review services EREE RS 3,600

Other services related to senior notes offering BRABITELAZEMNEMART 400
Directors’ Responsibility EEXEE

The Directors are aware that they should give sufficient time and attention
to the affairs of the Company. The Directors are continually adapted with
regulatory developments and business development of the Group to
discharge their responsibilities.

According to the records of the Company, during the fiscal year under
review, the Directors participated in the following trainings:

BB REANERAFHEIOTENAREARA
=%  BEREBERHSFOLTRUVEREAEE
EBERE - BRSBTS -

REARBFAFLE  REEMBEER 222
BRI

Seminar/course Reading
attended materials
Directors = HEBE/RE BB R
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing (Co-Chairman) BN ST A () 4
Mr. Leung Moon Lam (Chief Executive Officer) RIS (TTIBCAE L) v
Professor Xu Yang R 65d 4
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Dr. Ma Kai Cheung (Co-Chairman) BNEEL(BEEE) v
Mr. Sun Kai Lit Cliff HRRRUE L v
Dr. Ma Wai Mo SEREL 4
Mr. Cheng Tai Po BRI E v
Independent Non-Executive Directors BAFHTES
Mr. Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew REELE v
Mr. Li Wai Keung TEJEE v
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung Stephen FTRRFR A 4
Mr. Yung Wing Ki Samuel IR E v
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ERERRE (E)

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements for FY2013/14 which were prepared
in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards.

The reporting responsibility of the independent auditors of the Company
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out in the
independent auditors’ report on pages 95 to 96.

Company Secretary

Ms. Tse Man Yu has been the Company Secretary of the Company
since 2008. She is a full time employee of the Company and has
adequate working knowledge on the Company to discharge her duty
as the Company Secretary. For the fiscal year under review, Ms. Tse
has confirmed that she has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.

Communication with Shareholders and Noteholders
The Company believes that effective communication with Shareholders,
noteholders and other investment community is essential. During the fiscal
year under review, the executive Directors, chief financial officer and head
of investor relations of the Group held regular briefings, press conferences
and analysts meetings of interim and annual results, attended investor
forums and participated in roadshows, conducted meetings and visits to
projects of the Group with the institutional investors and financial analysts
in China, Hong Kong and overseas countries to keep them abreast of the
Group's business and development. Investors can also communicate with
the Company through email at ir@chinasouthcity.com.

The Shareholders’ meeting provides a useful forum for the Shareholders
to exchange views with the Board. The Directors and chief financial
officer of the Group will attend the Shareholders’ meetings to answer
the questions raised by the Shareholders. Shareholders can also direct
their enquiries and proposals to the Company. The contact details of
the Company are set out in the “Contact Us” section of the Company’s
website at www.chinasouthcity.com.

Pursuant to the new Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), shareholders of the Company holding not less than 5% of
the total voting rights of all the members having a right to vote at general
meeting may request the Directors to call a general meeting. The request
may be sent to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form and
must be authenticated by the person or persons making it in accordance
with the provisions under sections 566 to 568 of the New Companies
Ordinance and the Company's Articles.
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Attendance of the Directors at the last annual general meeting of the  EHM2013F8A21 B BT 2 AA T FRIREAFE A
Company which was held on 21 August 2013 and the extraordinary & K&#2014E3 A 13ART 2 AR FIRES RIS
general meeting of the Company which was held on 13 March 2014 wasas BRI :

follows:
Number of
attendance
Directors BE HERE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing (Co-Chairman) BB A (BRI 22
Mr. Leung Moon Lam (Chief Executive Officer) RIS (TTIBCAE#) 2/2
Professor Xu Yang EiEZE 6ol 1/2
Non-Executive Directors FETES
Dr. Ma Kai Cheung (Co-Chairman) ENEBL(BEEE) 02
Mr. Sun Kai Lit CIiff BRI 172
Dr. Ma Wai Mo HEREL 2/2
Mr. Cheng Tai Po B RSmAEE 2/2
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYEBITES
Mr. Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew REEFRE 2/2
Mr. Li Wai Keung EREE 2/2
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung Stephen FFRRARSE A 172
Mr. Yung Wing Ki Samuel BIKHESEHE 2/2

Due to other prior business engagements, Dr. Ma Kai Cheung and Mr. @A EMERINERTH - SN EET REREILE
Sun Kai Lit Cliff were unable to attend the last annual general meeting of R BEANF FINREBEERS LU NFIEHT -

the Company; and Professor Xu Yang, Dr. Ma Kai Cheung and Mr. Hui BN\ B84 GBS Ak ae EEARN T FRIREE
Chiu Chung Stephen were unable to attend the last extraordinary general — Bjjk& o

meeting of the Company.

Published documents together with the latest corporate information and  FREZGE X (FERSTH AT AR RHE > AJ2E
news are available on the Company’s website at www.chinasouthcity.com. A BB Ibwww.chinasouthcity.com ©
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Independent Auditors’ Report
R EE S

e
EY =«

To the shareholders of China South City Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China South
City Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 97 to 214, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31 March 2014, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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B A SRS (8)

Auditors’ responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
March 2014, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central

Hong Kong

24 June 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mEBRmEK

Year ended 31 March 2014 #ZE201443 8318 IFFE

For the year ended 31 March

BZE3A3MBLEE
2014 2013
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
PiEE FERT FAT
REVENUE WA 5 13,468,322 7,488,061
Cost of sales $HE AR (6,921,158) (3,311,366)
Gross profit EF 6,547,164 4,176,695
Other income and gains E U A bz 5 187,823 57,971
Fair value gains on investment properties KEMEN T ERER 5 1,266,287 1,251,445
Selling and distribution expenses HENDHEAX (581,229) (288,828)
Administrative expenses THRHX (862,968) (536,899)
Other expenses HiAx (234,779) (54,606)
Finance costs BE R 6 (152,852) (133,314)
Share of profits and losses of: FEAE T 75 M F R & 18 -
A joint venture —REEDE 20 244 1,023
Associates i l/NC] (862) (351)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX A FE 7 6,168,828 4,473,136
Income tax expenses FriS i 2 10 (2,472,478) (1,606,468)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AFEFH 3,696,350 2,866,668
Attributable to: B & TR
Owners of the parent ISYNEIEZZEPN 11 3,494,481 2,749,864
Non-controlling interests ESalivg T 201,869 116,804
3,696,350 2,866,668
EARNINGS PER SHARE BENEAREER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EmEEAZ
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT BRER 13
Basic BN
— for profit for the year — REZFH HK55.71 centsi&{ll  HK45.62 centsi#{ll
Diluted e
— for profit for the year — R4 R HK47.93 centsiEfll  HK45.60 centsil

Details of the dividends proposed for the year are disclosed in note 12 to  ZN4F [E #HRAR B EE IS B TS R MI 12485 o
the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meZHEREE

Year ended 31 March 2014 #ZE201443 8318 IFFE

For the year ended 31 March

BZE3A3MBLEE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REEZFHE 3,696,350 2,866,668
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME H 2 EUEA
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified A EAE HIIE H AR B
to profit or loss in subsequent periods: HEi2mEKA :
Exchange differences on translation of foreign & /FINEFEH
operations b R ERE (71,903) 238,418
Other comprehensive income not to be R EE BRI T e E S HEBRA
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent HEib2mEKA :
periods:
Revaluation gain upon transfer from BEMEBAMEER
owner-occupied properties to investment AR
properties, net of tax R &M - 286,456
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME REEBRBE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX Hi2mEBA (71,903) 524,874
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME REEHZEBA
FOR THE YEAR 3,624,447 3,391,542
Attributable to: B & T REM ¢
Owners of the parent ISYNGIEZEPN 3,426,492 3,272,114
Non-controlling interests FEFEASFE RS 197,955 119,428
3,624,447 3,391,542
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

nVT (=] ,\jﬁ%;‘ﬁ;ﬂv%‘%

31 March 2014 201443 H31H

31 March 2014
20143 H831H

31 March 2013
201343 A31H

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

BaE FET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - = N&E 14 658,923 601,146
Investment properties wEYZE 15 24,033,905 19,425,946
Properties under development BRI 16 2,933,492 2,381,710
Prepaid land lease payments TRt A 17 142,895 105,440
Goodwill EES 18 34,128 -
Investment in a joint venture R—REETENKE 20 8,919 8,936
Investments in associates REEZE R A IRE 21 4,141 (2,542)
Finance lease receivables BB EREWEIE 22 17,975 29,561
Deposits paid for purchase of land use rights BBE - iE AR MRS 23 1,051,593 781,022
Deferred tax assets RER IS E 33 1,032,803 586,232
Total non-current assets EMEEELRE 29,918,774 23,917,451
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Properties held for finance lease HERNEHEME 245,928 571,403
Properties held for sale FHEHEMSE 24 13,454,700 9,381,178
Trade receivables EUWE 5 RN 25 2,805,839 936,927
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables ?Eiﬁ%‘}’\lg : T’Tz@&ﬁ{ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ 26 729,473 642,581
Held for trading investments FRBRARNTEIIRZ

at fair value through profit or loss HEE \Eixé 27 29,120 117,643
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash & NIESEB YN EHIE & 28 12,777,108 6,777,842
Total current assets mEEERE 30,042,168 18,427,574
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EH M ERRIE 29 13,809,916 8,165,727
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings STRRITREMEE 30 5,841,720 4,418,254
Tax payables FEf IR 4,410,502 2,790,467
Derivative financial instrument TESMTE 31 181,291 =
Total current liabilities BB EAeEE 24,243,429 15,374,448
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 5,798,739 3,053,126
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEABRABAE 35,717,513 26,970,577
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

R BRI AR ()

31 March 2014 201443 H31H

31 March 2014
20143 H831H

31 March 2013
201343 A31H

Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
P sE FET FAT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEME
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings STRRITRHEMES 30 6,610,675 4,581,741
Senior notes BRER 32 4,056,838 2,853,402
Convertible notes EIRiA) E S 34 1,009,446 _
Deferred tax liabilities BERIARE 33 3,896,409 3,492,673
Total non-current liabilities SEMEN B EARRE 15,573,368 10,927,816
Net assets BEFRE 20,144,145 16,042,761
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of the parent [SYNCIE ZS PNy o
Issued capital BEITRA 35 4,684,476 60,536
Reserves (] 37(a) 14,318,033 15,187,361
Proposed final dividends HOR R HARS & 12 966,996 605,356
19,969,505 15,853,253
Non-controlling interests FEPE R A 174,640 189,508
Total equity RSB 20,144,145 16,042,761

CHENG CHUNG HING ZB#A &

Director &%
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

< 4=4

an\ *E m

Bk

Year ended 31 March 2014 #ZE201443 8318 IFFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BATERAER
Capital ~ Statutory Share Share  Exchange Proposed Non-
Issued redemption  surplus  premium  option fluctuation Revaluation Retained final controlling Total
capital reserve  reserve  account  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits  dividends Total interests equity
BRI Ex EE Bt BRE EY Eff iR iR
& RERE BHRE  EER s RORE fiff  RENE RERE &t Bi BmAR
Notes  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
iF3 ThL Tér  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEn
Note (i)
fi()
At 1 April 2012 R2012F4A18 59,876 204 204218 3,050,723 92,225 1,229,6% - 785671 449,067 12,938,680 56,611 12,995,291
Profit for the year AEEH = - - - - - - 2,719,864 - 274984 116804 2,866,668
Other comprehensive income REREMRE
for the year: WA :
Revaluation gain upon transfer from — EfFIEERNE
owner-occupied properties to ERRANEN
investment properties, net of tax G3ir ey - - - - - - 2864% - - 2864% - 28645
Exchange differences on translation ~ AE BN ER
of foreign operations ERZEE - - - - - 23579 - - - 2357% 260 238418
Total comprehensive income for the year A4 /E B2 EMA - = - - - 135794 28645 2,749,864 - 32014 119428 3,391,542
Step acquisition of  subsidiary BONE-FHE
o - - - - - - - = = N F R E )
Establishment of a subsidiary RI—FHBAR - - - - - - - - - - 6,117 6,117
Brercise of share options {IFRRE 3% 660 - - BW (TR - - - - 6930 - 69300
Lapse of share options BIRELH 3 - - - - (28360) - 28,360 - - - -
Equity-settled share option NEREENERE
arrangement Rk 36 - - - - 21176 - - - - 21176 - 2176
Final 2012 dividend paid B01ERHRE = = = = - - - (4950  (449067)  (454017) - (4s4017)
Proposed final 2013 dividend BR013ERERE 12 = = = = = - (6053%6) 605,356 = = =
Transfer from retained profits ERERATE - - 198677 - - - - (198677) - - - -
At31 March 2013 Ra1353A318 60,536 204 D8G5 3MATZIF 66283 1465490 286456 9821912F 60536 15853253 189508 16,042,761
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

AN

Year ended 31 March 2014 #ZE201443 8318 ILFE

BxRE)

Attributable to owners of the parent

102

BTER AL
Equity
component
Capital ~ Statutory Share Share  Exchange of  Proposed Non-
Issued redemption  surplus premium  option fluctuation  Capital Revaluaon  Retained convertible final controlling Total
capital  reserve  reserve  account  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits notes  dividends Total  interests equity
T8k
2B &% HE Rkt BRE EX Eff b4 94 FER
ks RERE EBek  EEE R RORGE AARG i REAE  EEDR  RERS &5t BE REEE
Notes HKS'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK§'000 HK$'000
Wi TEr TEr TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEn Tér  TEr  TEn TAr  TAn FAT
Note (i)
B
At 1 Apri 2013 H201354A18 60,536 204 402,895 3,144,121 66,283 1465490 - 28645 9821912 - 605356 15853253 189,508 16,042,761
Profitfor the year AEEAH - - - - - - = - 394081 = - 349481 201869 3696350
Other comprehensive income ~ ZEEE B2 E
for the year: WA
Exchange differences HEENERN
on translation of foreign EizE
operations - - - - - (67,989 - - - - - (67,989) (3914) (71,903)
Total comprehensive income ~ AEEEZENA
for the year = = = = - (67989 = - 3494481 = - 342649 197955 3624447
Non-controlling interest arising ~ £FUiEEH
on business acquisition Fiaudivi iy - - - - - - - - - - - - 16455 164,555
Acquisiion of non-controlling. ~ EEF AR
interests of subsidiaries R - - - - - - (2326%) - - - - (232690 (95530 (328,220)
Capital contribution from SEARBREN
non-controling shareholders ERLE - - - - - - - - - - - - 5,054 5,054
Issuance of new shares BB 35 6,803 - - 1205218 - - - - - - - 12200 - 121200
Exercise of share options iERRE 36 1732 - - 265862 (42,022 - - - - - - 225572 - 225,572
Lapse of share options BIRESH % - - - - (2.461) - - - 2,461 - - - - -
Equity-setfled share option DB E58H
arrangement BRERE 36 - - - - 63397 - - - - - - 63,357 - 63,357
Issue of convertible notes BIUARER 34 - - - - - - - - - 3730 - 37360 - 37360
Transfer to issued capital ERRERARA 35 4615405 (204) - (4615201) - - - - - - - - -
Dividend paid by a subsidlary ~ HBAAZERE - - - - - - - - - - - - (286902)  (286,902)
final 2013 dividend paid Bff20135 R ERE = = = = = = - - (10504 - (60535%)  (615,860) - (615,860)
Proposed final 2014 dividend ~ BER20145 K ERE 12 - - - - - - - - (9669%) - 96699 - -
Transfer from retained profits ~ EHBRFZFHE - - 281816 - - - - - (281,816) - - - - -
At 31 Merch 2014 ROMF3E3E 4684476 - eI - ESIST 1397501 (QRL60F 286456° 1209538 3301 %6606 19969505 17460 20144145

kd These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$14,318,033,000 (31 March 2013: HK$15,187,361,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Note:

(i) In accordance with the PRC Company Law, the Group's subsidiaries registered
in the PRC are required to appropriate 10% of the annual statutory profit
after tax (after offsetting any prior years’ losses) to the statutory surplus
reserve. When the balance of this reserve fund reaches 50% of the entity’s
registered capital, any further appropriation is optional. The statutory surplus
reserve can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses or to increase capital.

However, the balance of the statutory surplus reserve must be maintained at
a minimum of 25% of registered capital after such usages.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

II‘IT/\IEE/)WE’%%

Year ended 31 March 2014 #ZE201443 8318 IFFE

For the year ended 31 March

BZE3A3MBLEE
2014 2013
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P s FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES R& ZEBRERE
Profit before tax A5t A ) 6,168,828 4,473,136
Adjustments for: TR
Finance costs BhE A 6 152,852 133,314
Share of profits and losses of a EE—REEEREE AT
joint venture and associates 158 K2 518 618 (672)
Bank interest income RITHBUA 5 (42,935) (28,531)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWME « BENREEE
plant and equipment B8 7 973 955
Depreciation e 7 68,490 27,126
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments  FE{< + it H A8 Sk 4 7 1,198 190
Changes in fair value of investment properties &3 N FEZH) 5 (1,266,287) (1,251,445)
Provision for impairment of trade receivables JEWE Z R R E RS 7 58,697 34,540
Provision for impairment of goodwill EEEAE R 7 - 20,066
Loss on redemption of senior notes fEEIBERIR 2 E1E 7 176,082 =
Fair value (gain)/loss, net: AFEME) EE - FE
Derivative financial instrument TESRT A 5 (103,348) -
Held for trading investments at fair value BRBEEAAFEYERZ
through profit or loss, net ﬁf’ﬁ%’i??ﬁﬁ 5 2,625 (5,657)
Dividend income from held for trading BBBEARNTEYERZ
investments at fair value through BieE E%xﬁ £
profit or loss A& EMA (949) (857)
Gains on disposals of held for trading BB AT AR RHE
investments at fair value through profit BERE W - F5
or loss, net 5 (4,115) =
Equity-settled share option expense AR A H R IR 7 63,357 27,176
5,276,086 3,429,341
Increase in properties held for sale FrVESHE YN (3,729,992) (1,214,299)
Decrease/(increase) in properties held for BEREREMERD (K n)
finance lease 135,535 (423,451)
Decrease in finance lease receivables A& & FEWGRIE R 11,526 9,414
Increase in trade receivables FEWEE S BEFIL N (1,927,754) (438,589)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, TERIE -« 2 REAM
deposits and other receivables PN RIE ()R A (303,733) 153,144
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash SR HIZR S (3 hn), R (961,962) 10,277
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 & B Ath FE A FRIEE AN 5,040,795 825,823
Cash generated from operations KSR S 3,540,501 2,351,660
Overseas taxes paid BEAEINIIE (837,601) (237,552)
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEFIRE SR AHE 2,702,900 2,114,108
Annual Report 2013/14 &
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
ReBRTRER(E)

Year ended 31 March 2014 #ZE201443 8318 ILFE

For the year ended 31 March

BZE3A3MBLEE
2014 2013
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P s THET FET
Net cash flows from operating activities KT SR AR 2,702,900 2,114,108
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREZEHRLSRE
Purchases of items of property, HEYZE  BEX
plant and equipment FIEIEE (76,206) (51,565)
Dividends received from held for trading BiEBmARATFEREZ
investments at fair value through profit or loss ~ #H{EB ER &2 WX & 949 857
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEWE  MENKEEER
plant and equipment FriSskI8 9,645 9,963
Proceeds from disposal of held for trading HEFBEZIUATFENEZ
investments at fair value through profit or loss ~ #{/EB &% & 155018 90,013 -
Investment in an associate R—RKEE R EIRRE (7,484) -
Acquisition of non-controlling interests WS+ R RV IEIE R =
of subsidiaries (3,896) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries W HERKT B A7) 38 221,160 (575,781)
Proceeds received from disposal of subsidiaries  H&B{E A FFTS I8 249,480 312,475
Net advances from/(to) a joint venture —RAECEFER),
TNt 244 (5,024)
Additions to properties under development BRERAVERNE (3,255,401) (3,031,308)
Interest received 2 U F 2 5 42,935 28,531
Net cash flows used in investing activities & ESR R FE (2,728,561) (3,311,852)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BiEEBHHRERE
Issue of 2014 Notes BIT2014F8 32 3,012,607 927,527
Issue of convertible notes BITARAR IR 972,064 -
Proceeds from issue of shares IR ZEITATER 1,496,660 =
Capital contribution from non-controlling JHERA R HE
shareholders 5,054 13,469
Payment for redemption of 2011 Notes HEEI2011 TR (2,032,064) -
Payment for interest on senior notes BIEZEFENK 32 (378,330) (253,773)
Payment for interest on convertible notes AR E ISR B A R 34 (31,688) =
New bank and other borrowings FERITREMER 8,025,934 7,402,892
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BRIRIT R HME R (4,512,231) (3,291,344)
Exercise of share options i 225,572 69,300
Dividends paid DI S (615,860) (454,017)
Dividends paid to a non-controlling shareholder %3 &A% 8 & —{r 335 A% A% 3R (286,902) -
Interest paid BEAFIE (698,635) (317,860)
Net cash flows from financing activities BEEERSRAFE 5,182,181 4,096,194
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERBRESEYEMER
CASH EQUIVALENTS 5,156,520 2,898,450
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F#&IR & KBS EEY 28 6,264,714 3,315,657
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net  [E & &5 5/ 28 % 45 (118,190) 50,607
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRONELRELZEY
AT END OF YEAR 11,303,044 6,264,714
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF RERBASEEVERIN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents Be MIEEEEY 28 11,303,044 6,264,714
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

BAFEAR AR

31 March 2014 2014438318

31 March 31 March
2014 2013
201445 20134
3A31H 3A31H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BaE FET FHT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE MRS 1,437 1,265
Investments in subsidiaries RITEB AR HIEE 19 2,772,635 2,735,275
Total non-current assets EMBNEERTE 2,774,072 2,736,540
CURRENT ASSETS mENEE
Due from subsidiaries FEURKT B A R IA 19 4,928,814 2,869,404
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — JEfZUIE - 124 M H i jE W RIE 513 7,586
Cash and cash equivalents BERESEED 28 2,774,381 1,264,811
Total current assets MENEEMARE 7,703,708 4,141,801
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Due to subsidiaries FERTH B A R IE 19 28,812 35,924
Other payables, accruals and HAbERFIE - EEHIEE &
deposits received BliL & 126,073 72,534
Derivative financial instrument PTESRTAE 181,291 =
Total current liabilities mEBERE 336,176 108,458
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEERE 7,367,532 4,033,343
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEAERRBERE 10,141,604 6,769,883
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREEE
Senior notes B ERE 32 4,056,838 2,853,402
Net assets BEFE 6,084,766 3,916,481
EQUITY Ex
Issued capital BT 35 4,684,476 60,536
Reserves i 37(b) 433,294 3,250,589
Proposed final dividends BHR AR EARR B 12 966,996 605,356
Total equity e RER 6,084,766 3,916,481

CHENG CHUNG HING Zf#3H

Director Z= %

LEUNG MOON LAM 2@k
Director E= %
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R E R

31 March 2014 2014438318

2.1

Corporate Information

China South City Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The registered office
of the Company is located at Room 2205, 22/F, Sun Life Tower, The
Gateway, 15 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in the
development and operation of large-scale integrated logistics and
trade centers, development of supporting residential and commercial
facilities, property management and provision of E-commerce,
logistics and warehousing services.

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for investment properties, a
derivative financial instrument and held for trading investments at
fair value through profit or loss, which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2014. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BA RS SRR MY AL (48D

31 March 2014 201443A31H

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued) 2.1 REEE )

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described in the accounting policy
for subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of
any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit
in profit or loss. The Group's share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would
be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BA RS SRR MY AL (48D

31 March 2014 201443A31H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Government Loans

HKFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
HKFRS 10, Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 — Transition Guidance
HKFRS 12
Amendments
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKAS 1 Amendments  Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive Income

HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits

HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures

HKAS 36 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 36 Impairment of
Assets — Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets (early adopted)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a
Surface Mine

Annual Improvements ~ Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued

2009-2011 Cycle in June 2012

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKFRS 13, HKAS 19 (2011),
amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 1 and HKAS
36, and certain amendments included in Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle, the adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs has
had no significant financial effect on these financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BA RS SRR MY AL (48D

31 March 2014 201443A31H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(Continued)
The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs are as
follows:

(a)

(b)

HKFRS 10 replaces the portion of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that addresses the accounting
for consolidated financial statements that addresses the issues
in HK(SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. It
establishes a single control model used for determining which
entities are consolidated. To meet the definition of control in
HKFRS 10, an investor must have (a) power over an investee,
(b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over the
investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns. The
changes introduced by HKFRS 10 require management of the
Group to exercise significant judgement to determine which
entities are controlled.

As a result of the application of HKFRS 10, the Group has
changed the accounting policy with respect to determining
which investees are controlled by the Group.

The application of HKFRS 10 does not change any of the
consolidation conclusions of the Group in respect of its
involvement with investees as at 1 April 2013.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and
HK(SIC)-Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary
Contributions by Venturers. It describes the accounting for
joint arrangements with joint control. It addresses only two
forms of joint arrangements, i.e., joint operations and joint
ventures, and removes the option to account for joint ventures
using proportionate consolidation. The classification of joint
arrangements under HKFRS 11 depends on the parties’
rights and obligations arising from the arrangements. A joint
operation is a joint arrangement whereby the joint operators
have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities of the
arrangement and is accounted for on a line-by-line basis to the
extent of the joint operators’ rights and obligations in the joint
operation. A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
joint ventures have rights to the net assets of the arrangement
and is required to be accounted for using the equity method in
accordance with HKAS 28 (2011).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BA RS SRR MY AL (48D

31 March 2014 201443A31H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

(0)

(d)

(e)

(Continued)

The directors of the Company reviewed and assessed the
classification of the Group’s investments in joint arrangements
in accordance with the requirements of HKFRS 11, and
concluded that the adoption of HKFRS 11 has had no impact
on the currently held investments of the Group.

HKFRS 12 sets out the disclosure requirements for subsidiaries,
joint arrangements, associates and structured entities
previously included in HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements, HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and
HKAS 28 Investments in Associates. It also introduces a number
of new disclosure requirements for these entities. Details of the
disclosures for subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are
included in notes 19, 20 and 21 to the financial statements.

The HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 Amendments clarify
the transition guidance in HKFRS 10 and provide further relief
from full retrospective application of these standards, limiting
the requirement to provide adjusted comparative information
to only the preceding comparative period. The amendments
clarify that retrospective adjustments are only required if the
consolidation conclusion as to which entities are controlled
by the Group is different between HKFRS 10 and HKAS 27 or
HK(SIC)-Int 12 at the beginning of the annual period in which
HKFRS 10 is applied for the first time.

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and a single
source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements
for use across HKFRSs. The standard does not change the
circumstances in which the Group is required to use fair
value, but rather provides guidance on how fair value should
be applied where its use is already required or permitted
under other HKFRSs. HKFRS 13 is applied prospectively and
the adoption has had no material impact on the Group's fair
value measurements. As a result of the guidance in HKFRS
13, the policies for measuring fair value have been amended.
Additional disclosures required by HKFRS 13 for the fair
value measurements of investment properties and financial
instruments are included in notes 15 and 45 to the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
/\Zl-i%#ﬁ‘%% BTT HE ( n‘ﬁ )

31 March 2014 201443A31H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(Continued)

)

(9)

(h)

The HKAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of items
presented in other comprehensive income (“OCI"). Iltems that
could be reclassified (or recycled) to profit or loss at a future
point in time (for example, exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations, net movement on cash flow hedges
and net loss or gain on available-for-sale financial assets) are
presented separately from items which will never be reclassified
(for example, the revaluation of land and buildings). The
amendments have affected the presentation only and have
had no impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group. The consolidated statement of comprehensive income
has been restated to reflect the changes. In addition, the Group
has chosen to use the new title “statement of profit or loss” as
introduced by the amendments in these financial statements.

HKAS 19 (2011) includes a number of amendments that range
from fundamental changes to simple clarifications and re-
wording. The revised standard introduces significant changes
in the accounting for defined benefit pension plans including
removing the choice to defer the recognition of actuarial
gains and losses. Other changes include modifications to the
timing of recognition for termination benefits, the classification
of short-term employee benefits and disclosures of defined
benefit plans. As the Group does not have any defined benefit
plan or employee termination plan and the Group does not
have any significant employee benefits that are expected to be
settled for more than twelve months after the reporting period,
the adoption of the revised standard has had no effect on the
financial position or performance of the Group.

The HKAS 36 Amendments remove the unintended disclosure
requirement made by HKFRS 13 on the recoverable amount
of a cash-generating unit which is not impaired. In addition,
the amendments require the disclosure of the recoverable
amounts for the assets or cash-generating units for which an
impairment loss has been recognised or reversed during the
reporting period, and expand the disclosure requirements
regarding the fair value measurement for these assets or units
if their recoverable amounts are based on fair value less costs
of disposal. The amendments are effective retrospectively
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
with earlier application permitted, provided HKFRS 13 is also
applied. The Group has early adopted the amendments in these
financial statements. The amendments have had no impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group. Disclosures
about the Group's impaired non-financial assets are included in
note 18 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BA RS SRR MY AL (48D

31 March 2014 201443A31H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(Continued)

0

Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle issued in June 2012
sets out amendments to a number of standards. There are
separate transitional provisions for each standard. While the
adoption of some of the amendments may result in changes
in accounting policies, none of these amendments have had
a significant financial impact on the Group. Details of the key
amendments most applicable to the Group are as follows:

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Clarifies
the difference between voluntary additional comparative
information and the minimum required comparative
information. Generally, the minimum required
comparative period is the previous period. An entity must
include comparative information in the related notes
to the financial statements when it voluntarily provides
comparative information beyond the previous period.
The additional comparative information does not need to
contain a complete set of financial statements.

In addition, the amendment clarifies that the opening
statement of financial position as at the beginning of
the preceding period must be presented when an entity
changes its accounting policies; makes retrospective
restatements or makes reclassifications, and that change
has a material effect on the statement of financial
position. However, the related notes to the opening
statement of financial position as at the beginning of the
preceding period are not required to be presented.

HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation: Clarifies
that income taxes arising from distributions to equity
holders are accounted for in accordance with HKAS 12
Income Taxes. The amendment removes existing income
tax requirements from HKAS 32 and requires entities to
apply the requirements in HKAS 12 to any income tax
arising from distributions to equity holders.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
/\Zl-i%#ﬁﬁ BTT HE ( n‘ﬁ )

31 March 2014 201443A31H

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards
The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments3

HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 Hedge Accounting and amendments to
and HKAS 39 HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and HKAS 393
Amendments

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 (2011)
Amendments

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and

HKAS 27 (2011) — Investment Entities’

HKFRS 11 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 11 Joint
Arrangements — Accounting for
Acquisitions of Interests in Joint

Operations*

HKAS 16 and Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 —
HKAS 38 Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amendments Amortisation*

HKAS19 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 19 Employee

benefits — Defined Benefit Plans
Employee Contributions?
HKAS 32 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
HKAS 39 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Novation of Derivatives
and Continuation of Hedge Accounting'
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies?
Annual Improvement  Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued
2010-2012 Cycle
Annual Improvement
2011-2013 Cycle

in January 20142
Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued
in January 20142

[ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for adoption
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

23 EHEMERSRERNERETBRE

AEH

—|—/\IJ

REEI AR FHEVFRRDRAULTER
MR ERERZ ] REERT T B K MELE

U

BANBRE ST

BAMBREEAE -
BANBREERETH
REBEHERZ39%

7%
ERUBREEUE0R
EHBREE

B2 REEHEA
E275% 20115 BT
BB REEAE1S
CHpy

BR G RRAIR165KR

BB gt RAIE8H
(B71%)
BEQERIE 195
HES
BB G RRIEN
LEIE

EAQIERIEN
BT

BE(EREBRELRE
ZEE)-REEVNR

20105 22012FHES
B REER 2 RN

01ER0FREES
BB RSN 2 R

FHTA

e RHEEN B LR
£0%  BEUBREERETRR
BB QIERIER 2 BE

ﬁi’éﬁﬁ%#&% RIZ105, - B/BAHTE
ERAIE 125 R BB ER
%275)5(20 15)-REEEL
{Bzn
BROBAEENEN R - AEES
gy 7opd A H

& ﬁéﬁﬁ-ﬁw%w?ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁ%
BRI - FENE N
GESp A TN

BEGEREORESEF - EF
#ERIi14] : ER A2 BT

BREERENRLH LA -
EH-BHEHEERLHREL
T

BEGEREOREH LA -

ARAE-1TETAZEER
s tapd A

HE

01451 A2 RIGE AN HE
ER 2 E3]

201451 A2 RIGE BB RS
A H

T R2014F 1 ARk & FRe 2 FE R A K
2 201467 A1 B2 &R 2 FE B LR
3 MREETE B B HIME AT A

4 JR2016%F1 B 1 B ABRIA < G HAR A5

Annual Report 2013/14 £f

113



114

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BA RS SRR MY AL (48D

31 March 2014 201443A31H

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)
Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase 1 of
a comprehensive project to entirely replace HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This phase focuses
on the classification and measurement of financial assets. Instead
of classifying financial assets into four categories, an entity shall
classify financial assets as subsequently measured at either amortised
cost or fair value, on the basis of both the entity’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to improve and
simplify the approach for the classification and measurement of
financial assets compared with the requirements of HKAS 39.

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to HKFRS 9 to
address financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and incorporated in
HKFRS 9 the current derecognition principles of financial instruments
of HKAS 39. Most of the Additions were carried forward unchanged
from HKAS 39, while changes were made to the measurement of
financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss
using the fair value option (“FVO"). For these FVO liabilities, the
amount of change in the fair value of a liability that is attributable
to changes in credit risk must be presented in OCI. The remainder
of the change in fair value is presented in profit or loss, unless
presentation of the fair value change in respect of the liability’s
credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. However, loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts which have been designated under the FVO are scoped
out of the Additions.

In December 2013, the HKICPA added to HKFRS 9 the requirements
related to hedge accounting and made some related changes to
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 which include the corresponding disclosures
about risk management activity for applying hedge accounting. The
amendments to HKFRS 9 relax the requirements for assessing hedge
effectiveness which result in more risk management strategies being
eligible for hedge accounting. The amendments also allow greater
flexibility on the hedged items and relax the rules on using purchased
options and non-derivative financial instruments as hedging
instruments. In addition, the amendments to HKFRS 9 allow an entity
to apply only the improved accounting for own credit risk-related
fair value gains and losses arising on FVO liabilities as introduced in
2010 without applying the other HKFRS 9 requirements at the same
time.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BA RS SRR MY AL (48D

31 March 2014 201443A31H

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)
HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its entirety. Before
this entire replacement, the guidance in HKAS 39 on hedge
accounting and impairment of financial assets continues to apply.
The previous mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9 was removed
by the HKICPA in December 2013 and a mandatory effective date
will be determined after the entire replacement of HKAS 39 is
completed. However, the standard is available for application now.
The Group will quantify the effect in conjunction with other phases,
when the final standard including all phases is issued.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 include a definition of an investment
entity and provide an exception to the consolidation requirement for
entities that meet the definition of an investment entity. Investment
entities are required to account for subsidiaries at fair value through
profit or loss in accordance with HKFRS 9 rather than consolidate
them. Consequential amendments were made to HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011). The amendments to HKFRS 12 also set out the
disclosure requirements for investment entities. The Group expects
that these amendments will not have any impact on the Group as
the Company is not an investment entity as defined in HKFRS 10.

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a
legally enforceable right to setoff” for offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities. The amendments also clarify the application of the
offsetting criteria in HKAS 32 to settlement systems (such as central
clearing house systems) which apply gross settlement mechanisms
that are not simultaneous. The amendments are not expected to
have any impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group upon adoption on 1 April 2014.

HKFRS 11 addresses the accounting for interests in joint ventures
and joint operations. The amendments add new guidance on how
to account for the acquisition of and interest in a joint operation
that constitutes a business. The amendments specify the appropriate
accounting treatment for such acquisitions.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
/\Zl-i%#ﬁﬁ BTT HE ( n‘ﬁ )

31 March 2014 201443A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s statement
of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received and receivable.
The Company’s investments in subsidiaries that are not classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest
of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over
which it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BA RS SRR MY AL (48D

31 March 2014 201443A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)
The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or
joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s investments in the associates or joint ventures,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition
of associates or joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s
investments in associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and
the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.

The results of associates and joint ventures are included in the
Company’s statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s investments in associates
and joint ventures are treated as non-current assets and are stated at
cost less any impairment losses.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
/\Zl-i%#ﬁi BTT HE ( n‘ﬁ )

31 March 2014 201443A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values
of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of
net assets in the event of liquidation either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes
the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of HKAS 39, it is measured in
accordance with the appropriate HKFRS. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
/\Zl-i%#ﬁi BTT HE ( n‘ﬁ )

31 March 2014 201443A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of
in these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of
the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, derivative financial
instrument and equity investments at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
/\Zl-i%#ﬁﬁ BTT HE ( n‘ﬁ )

31 March 2014 201443A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BA RS SRR MY AL (48D

31 March 2014 201443A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets
Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
financial assets, investment properties and goodwill), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
/\Zl-i%#ﬁﬁ BTT HE ( n‘ﬁ )

31 March 2014 201443A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiiy is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence

over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BA RS SRR MY AL (48D

31 March 2014 201443A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 3%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 9% to 18%
Motor vehicles 9% to 18%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BA RS SRR MY AL (48D

31 March 2014 201443A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)
Construction in progress represents buildings under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property which
would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property)
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions
at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year
in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year
of the retirement or disposal.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under “Property,
plant and equipment and depreciation” up to the date of change in
use, and any difference at that date between the carrying amount
and the fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” above. For a transfer from properties
under development to investment properties, any difference
between the fair value of the property at that date and its previous
carrying amount is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BA RS SRR MY AL (48D

31 March 2014 201443A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Properties under development
Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost comprises the land costs, construction
costs, capitalised borrowing costs and other cost directly attributed
to such properties during the period of construction.

Properties under development are initially classified as non-current
assets and transferred to current assets under the category of
properties held for sale when the construction of the relevant
properties commences and the construction period of the relevant
property development project is expected to complete within normal
operating cycle.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease,
the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the
minimum lease payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing.
Assets held under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land
lease payments under finance leases, are included in property, plant
and equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms
and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of
such leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss so as to
provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the statement
of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where
the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the statement
of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BA RS SRR MY AL (48D

31 March 2014 201443A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded at
fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value presented as other income and gains. These net fair value
changes do not include any dividends or interest earned on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with the policy
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value

through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BA RS SRR MY AL (48D

31 March 2014 201443A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in finance
costs for loans and in other expenses for receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a "pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BA RS SRR MY AL (48D

31 March 2014 201443A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has
been transferred to the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BA RS SRR MY AL (48D

31 March 2014 201443A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses
in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
senior notes, convertible notes, a derivative financial instrument and
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings and
senior notes are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains
and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BA RS SRR MY AL (48D

31 March 2014 201443A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

Convertible notes

The component of convertible notes that exhibits characteristics
of a liability is recognised as a liability in the statement of financial
position, net of transaction costs. On issuance of convertible notes,
the fair value of the liability component is determined using a
market rate for an equivalent non-convertible note; and this amount
is carried as a long term liability on the amortised cost basis until
extinguished on conversion or redemption. The remainder of the
proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised
and included in shareholders’ equity, net of transaction costs. The
carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in
subsequent years. Transaction costs are apportioned between the
liability and equity components of the convertible notes based on
the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components
when the instruments are first recognised.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments of the Group represent call options
granted to the counterparty. Derivatives are initially recognised at
fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-mearsured at their fair value. Any gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are taken directly to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BA RS SRR MY AL (48D

31 March 2014 201443A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities (Continued)
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Properties held for sale and held for finance
lease

Properties held for sale and held for finance lease includes completed
properties held for sale and held for finance lease and properties
under development expected to be completed within normal
operating cycle. Properties held for sale and held for finance lease
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes
land cost, all development expenditure, applicable borrowing costs
and other direct costs attributable to such properties. Net realisable
value is determined by reference to the prevailing market prices, on
an individual property basis.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BA RS SRR MY AL (48D

31 March 2014 201443A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Provisions
A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2014 201443A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Income tax (Continued)
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BA RS SRR MY AL (48D

31 March 2014 201443A31H

2.4 EREFBERME (5

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

134

(Continued)

Government grant

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to the statement of profit
or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and released to the statement of profit or loss by way of a reduced
depreciation charge or over the benefits received by the Group
related to such assets.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of properties, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership,
nor effective control over the properties sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms;

() finance lease income, when the significant risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of the properties have been transferred
to the lessee;

(d) property management service and other fee income, when the
services have been rendered;

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(f)  income from E-commerce and the provision of logistics
services, when the services have been rendered.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BA RS SRR MY AL (48D

31 March 2014 201443A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Share-based payments
The Company operates share option schemes for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value at
the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by
an external valuer using an appropriate pricing model, further details
of which are given in note 36 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee
benefit expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
statement of profit or loss for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of
that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BA RS SRR MY AL (48D

31 March 2014 201443A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)
Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage of
their respective payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BA RS SRR MY AL (48D

31 March 2014 201443A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the
statement of financial position, until they have been approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a
liability.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company'’s functional and presentation currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measures at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in
fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose
fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss, respectively).
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)
The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into the presentation currency of
the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

3. Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates
The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

China South City Holdings Limited ZEr3H iR G R A 7

2.4 EREFBERME (5

I ()
EFENHBAR - AL REEDRININEE
EHERETTASNN M o PAERRHIRI AR - %
SRBNEERE BRREPRENERRE A
ARRZFNEH MRS D ANIBRRIRLE
& TR B KRR E BB o

FREEAEHIRE S ZRERER AE M ETEUWA - WETA
KB R - EBINERE  EHESRERE
% EBIEBHETC R CBERSRE

e ©

SEEEREREBRME @ BINEATNRSR
ERRSREANNERBESEIT - BINTE
RAIRNFERAREELENRSRENRZFERM
R IBE /AT

EXREFHHE R AT

REAEBMERERSFEEBFLZENRS
HIRHWA ~ B8R - BERBENEBHRES
BUARSEREBE 2 2REBHOHE - Hat kR
& o AT - R NIRRT N EARIE R A 5| 2K
S8 BERAERIENSKSIELERT

=
o

H

EEAAEEORIRRNBES  BREAESR
fhEtEsh - BB T 7S BRRERY
SEAREATEOHN



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BA RS SRR MY AL (48D

31 March 2014 201443A31H

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on
an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that
it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independent of the other assets
held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is held
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that
is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold separately or
leased out separately under a finance lease, the Group accounts for
the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately,
the property is an investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an
individual property basis to determine whether ancillary services
are so significant that a property does not qualify as an investment
property.

Transfer from properties under development to investment
properties

Properties under development are transferred to investment
properties when there is a change in use with sufficient evidence.
The Group determines whether a change in use has occurred based
on an assessment of all relevant facts and circumstances, which
include but are not limited to: (a) a business plan that reflects the
future rental income generated by the property; (b) the resources
to hold and manage an investment property; (c) legal permissibility
for the change in use; (d) the commencement of development if
the property requires further development for the change in use.
Any excess of fair value over the original carrying amount of such
properties at the date of transfer was recognised as current year
profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31
March 2014 was HK$34,128,000 (2013: nil). Further details are
given in note 18.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The Group engaged Savills Valuation and Professional Services
Limited (“Savills”), independent professionally qualified valuers, to
perform the valuation of the Group’s investment properties at the
end of the reporting period. The carrying amount of investment
properties at 31 March 2014 was HK$24,033,905,000 (2013:
HK$19,425,946,000). Further details are given in note 15.

Impairment allowances for trade receivables and other
receivables

The Group estimates the impairment allowances for trade receivables
and other receivables by assessing the recoverability based on
credit history and prevailing market conditions. This requires the
use of estimates and judgements. Allowances are applied to trade
receivables and other receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be collectible.
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, the
difference will affect the carrying amounts of trade receivables and
other receivables and thus the impairment loss in the period in
which the estimate is changed. The Group reassesses the impairment
allowances at the end of each reporting period. At 31 March 2014,
the carrying amounts of trade receivables and other receivables were
HK$3,313,022,000 (2013: HK$1,518,461,000).
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The
carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to recognised tax losses
at 31 March 2014 was HK$52,603,000 (2013: nil). The amount of
unrecognised tax losses at 31 March 2014 was HK$467,972,000
(2013: HK$398,726,000). Further details are contained in note 33 to
the financial statements.

Operating Segment Information

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has six reportable
operating segments as follows:

(@ the property development segment engages in the
development of integrated logistics and trade centers and
supporting facilities;

(b) the property investment segment invests in integrated logistics
and trade centers and supporting facilities;

() the property management segment engages in the
management of the Group’s developed properties;

(d) the E-commerce segment engages in the development,
operations and maintenance of an E-commerce platform;

(e) the “others” segment comprises, principally, the provision of
advertising, exhibition, logistics and warehousing, outlet center
operation and other services; and

(f)  the hotel operation segment engages in the provision of hotel
services.
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Operating Segment Information (Continued)
Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/(loss),
which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before tax. The adjusted
profit/(loss) before tax is measured consistently with the Group's
profit before tax except that interest income, finance costs, fair value
gains from the Group’s financial instruments as well as head office
and corporate expenses are excluded from this measurement.

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents, equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss and other unallocated
head office and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a
group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, senior notes, convertible notes, a derivative financial
instrument, tax payables and other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.

No geographical segment analysis is presented as the majority of
the assets and operation of the Group are located in PRC, which is
considered as one geographical location in an economic environment
with similar risks and returns.

There was no single customer to the revenue derived from which

amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue during the year
ended 31 March 2014 (2013: Nil).
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4. Operating Segment Information (Continued) 4, REFBER )
Year ended 31 March 2014 Property Property Property
BENUEIANALEE development investment  management  E-commerce Others Total
NERR nERE NEER ETHE A EH
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn
Segment revenue:; ABRA
Sales to exteral customers HIPRPHE 12,812,583 304,866 67,074 189,128 94,671 13,468,322
Intersegment sales AHEHE - 18,353 41,54 48,180 - 108,075
12,812,583 323,219 108,616 237,308 94,671 13,576,397
Elimination of intersegment sales DEEHEHH (108,075)
Revenue WA 13,468,322
Seqment results before increase in fair REMFATREMIAPER
value of investment properties 6,293,333 246,389 (45,897) 188,912 724 6,754,461
Increase i fairvalue of investment properties AR TELN - 1,266,267 - - - 1,266,287
Segment results after increase in fair RENFATEENGADEE
value of investment properties 6,293,333 1,512,676 (45,897) 188,912 71,124 8,020,748
Unallocated cost of sales AATERK (207,297)
Interest income FEMA 48,635
Unallocated income and gains AATRAR UG 139,188
Unallocated expenses KRB (1,678,976)
Finance costs BERA (152,852)
Share of profitof a ot venture ElE—RALLEHE 244
Share of losses of associates EtRERTEE (862)
Profit before tax TalfE 6,168,828
Segment assets ABEE 20,518,873 24,968,944 4,584 7510 119415 45,619,326
Reconciliation: HE -
Investment in a joint venture R-FEEREMRE 8919
Investments in associates REEDRNEE 414
Unallocated assets AOMEE 14,328,556
Total assets BEGE 59,960,942
Segment liabilities AREE 9,954,756 4,946,443 52,611 611 78,042 15,032,463
Reconciliation: HE -
Unallocated liabilies AAREE 24,784,334
Total liabilities BEEE 39,816,797
Other segment information: BtAuEs
Depreciation Vit - - 969 1333 4,881 7,183
Corporate and other unallocated amounts AREMRAREE 61307
68,490
Increase in fair value of investment properties REWENTEEN - 1,266,287 - - - 1,266,287
Capital expenditure* BRI 15,286,126 879,270 4,085 1417 28107 16,199,005
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Segment results before increase in fair

RENFAFERNAATEE

4. Operating Segment Information (Continued) 4, REFBER )

Year ended 31 March 2013 Property Property Property Hotel
BE013F3[NALEE development investment ~ management operation Others Total
IEL VESE VEE il At H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T

Segment revenue; ABRA

Sales to external customers b 9\\25@5%#!’% 7,178,712 213,99 43,589 13,291 38,474 7,488,061
Intersegment sales NEEHE - 10572 18,989 20,323 - 49,884
1178712 224,567 62,578 33,614 38474 7,537,945
Elimination of intersegment sales DEEHEHH (49,884)
Revenue WA 7,488,061

value of investment properties 4,101,875 210,454 (23,085) (10,968) 21,017 4,299,293
Increase in fair value of investment properties REMENTEEN = 1,251,445 = = - 1,251,445
Segment results after increase in fair REMFATREMEAHES

value of investment properties 4101,875 1,461,899 (23,085) (10,968) 21,017 5,550,738
Unallocated cost of sales KORHERA (122,598)
Interest income V0N 31,031
Unallocated income and gains AARRAR UG 26,940
Unallocated expenses KRB (880,333)
Finance costs RERA (133314)
Share of profitof a joint venture Bli-FaEtEHE 1023
Share of losses of associates Jf BENTER (351)
Profit before tax Firpbed 4473136
Segment assets ABEE 13,322,482 20730471 1247 - 64,397 34,118,597
Reconciliation: rf@?

Investment in a joint venture ié%‘ﬁ%ﬁﬁ&ﬁ 8936
Investments in associates W@%““TE@? (2542
Unallocated assets KOMEE 8,220,034
Total assets AELE 42,345,005
Segment liabilities ABaE 5,686,156 4,532,888 35,402 - 33526 10,287,972
Recondiliation: i
Unallocated liablties AONER 16,014,292
Total liabilties BELE 26,302,264
Other segment information: HiAHEH
Depreciation i - - 641 2918 5,192 8,751
Corporate and other unallocated amounts ARAMRAREE 18,375
27126
Increase i fair value of investment properties ~ REAMEATELA - 1,251,445 - - - 1,251,445
Provision for impairment of goodwill HERERE - - - 20,066 - 20,066
Capital expenditure* BART* 8,480,793 608,118 61 233 29,089 9,118,294
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and * ﬁﬂﬂ?ﬁﬁ@%%% R RS BRAMER

?Xﬁm%/d\

equipment, properties under development and investment properties.
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WA~ HEWA R s

WA (TRANASEEREREE) - B EERRE
THEHEFR  REHEWA - H2BA - 1&
HIEEERBEA - EBWAREME WA
(INBR & F B R H A S EARRATIR)

5. Revenue, Other Income and Gains 5.
Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents the net
sales of completed properties, finance lease income, rental income,
income from the provision of property management services,
E-commerce income and other fee income, net of business tax and

other sales related tax.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

WA~ B AR mAHIAT

For the year ended 31 March

BZE3A3MBLEE
2014 2013
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
iz FHET FAT
Revenue [ON
Sales of properties VI HE 12,534,980 6,899,068
Finance lease income BMEHEKA 277,603 279,644
Rental income HE WA 304,866 213,995
Property management service income MEEIBREIA 67,074 43,589
E-commerce income ERBA 189,128 =
Other fee income* EHAh B AU A 94,671 38,474
Income from hotel operations B E A B A - 13,291
13,468,322 7,488,061
Other income Hil A
Interest income from: KA TIFIERAFEWA
Banks R1T 42,935 28,531
Finance lease receivables & TH B e W EoE 5,700 2,500
Others EAh 34,350 21,283
82,985 52,314
Gains &
Fair value (losses)/gains on held for BiREE AR T EY R 2 FHE
trading investments at fair value through EERE(EE) s
profit or loss, net T (2,625) 5,657
Gains on disposal of held for trading HEBBERNATEYERZ
investments at fair value through BIEEERE W » F58
profit or loss, net 4,115 -
Fair value gain on derivative financial ESRTARAFERKE 31
instrument 103,348 -
104,838 5,657
187,823 57,971
Fair value gains on investment REWELATE 15
properties & 1,266,287 1,251,445

S Other fee income includes an amount of HK$68,742,000 (2013:
HK$24,060,000) related to income from retail outlet operations.

HinERWAE BIERFRATIN A 68,742,000
7t (20134 : 24,060,000/ 7T) °
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6. Finance Costs 6.
An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

BB A
BMERAZSHTIT

For the year ended 31 March

HE3IAMBLEE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FATT

Interest on bank and other borrowings HRITREMEER S

Wholly repayable within five years BRAFAZHER 576,706 339,112
Wholly repayable beyond five years BRAFREHER 99,412 45,366
Interest on senior notes (note 32) BEEEF B (MFE32) 425,141 334,664
Interest on convertible notes (note 34) AT EEF B (H5E34) 106,430 -
Less: Interest capitalised o BAEFE (1,054,837) (585,828)
Total Ha=t 152,852 133,314
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7. BATAE
AEBOBARBE NG GEA) THIEE

7. Profit Before Tax
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

For the year ended 31 March

BEIANALEE
2014 2013
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P sE THERT FET
Cost of properties sold EEYIZERAR 6,409,079 2,931,128
Cost of properties held for finance lease R ETHE Y ZEK AN 110,171 145,709
Depreciation e 14 69,631 28,944
Less: Depreciation capitalised in respect of B SRR
properties under development BARMEITE (1,141) (1,818)
68,490 27,126
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments  F&1sf + i H FH 4 & 45 17 1,198 190
Minimum lease payments under T RAETF R
operating leases in respect of ABELEHE T
land and buildings and vehicles HEAE 14,264 12,129
Auditors’ remuneration 1% SR B 4,000 4,028
Employee benefit expense (including EERAFAZ(BEES
directors’ remuneration): ) -
Wages and salaries* TENEFHE* 582,836 318,695
Equity-settled share option expense DARE S A5 S O BE AR ARE R 2 63,357 27,176
Pension scheme contributions BIRE B 52,023 19,236
698,216 365,107
Foreign exchange differences, net YINE 7= 5B HRE (6,318) 695
Provision for impairment of goodwill** PR B+ * 18 - 20,066
Provision for impairment of trade receivables** FEUTE 5 BE SRR B B 5 * * 25 58,697 34,540
Loss on redemption of senior notes** BE OB ZiE 7 Eig 176,082 -
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWME - BEKR
plant and equipment RiEIEE EE 973 955
* Included amounts of HK$95,658,000 and HK$53,831,000 for the years * BIEEZE2014F %2013F3A31B L FEHNEEE

2 51195,658,000/& 7T %2 53,831,000/& 7T B F2A
BEARMEEFABRTIE o

ended 31 March 2014 and 2013, respectively, which were capitalised
under properties under development.

FEAGA ER R MR THA -

** Included in “Other expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or B
loss.
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8. Directors’ Emoluments 8. EE¥HS
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the B MBI EREERATNES - REAFENES
Listing Rules and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as SRR
follows:
For the year ended 31 March
BE3A31HLFE
Group
AW
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET THET
Fees e 4,640 3,725
Other emoluments: HME
Salaries, allowances, and benefits in kind e REREYREN 14,136 13,200
Performance-related bonuses* EAZRIR BN EAL 55,080 37,026
Equity-settled share option expense AR E MR AR 23,414 14,504
Pension scheme contributions RIKEEHEIGEK 30 30
97,300 68,485
* Certain executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus * AAREFHITEEGRKEUEAEB BT R IE
payments which are determined as a percentage of the Group’s PR RS 1R B 5T AR B S FE 2 E M TE B RiAR
consolidated net profit after taxation and non-controlling interests but EFFEE D LT RITELL -
before non-operating items of the financial year.
During the year, two executive directors and four independent ERN - WBRITESMUZ B IERTEERM
non-executive directors were granted share options, in respect ZNE IR Y RS TARIE AN BB IR =T 2 5
of their services to the Group, under the share option scheme of BERRRE - HE— S HEHN M B RENE36 -
the Company, further details of which are set out in note 36 to ZEEEROATE(ENEBIENESERE
the financial statements. The fair value of those options, which is VTR RE AHET  MBERAEETERE
recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, HEEEBEER EXEENHESIBEER o

was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in
the financial statements for the current year is included in the above
directors’ remuneration disclosures.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR IR M T (4R

31 March 2014 201443 H31H

8. Directors’ Emoluments (Continued) 8. EEH®H
(a) Independent non-executive directors () BYFEHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during FRANMNTFELIERTESOERSOT -

the year were as follows:

Equity-settled
share option

Fees expense Total

DREREEN
wne HB IR RE B 32 et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET THET THET

2014 201445

Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew REE 380 1,059 1,439
Li Wai Keung =X 380 1,059 1,439
Hui Chiu Chung Stephen EECEY 380 1,059 1,439
Yung Wing Ki Samuel KM 380 1,059 1,439
1,520 4,236 5,756

Equity-settled

share option
Fees expense Total

LAt TR A E
ko BRI R 2 #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
T T THETT

2013 20134

Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew REE 300 - 300
Li Wai Keung R 300 = 300
Hui Chiu Chung Stephen FTHEAR 300 = 300
Yung Wing Ki Samuel Aok 25 - 25
925 - 925
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BA RS SRR MY AL (48D

31 March 2014 201443 H31H

8. Directors’ Emoluments (Continued) 8. EEFIH
(b) Executive directors and non-executive (b) HITEERIFEHITES
directors
Salaries, Equity-
allowances,  Performance- settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expense  contributions Total
e 2ER HREAN  UEREEN BG5S
e BENEAN HEA BRERX HE ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THT THR SR TR TER
2014 20145
Executive directors; BITES:
Cheng Chung Hing LN - 5,800 27,540 - 15 33,355
Leung Moon Lam AT - 5,800 27,540 16,445 15 49,800
Xu Yang Eis - 2,536 - 2,733 - 5,269
- 14,136 55,080 19,178 30 88,424
Non-executive directors: FHITES -
Ma Kai Cheung 5N E 1,080 - - - - 1,080
Sun Kai Lit Cliff HRIZL 680 - - - - 680
Ma Wai Mo SER 680 - - - - 680
Cheng Tai Po Ly 680 - - - - 680
3,120 - - - - 3,120
3,120 14,136 55,080 19,178 30 91,544

China South City Holdings Limited ZEEiH =R AR A T



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR IR M T (4R

31 March 2014 201443 H31H

8. Directors’ Emoluments (Continued) 8.

(b) Executive directors and non-executive
directors (Continued)

BEEHE B
(b) HITEERIHTEE )

Salaries, Equity-
allowances,  Performance- settled Pension
and benefits related share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expense  contributions Total
He 2R BRASN  ERLEEN RRE5E
e BN ML BREFX 3% &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT
2013 2013F
Executive directors: WTEE:
Cheng Chung Hing LN - 5,800 18,326 - 15 24,141
Leung Moon Lam Zinth - 5,800 18,326 11,756 15 35,897
Xu Yang i - 1,600 374 2,748 - 47
- 13,200 37,026 14,504 30 64,760
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Ma Kai Cheung ENE 1,000 - - - - 1,000
Sun Kai Lit Cliff HRIZ 600 - - - - 600
Ma Wai Mo SRR 600 - - - - 600
Cheng Tai Po Ll 600 - - - - 600
2,800 - - - - 2,800
2,800 13,200 37,026 14,504 30 67,560
There was no agreement under which a director waived or FRN - MEEENEXARERENSNLH
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2013: Nil). (20134 : &) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BA RS SRR MY AL (48D

31 March 2014 201443A31H

9. Five Highest Paid Employees
The five highest paid employees during the year included three (2013:
three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8
above. Details of the five highest paid employees for the year are as

9. AUREHAL

FR - AfuEEHEESHBHR=2EE(2013
F:=%) EMSEHRN EXMES - FAR
ERSFEEFTHFHBOT

follows:
For the year ended 31 March
BZE3A3MBLEE
Group
AEE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EZAREYET 21,318 19,720
Bonuses TE4T 78,303 44,386
Equity-settled share option expense AR 4 H M B AR R 44,397 22,031
Pension scheme contributions RIREETBIHR 60 59
144,078 86,196

The number of the five highest paid employees whose remuneration
fell within the following bands is as follows:

NFUTHENAEE=SHEEABLOT

Number of employees

BE AR

2014 2013

HK$3,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 3,000,001 7T 25,000,000/ 7T 1 2
HK$5,000,001 to HK$15,000,000 5,000,001 715,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$15,000,001 to HK$25,000,000 15,000,001 7T% 25,000,000/ 7T - 2
HK$25,000,001 to HK$35,000,000 25,000,0018 7T 235,000,000/ 7T 1 =
HK$35,000,001 to HK$45,000,000 35,000,0018 7T 245,000,000 7T - 1
HK$45,000,001 to HK$55,000,000 45,000,001 7T.2 55,000,000 7T 2 -
5 5

During the year, share options were granted to non-director,
highest paid employees in respect of their services to the Group,
further details of which are included in the disclosure in note 36 to
the financial statements. The fair value of those options, which is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in
the financial statements for the current year is included in the above
five highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.

China South City Holdings Limited ZEr3H iR G R A 7
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BA RS SRR MY AL (48D

31 March 2014 201443A31H

Frigsi

10. Income Tax 10.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2013:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year. No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been
made as the Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year (2013: Nil).

Taxes on profits assessable in Mainland China are calculated at the
rates of tax prevailing in the provinces in which the Group operates.

Under the relevant income tax law, the PRC subsidiaries are subject
to corporate income tax (“CIT") at a statutory rate of 25% (2013:
25%) on their respective taxable income during the year.

The PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT") is levied at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value,
being the proceeds from the sale of properties less deductible
expenditures including land costs, borrowing costs and all property
development expenditures. Amounts of LAT of HK$1,270,280,000
and HK$638,935,000 were charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss for the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013,
respectively.

The major components of income tax expenses for the year are as

FA - RBEBEENGGHERBRFTH1Z16.5%
(20134 : 16.5% )T EEE « FA » AR
SEBEREESHERTEIE MU ETIEE
BRI B H#E(20134F - ) -

o B A M R R BB T e 4 P A
EMBITRIREHE o

RIBAEBEABEE A PRENBARERS
B ER R AR AR E25% (20134 : 25%)
BN ZEFTEH -

F R 4 B (E R IR 30% E260% T 5 K R HE R R
A EE (BN 5 E P8 SRR B 45 Ak
K EERARAEYEERAZ RN
RS ) 1 ERUK - A201,270,280,000/% T &
638,935,000/ oAy T I8 (EF - EDRIEEZE
2014F K 2013F3A31H L FEMGEEBE R
AR o

FA - EHAXEIZEI0T

follows:
For the year ended 31 March
BZE3A3MBLEE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAET
Group: REHR :
Current — Mainland China BIEA— rh B K R 1,239,428 772,557
LAT in Mainland China PR B AR A b 3 E A 1,270,280 638,935
Deferred Mainland China corporate income tax RIEH B AREREFTISHL
(Note 33) (M&E33) (37,230) 194,976
Total tax charged for the year FEMBEZ NGRS 2,472,478 1,606,468
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
/\Zl-i%#ﬁﬁ BTT HE ( n‘ﬁ )

31 March 2014 201443A31H

10. Income Tax (Continued)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at
the statutory rate to the tax expense at the Group'’s effective income

tax rate is as follows:

10. Frf8%i ()
R B R A EE AR BT 0B IR S R
AEEAFEEEER RGO IER OHEN

T~

For the year ended 31 March

BZE3A31BILEE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Profit before tax A5t Al ) 6,168,828 4,473,136
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% 1216.5% EEMEAENTIE 1,017,857 738,067
Higher tax rates enacted by local authorities b5 R I T B e R 544,796 385,902
Income not subject to tax BAFRKA (135,876) (166,259)
Expenses not deductible for tax GIE b3 70,345 39,135
Tax losses utilised from previous years BABEFENTIBEE (11,568) (5,709)
Loss/(profit) attributable to a joint venture —REBEDENR
and associates Bih s N B (L B R/ (FIDE) 38 (178)
Tax losses not recognised REERHBIIEE S 89,489 31,965
LAT + i IE (AR 1,270,280 638,935
Tax effect of LAT THRERNREZE (317,570) (159,734)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of BEFEBIEFAE
previous years (109,768) (54,512)
Effect of withholding tax on the distributable profits of %7 B & B B & 2 7 &Y
the Group’s PRC subsidiaries AT BEEAE M ET E IR NE Y
2 54,455 158,856
Tax charged at the Group's effective rate BAREB BB EGTEA
MBI 2,472,478 1,606,468

The share of tax attributable to associates and a joint venture
amounting to HK$99,000 (2013: Nil) and HK$61,000 (2013:
HK$105,000), respectively, is included in “Share of profits and losses £ : 105,000%7T) + Wit A4RE B

of a joint venture and associates” in the consolidated statement of —RKeEbERBEATNEREEIA -

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR IR M T (4R

31 March 2014 201443A31H

11. Profit Attributable to Owners of the Parent 1. BRREE ABGRHE
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the parent for the HE2014F3A31HILFE - FARIEE AEMN
year ended 31 March 2014 includes a loss of HK$243,266,000 (loss FEMBEBREERARRMBEREYIRAER
for the year ended 31 March 2013: HK$115,927,000) which has 243,266,000/ 7T (B £2013F3A31 A LEFEE
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company (note $8115,927,0007 7T ) (Kt5£37(b)) °
37(b)).
12. Dividends 12. B2
For the year ended 31 March
HE3IAMBLEE
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FATT
Proposed final dividends — HK14.0 cents EEAHRE —SREER
per ordinary share (2013: HK10.0 cents 14.0781li(2013%F -
per ordinary share) T BA%10.07510) 966,996 605,356

13.

The proposed final dividends are subject to the approval of the
Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Earnings Per Share Attributable to Ordinary
Equity Holders of the Parent

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the profit
for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 6,272,737,781
(2013: 6,027,344,822) in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit
for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent. The
weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation
is the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in
the basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no
consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

13.

FORR BB AR AR B RN EERERB SR
SRR - TAFE -

EEREBAREERERFEAZSE
iz 2 R
BREREMN BB QL ERERSTE A
B FEAFERFERNEE176,272,737,781 1%
(20134 : 6,027,344,8220% ) & /A% A9 hn#E F 15
HETHE o

SRE RN RER AR SRR ERT G AR
IEFEANERE - SHEMA N E BB TI9E
DR ESRERANMANFARETEBR
Begr - mAnAEF I E SRR B TR TR s
PAEABESEEENETBRA T ARIZEER
e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BA RS SRR MY AL (48D

31 March 2014 201443 H31H

13. Earnings Per Share Attributable to Ordinary

Equity Holders of the Parent (Continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based

13. FENBRARIEERESEEAZE
BREBF (&)
SREANREERF N EER

on:
For the year ended 31 March
BZE3A3MBLEE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT BT
Earnings EF|
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders RRFTESRERAT
of the parent, used in the basic earnings Z B RAIEBRERRA A
per share calculation FEMRFE 3,494,481 2,749,864
Less: fair value gain on derivative financial instrument & : $74 &g T A A FE (103,348) -
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of TSR I E AT EWZAT
the parent before fair value gain on derivative BARIEE AEEFIE
financial instrument 3,391,133 2,749,864
Number of Shares
R
2014 2013
Shares g}
Weighted average number of ordinary shares RARFESRERET 2
in issue during the year used in the basic FABEITEBRA
earnings per share calculation InE 8 6,272,737,781 6,027,344,822

Effect of dilution — weighted average number
of ordinary shares:
Share options
Tencent call option (note 31)
Convertible notes

R E - LmAINE
T
B
e S RB AR (B RE31)
AR

187,848,507 3,088,244
5,174,361 =
609,589,041 =
7,075,349,690 6,030,433,066
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR IR M T (4R

31 March 2014 201443 H31H

14. Property, Plant and Equipment 14. Y% - BERRE

Group &
Furniture,
fixtures
and
Buildings equipment  Motor vehicles Total
B >
BT RERRR "E @t
31 March 2014 2014534318 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TARL TERT THT TER
At 1 April 2013: R201354A18 :
Cost R 612,226 64,459 54,298 730,983
Accumulated depreciation 2iME (76,045) (35,027) (18,765) (129,837)
Net carrying amount REFE 536,181 29,432 35,533 601,146
At 1 April 2013, net of accumulated 201354718 Bk 536,181 29,432 35,533 601,146
depreciation ZEHE
Additions NE 942 64,462 10,802 76,206
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 38) WE—RHB AR (f:F38) - 9,424 - 9,424
Transfer from properties under development BRRERTIE 53,585 - - 53,585
(note 16) (Fte1e)
Disposals e (5,991) (1,133) (3,494) (10,618)
Depreciation provided during the year (note 7) FEMERENEHT) (34,158) (25,255) (10,218) (69,631)
Exchange realignment [ 5 R (1,065) (66) (58) (1,189)
At 31 March 2014, net of accumulated R201443 8318+ B4R
depreciation 28 549,494 76,864 32,565 658,923
At 31 March 2014: R2014531318
Cost A 658,730 136,323 59,358 854,411
Accumulated depreciation Z:tiTE (109,236) (59,459) (26,793) (195,488)
Net carrying amount RRFE 549,494 76,864 32,565 658,923
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR IR M T (4R

31 March 2014 201443 H31H

14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

14. Y% - BERRE®)

Group

REE

Furniture,
fixtures
Hotel and Motor
Buildings properties equipment vehicles Total
i~
gF EENE  RERGB e @t
31 March 2013 2013%3A318 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tisn Tir Tir Tir Tir
At 1 April 2012: 20124718 ¢
Cost KA 172,585 126,801 64,553 31,119 395,058
Accumulated depreciation 2ainE (66,291) (74,795) (44,330) (13,682) (199,098)
Net carrying amount REFE 106,294 52,006 20,223 17437 195,960
At 1 April 2012, net of accumulated depreciation ~ %2012F4A18 * Bk
2itE 106,294 52,006 20,223 17437 195,960
Additions NE 7,646 62 25,127 18,730 51,565
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—FHEAH - - 407 6,640 7,047
Transfer from properties under development ERERRERYE
(note 16) (BizE16) 432,508 = = = 432,508
Revaluation gain upon transfer to investment ERTRANER
properties Efilia - 381,941 - - 381,941
Transfer to investment properties (note 15) BRI AN (fE15) - (430,691) - - (430,691)
Disposals hE (790) (934) (8,645) (549) (10,918)
Depreciation provided during the year FENERE
(note 7) (FirzE7) (10,890) (3.101) (8,009) (6944) (28,944)
Exchange realignment 0B o 1,413 17 329 219 2,678
At 31 March 2013, 2013634318+ Bk
net of accumulated depreciation 2itiE 536,181 - 29,432 35,533 601,146
At 31 March 2013 12013434318
Cost KA 612,226 - 64,459 54,298 730,983
Accumulated depreciation RitiE (76,045) = (35,027) (18,765) (129,837)
Net carrying amount FEEE 536,181 - 29,432 35,533 601,146
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR IR M T (4R

31 March 2014 201443 H31H

14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

15.

Certain of the Group’s buildings with aggregate carrying values
of approximately HK$15,952,000 and HK$16,677,000 as at 31
March 2014 and 2013, respectively, were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 30).

At 31 March 2014, certificates of ownership in respect of certain
buildings of the Group in the PRC with an aggregate net book
value of HK$195,732,000 (2013: HK$210,579,000) had not been
issued by the relevant PRC authorities. The Group is in the process of

obtaining the relevant certificates of ownership.

14. Y% - BERZE@®
MR2014F & 2013F3 A31H » AEBEE@AE
7 314915,952,00078 7T }.16,677,00078 TV T
BFEERRIEARNSBER —RIRITREMER

2014F3A318 « AEBERFRHEEDFES X
195,732,000 7t (20134 : 210,579,0007% 7T )
BB TIEFRERBPBERETE LAMEEE - &~
S EIEfEEBURRFT A iR o

Investment Properties 15.
Group
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Carrying amount at beginning of year FHREREE 19,425,946 13,637,107
Additions NE 879,270 608,118
Transfer from property, plant EEAYE - BB NEE
and equipment - 430,691
Transfer from properties under HEEERPYE
development 2,793,225 3,293,910
Transfer from properties held for finance lease R EIH{ERIETHEE 188,797 -
Transfer to properties held for sale HEE A RIS E (460,291) -
Net gain from a fair value adjustment N ERAEF = 1,266,287 1,251,445
Exchange realignment HE 3 R (59,329) 204,675
Carrying amount at end of year FRAEREE 24,033,905 19,425,946

The above investment properties are held under medium term leases

and are situated in Mainland China.

PR E Y E D REERE - WA ER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
/\Zl-i%#ﬁ‘%% BTT HE ( n‘ﬁ )

31 March 2014 201443A31H

15. REW=E @)

15. Investment Properties (Continued)

160

Group

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31
March 2014 and 2013 by Savills at RMB19,267,200,000
and RMB15,542,000,000, respectively, (equivalent to
HK$24,033,905,000 and HK$19,425,946,000, respectively) on an
open market, existing use basis.

The Group’s investment properties with aggregate carrying values
of approximately HK$16,035,574,000 and HK$13,108,315,000 as
at 31 March 2014 and 2013, respectively, were pledged to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 30).

The Group’s investment properties with aggregate carrying values
of approximately HK$22,818,938,000 and HK$19,425,946,000
as at 31 March 2014 and 2013, respectively, are subject to sales
restriction (note 19(iv),(v) and (vi)).

The Group's investment properties consist of commercial properties
in Mainland China. The directors of the Company have determined
that the investment properties consist of one class of asset, i.e.,
commercial properties, based on the nature, characteristics and risks
of each property. The Group'’s investment properties were revalued
on 31 March 2014 based on valuations performed by Savills, an
independent professionally qualified valuer, at HK$24,033,905,000
on an open market, existing use basis. Each year, the Group’s
management decide, after approval from the audit committee, to
appoint which external valuer to be responsible for the external
valuations of the Group’s properties. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. The Group’s management has discussions
with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation results
twice a year when the valuation is performed for interim and annual
financial reporting.

China South City Holdings Limited ZEr3H iR G R A 7

rEE
FE—KFH N 2014F F20135F3 A31HE
HAEENREDE  RARMBERERAREE
BIEED B ARE19,267,200,0007T & A R
15,542,000,000 7T ( 9 5l #8 55 74 24,033,905,000
P IT1%2.19,425,946,000/ 7T ) °

MR20145E % 201343310 © NEBEREEAE
7 7114316,035,574,0007% 7T ). 13,108,315,0007%8
TR EYEBIRFEAAEE R —RIBITR
B RPEIR(HIEE30) o

MR2014F 201363 A31H @ AEEREAE
2 Bl 4922,818,938,000 7% 7T & 19,425,946,000
7S TC IR & W) 2 52 B $5 B PR B (M AE 19(v)(v) A1
(vi)) ©

AEENREMEDEETRNEGEDZE - AR
RIESRA  REVFEERRBRIVENEE - it
ERES A—HEE(FEDE) - BRE—FEL
BELEARGERME - AFEEETHHE -
AEENREYEN2014F3 831 BN EGKEE
#924,033,905,000/8 7T * KEZEZE &R -
AEENERESTATETAELHANEEYE
HEITINBHERINEHERI AR - fEER|BiE
ﬁi%%ﬂ.%‘z BE BT AREEHEITEENK

o LR EA R FE MBI EHITHER - AEE
mﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁiﬂafﬁﬁﬂitiﬁdzﬁﬁfﬁm HEAERE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BA RS SRR MY AL (48D

31 March 2014 201443A31H

15. Investment Properties (Continued) 15.
Fair value hierarchy
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy
of the Group's investment properties:

BREWE @)
NI EER
TRIGAAEEREYENATETEER -

Fair value measurement
using significant
unobservable inputs
(Level 3)
EAERFERRAYE
AR ERE

(%E34%)

HK$'000

BT

Recurring fair value measurement for: RUATFEHLEER

Commercial properties BEXUES

FEHE -
24,033,905

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3.

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key
inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

FR - FIREER2ECABBER LR TEFE
EEER - E3MINER T EFEEARE -

AT A B EPT AR MERN R EERA
EURMBER -

Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs Range
fh{ER A EXRFBERARE g[E
As at 31 March 2014
#1k201443A31H
Commercial properties Income capitalisation Market unit rental rate (RMB/sg. m./month) 40-139
method
[HEZ7ES WABARIE M5B EE (AR, FHKA)

Capitalisation rate

NS

3.00%-8.25%

The fair values of investment properties are determined principally
using the income capitalization method by capitalizing the rental
income derived from the existing tenancies with due provisions for
the reversionary income potential of the properties. The fair value
measurement is positively correlated to the market unit rental rate
and negatively correlated to capitalisation rate. For the portions
which were under construction, the expended construction costs
and the costs that are expected to be expended to complete the
properties has also been taken into account in arriving at their fair
values.

REMELAFEEIZRRABMEETE - 71
ERREEEMENHESBAERL - Wt
HMEERERERAGIREERE - AT EENE
HEISHEKIEL A EEARME KRR - BIEHE
g2 B - EREEATEER EBEEFR
B XM ZERA KT FE IR B KRR
7 o
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16. Properties Under Development 16. BERF Y%
Group REE
2014 2013
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P sE THET FHTT
Carrying amount at beginning of year FUHREE 2,381,710 2,878,003
Additions NE 15,243,529 7,717,364
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEE—KK B A A - 734,200
Transfer to property, plant and EREYE -
equipment ] 14 (53,585) (432,508)
Transfer to investment properties HEREILEYE 15 (2,793,225) (3,293,910)
Transfer to prepaid land lease payments ERFREM AR 17 (38,864) (98,415)
Transfer to completed properties held for sale &4 % 238 T35 F
and properties under development HEMERBRPFHE
held for sale SHEMZ (11,801,130) (4,968,127)
Transfer to properties held for finance lease ERSHIEREREME - (193,058)
Exchange realignment M 3 B (4,943) 38,161
Carrying amount at end of year FEERMEE 2,933,492 2,381,710

The above properties under development are held under medium or
long term leases and situated in Mainland China.

Certain of the Group’s properties under development with
aggregate carrying values of approximately HK$234,035,000 and
HK$55,350,000 as at 31 March 2014 and 2013, respectively, were
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group
(note 30).

During the current year, the Group has received government grants
which were provided by the local government authorities to support
infrastructure construction and development activities in connection
with the Group’s property development projects. An amount of
HK$249,579,000 of the government grant was deducted from the
additions of properties under development for the year.

China South City Holdings Limited ZEr3H iR G R A 7

PRy FRZPRAIEREERSS - LR
Fh B R
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17.

18.

Prepaid Land Lease Payments

17. AT HES

Group AEEH
2014 2013
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
LhEs FET FAET
Carrying amount at beginning of year FUMEREE 105,630 7,116
Transfer from properties under development & EEEP Y% 16 38,864 98,415
Recognised during the year FNFER 7 (1,198) (190)
Exchange realignment [ 7, 5 797 289
Carrying amount at end of year FRAEEE 144,093 105,630

Current portion included in prepayments, SFATEMNFUE - e K

deposits and other receivables Hith e R IE R BN EREB 5 (1,198) (190)
Non-current portion FERNERFR > 142,895 105,440

The leasehold land is held under a medium term lease and is situated

in Mainland China.

Goodwiill

ME+izh BREERH - W HBEARE -

18. B8
Group REE HK$'000
FHTT

At 1 April 2012: F201264 818

Cost AN 20,066
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE -
Net carrying amount BREVFEE 20,066
Cost at 1 April 2012, net of accumulated impairment R2012F4 /18 - EHBRRZFHRE 20,066
Impairment during the year (note 7) FERE(HFE7) (20,066)
At 31 March 2013 7201353 A31H =

At 31 March 2013: M2013%3H31H :
Cost B AR 20,066
Accumulated impairment REHRE (20,066)
Net carrying amount BRMEFRE =
Cost at 1 April 2013, net of accumulated impairment M2013F4 /18 - EHBRRFHRE =
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38) KB BT 8~ | (B 5E38) 34,128
At 31 March 2014 R2014F3H31H 34,128

At 31 March 2014 : M2014F3A318 :
Cost PR AR 54,194
Accumulated impairment ZERE (20,066)
Net carrying amount BRTEFRE 34,128
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18. Goodwiill (Continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill
Goodwill acquired through business combinations have been
allocated to the hotel cash-generating unit and the property leasing
operation cash-generating unit for impairment testing.

e  Hotel cash-generating unit
e  Property leasing cash-generating unit

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the cash-
generating units is as follows:

18. BE (%)

AERER R
BBEBAMRBNBREE REBEENRSE
AR NRYERENE SEEBMERER
o JEEMRESELEM
o YEHEMREELEN

DENSHELBVNBEREENT :

Hotel Property leasing Total
i3 VIEZE a8
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT THERT THL TARL TAT
Carrying amount of goodwil EEREE - - 34,128 - 34,128 -

The Group has leased its hotel properties to an independent party.
Full impairment loss of HK$20,066,000 has been provided on the
goodwill related to the hotel operation of the Group in previous
year.

The recoverable amount of the property leasing operation cash-
generating unit is determined based on a value-in-use calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
senior management covering a five-year period.

The key assumptions adopted on growth rate and discount rate
used in the value-in-use calculation is based on management’s best
estimates. The growth rate of 5% is determined by considering
both internal and external factors relating to the property leasing
segment. The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is
12%.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change in the
key assumptions on which the recoverable amounts of goodwill are
based would not cause the carrying amounts of goodwill to exceed
their recoverable amounts.

China South City Holdings Limited ZEr3H iR G R A 7
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19. Investments in Subsidiaries

19. R B RIMNKRE

Company RAE]
2014 2013
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B E FTHET FET
Unlisted investments, at cost JEETRE - A 2,201,275 2,201,275
Loan to a subsidiary F—XKMBARER 534,000 534,000

Capital contribution in respect of convertible

notes ARBRERE AT E 34 37,360 =
2,772,635 2,735,275

The amounts due from and due to subsidiaries included
in the Company’s current assets and current liabilities of
HK$4,928,814,000 (2013: HK$2,869,404,000) and HK$28,812,000
(2013: HK$35,924,000) are unsecured, interest-free and are
repayable on demand or within one year.

The loan to a subsidiary bears fixed interest of 8% per annum, and is
unsecured and repayable by July 2015. The carrying amount of the
loan to a subsidiary approximates to its fair value.

RARBRBNEERRE B ES IR 2B K E
1~ B B A R 3R I8 4,928,814,0005% 7T (20134 :
2,869,404,000 7% Jt ) % 28,812,0007% 7T (2013
F : 35,924,000/ 7T ) AEEKIT - 2B RARE
KR —FREE ©

A —KMB A RIEL 2 EFIRE F8% 2 ElE A
=]

B BEEALANR2015F7 ARER - [
—ZXMBRREH 2 ERMERAESEE A F(EE
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19. Investments in Subsidiaries (Continued)

19. RKBRARIMNIKRE (&)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEMBRAFBLT
Nominal value of
Place of issued ordinary/
incorporation/ registered share  Date of Percentage of
registration and capital asat  incorporation/ equity attributable
Name business 31 March 2014 registration to the Company Principal activities
£% MR/ ERE R201453A318  ERKL/ ARAEE  XEER
Ry BRTEE/AM  AMBH BEADM
BAEE
Direct Indirect
B BE
% %
China South International Industrial Materials City - PRC/Mainland China HK$2,200,000,000 18 December 2002 - Development and management of
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (ii)iv) e/ ARE 2,200,000,000i7C  18-12-2002 integrated logistics trade centers
ERERTEREHRIVER AR FEHENRRARISTL
REREE
Nanchang China South City Company PRC/Mainland China RMB1,100,000,000 16 November 2007 100 Development and management of
Limited ()v) HE /R E AR AR%1,100,000,0007  16-11-2007 integrated logistics trade centers
BEERHARAA(WV) TaBEMR kAR ST
REREE
Nanning China South City Company Limited (iii)(v) PRC/Mainland China  RMB1,000,000,000 (2013: 28 August 2009 100 Development and management of
HEEEHERARi)V) RE/REARE RMB500,000,000) 28-08-2009 integrated logistics trade centers
AEK%1,000,000,0007C FABENRRARZZTL
(2013 FRREE
AR#500,000,00070)
Xi"an China South City Company Limited (i PRC/Mainland China US$30,000,000 12 November 2009 100 Development and management of
PR AR A i) HE /R E AR 30,000,000%7C 12-11-2009 integrated logistics trade centers
TaBEMRRARRZ ST
REREE
Harbin China South City Company Limited (i) PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 9 January 2012 100 Development and management of
BREEEHARA) E/ R EARE ARH£200,000,0007 09-01-2012 integrated logistics trade centers
FaBENRRARR SR
FEREE
Harbin Baolitong Market Development PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 22 December 2011 100 Development and management of
Management Company Limited (i e/ hEARE ARH#200,000,0007 22-12-2011 integrated logistics trade centers

KRR NEMHREERARAA)

China South City Holdings Limited ZEr3H iR G R A 7
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19. RKBRARIMNIKRE (&)

19. Investments in Subsidiaries (Continued)

Nominal value of

Place of issued ordinary/
incorporation/ registered share  Date of Percentage of
registration and capital asat  incorporation/ equity attributable
Name business 31 March 2014 registration to the Company Principal activities
£8 BaAVEL H201453A318  EMAL/ FRAEEE  TEXER
Beh ERAEE/R  2MAH RHAAL
BAEE
Direct Indirect
E  HE
% %
Zhengzhou China South City Company Limited (i) PRC/Mainland China  RMB1,000,000,000 (2013 17 May 2012 = 100 Development and management of
ENEER AR AR /AR RMB300,000,000) 17-05-2012 integrated logistics trade centers
AK#1,000,000,0007 FABENRRBRZAT L
(2013 FEREE
AR#300,000,0007)
Hefei China South City Company Limited (i)(vi) ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB600,000,000 25 December 2012 - 100 Development and management of
AEERRA R i) e/ hEIARE AE600,000,000T 25-12-2012 integrated logistics trade centers
FaBENRRARZ SR
FREREE
Chongging China South City Company Limited (ii) - PRC/Mainland China RMB600,000,000 27 December 2013 - 100 Development and management of
BEEENERAAI e/ hEIARE ARE600,000,0007T 27-12-2013 integrated logistics trade centers
FABENRRARZZRL
HEREE
Shenzhen Huasheng Commercial Development ~ PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB50,000,000 (2013: 19 November 2010 - 100 Management of outlet operations
Company Limited (i) B/ R E AR RMB20,000,000) 19-11-2010 RERESEERER
AYEEEXZRER AR ARH50,000,0007
(2013
AR%20,000,0007)
Shenzhen China South City e-Commerce PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 19 April 2012 - 100 Development, operations and
Company Limited (i) /B AK™100,000,0007 19-04-2012 maintenance of E-commerce
A ERHAE TR AR L i) business
ETHERY BekER
Shenzhen First Asia Pacific Property Management ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 31 December 2003 25 97.5 Provision of property management
Co, Ltd. () i/ HEAR ARH50,000,0007 31-12-2003 services
A E-TAMEERERLA) RENEERRY
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19. RKBRARIMNIKRE (&)

19. Investments in Subsidiaries (Continued)

Nominal value of

Place of issued ordinary/
incorporation/ registered share  Date of Percentage of
registration and capital asat  incorporation/ equity attributable
Name business 31 March 2014 registration to the Company Principal activities
£8 MR/ ERE R201453A318  EMKL/ ARAEE  TEER
gen BRAEE/GR  2fAH BEADM
BAEE
Direct Indirect
B BE
% %
Qianlong Logistics Group Limited PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB200,000,000 (2013: 2 July 2004 - 95 Provision of logistics services
(formerly known as Shenzhen Qianlong e/ hEIARE RMB30,000,000) 02-07-2004 R
Logistics Company Limited) (i) AR 200,000,000
ZENTEERRAR (2013:
(RERY AR 2 A )i ARH30,000,0007)
Shenzhen HOBA Home Furnishing Chain Store ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB192,000,000/ 12 October 2001 - 37.5 Property leasing
Company Limited (i(vi) e/ R E AR RMBA480,000,000 12-10-2001 NERE
AT BRI A B A R vii AEH192,000,0007,/
AR#480,000,0007
Shenzhen China South City Advertising PRC/Mainland China RMB1,500,000 20 July 2004 - 100 Provision of advertising services
Co,, Ltd. (i) e/ RE AR ARH1,500,0007 20-07-2004 B RS
AR R SRR AR
Shenzhen China South International Convention  PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 10 February 2006 = 100 Provision of exhibition services
and Exhibition Center Co., Ltd. (ji) B/ AR AK%2,000,0007 10-02-2006 RREMRS
AT EEH R g R OB A (i)
ASEAN City (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 23 October 2007 100 ~ Investment holding
REHBVIERAT RBRLEE 1% 23-10-2007 REMR
China South City Management Company Hong Kong HK$1 9 November 2007 - 100 Provision of management services
Limited B 17T 09-11-2007 R ER RS
EENEEERAR
China South City Group Limited (iii) PRC/Mainland China RMB300,000,000 20 July 2004 = 100 Investment holding
ERHERBR LA hE/EAR AR%300,000,0007T  20-07-2004 RER

China South City Holdings Limited ZEr3H iR G R A 7
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19. Investments in Subsidiaries (Continued)
Notes:

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Sino-foreign equity joint ventures under PRC law
A wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC law
Limited companies under PRC law

Pursuant to certain land purchase agreements entered into by China
South International Industrial Materials City (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.,the
saleable gross floor area of properties built on these parcels of land is
limited to 30% of the total builderable gross floor area. The portion
of the gross floor area with restriction to sale is used by the Group for
leasing and self-use.

Pursuant to certain land purchase agreements entered into by
Nanchang China South City Company Limited and Nanning China
South City Company Limited in 2010, respectively, the saleable gross
floor area of trade centers and storage facilities built on these parcels
of land are limited to 60% of the total buildable gross floor area.
This restriction does not apply to the properties built for residential,
commercial and other uses, and also does not apply to the land
obtained by the two companies subsequent to 2010. The portion of the
gross floor area with restriction to sale is used by the Group for leasing
and self-use.

Pursuant to certain land purchase agreements entered into by Hefei
China South City Company Limited in May 2013, June 2013 and
April 2014, the saleable gross floor areas of trade centers built on
these parcels of land are limited to 50% of the total buildable gross
floor areas. This restriction does not apply to the properties built for
residential, commercial and other uses. The portion of the gross floor
area with restriction to sale is used by the Group for leasing and self-
use.

Pursuant to an agreement entered into with Shenzhen HOBA Home
Furnishing Chain Store Company Limited (“HOBA Furnshing”) in July
2013, the Group has agreed to subscribe for 360,000,000 shares of
HOBA Furnishing at a total consideration of RMB522,210,000, out of
which the Group has paid an amount of RMB104,442,000 (equivalent
to HK$132,861,000) during the year. The amount represents a 37.5%
of the issued share capital of HOBA Furnshing. HOBA Furnshing is
accounted for as a subsidiary of the Group because the Group already
has more than 50% of the voting rights of HOBA Furnishing. Further
details of this acquisition are included in note 38 to the financial
statements.

19. RKBRARIMNIKRE (&)

BifaE

(0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

EER TR A BEEAT -
FEEE T EBALE -
EERTHARAT -

REBERBER TR RN BRARETZA
BinTBEAR - BEZFHIR LY
HEZEmMARNBZERENI0%  #0 X2
HERBIMELEE  AEERANEEME

BREEEERRARARMEEERRERAT
M2010F B BRIVHA T LHBEESR 2%
ZIABE TR LN S OEHEMEFYEN
AHEREEERNZENELTZEEEN
60% ° WERRHITEANMET - BB REMAERN
W - T NERRME QAR 2010F AR ES
ML - B R EHERFIMEERR - AKE
RREBEMEA -

RIBAIEERB AR ARE2013F5AF6 A K
2014F4RRI M HEE SR - BEZSHI
ERR SRR ] SRR RN Z I E
BEEEETENS0%  WRFITNERANMEE &
B REMARRNME - B ZRIHERTINEE
i AEEAREEMEA -

BREMAITHFEFREEHBROERAA
([FEFERE])HE201367 AB T - &
S B A AR VEEB ARB522,210,0007T 7R R 4F
B F X /& 360,000,000 iR & 5 + HH 8 AR
104,442,0007T (AHE 1 132,861,000 7T ) AN E
EREERFAR - REBERRITSNHFEFRE
BEEIRG - ARNAEEEERTFAFRESR
50%HIRERE - FAFREGUEEFRAIE
WEE R F B E HN P RKRMTE38 o
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20. Investment in a Joint Venture

20. A—HREELENRE

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT BT
Share of net assets iEEEFE - =
Due from a joint venture R —REEDERIR 14,127 14,394
14,127 14,394
Provision for impairment B (5,208) (5,458)
8,919 8,936
The amount due from a joint venture is unsecured, has no JEW—RE & FEFIBAEER - ME T8N
fixed terms of repayment and bears interest at 7% per annum. RIZFT%ET B o ZEN—REEREFIENER
The carrying amount of the amount due from a joint venture HEEEEAFERE °
approximates to its fair value.
Particulars of the Group’s joint venture is as follows: BETEFBWOT :
Nominal value of
issued and fully Percentage of
Place of paid-up registered Date of equity attributable to
registration and capital as at  incorporation/ the Group
Name business 31 March 2014 registration asat31March Principal activities
R2014%38318
R BRORARER ML/ R3A3NBA5E
£ TEe EXEE ZftAH ERERAME ITER
2014 2013
% %
China South Royal Restaurant (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.# PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 16 June 2005 50.5 505 Restaurant operations
FHEFEE (M) ERAT) B/ REAR ARH5,000,00070  16-06-2005 HEEE
Note: Mit3E
# The Group holds a 50.5% of the registered capital of China South Royal # AEERAERERBZORINARAF(—K
Restaurant (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd, a sino-foreign equity joint venture. FING BEENT]) M E ARM50.5%  RIER
Pursuant to the shareholders’ agreement and the articles of association R ke EeEABERMA - FH—HFEHZ
of the joint venture, none of the parties has unilateral control over the ZEECENKE RV BRRY EE TR
operating and financing decisions of the joint venture. Accordingly, R - Al - EFRA/BEAREERNEP R A
the directors account for the Group's interest in the company as an RINBN —REERERIRE -

investment in a joint venture.

China South City Holdings Limited ZEr3H iR G R A 7
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20. Investment in a Joint Venture (Continued)

The Company holds the 50.5% of the registered capital of the
joint venture through a wholly-owned subsidiary. The joint venture
has financial year end of 31 December. The consolidated financial
statements are adjusted for the material transactions between the
joint venture and the group companies between 1 January and 31

21.

March annually.

The following table illustrates the financial information of the

Group’s joint venture:

20. A—REEDLENRE @)

ARARBB—REEHRENHBRAEE —RE
BEFMERNS0.5% - AL EENTRFEE
TEZE12A3181E - GREMBHRERETF1 AN
AZ3A31AfiMAEEEEBKE AR ZMH
MEAR Z1ELFAZE -

TRHUAREEAELEOMHARBE -

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHTT
Share of joint venture’s assets and liabilities: AL EEE
kEfE:

Current assets MENEE 4,936 4,530
Non-current assets FEMBNE EE 1,107 1,352
Current liabilities mEBaE (11,615) (11,340)
Net liabilities aEFE (5.572) (5,458)

Share of joint venture’s results: JEhE SRS
Revenue WA 19,262 19,022
Expenses M (19,018) (17,999)
Profit for the year REZFH 244 1,023

Investments in Associates 21. REEE QA TINIRE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$°000
TET FET
Share of net assets (L& ESE 7,234 599
Due to associates AR NEIE O (3,134) (3,141)
Due from associates JE U B N R FIAR 41 =
4,141 (2,542)

The amounts due from/(to) associates included in investments in
associates above are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed

terms of repayment.

FEA B EE R RIAIR B AR, (FE AT ) Bt
RAFBAREER - REREEEENRY -
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21.

Investment in Associates (Continued) . REtE QA TINIRE @)
Particulars of the associates are as follows: kNS A p (N
Nominal value of Percentage of equity
Place of issued and fully paid-  Date of attributable
registration and up incorporation/ to the Group
Name business registered capital  registration asat31March  Principal activities
R3A318
BRRAR HERHL/ AEEER
£ EMREEHE AMEAEE EREH BREMH  IEEE
2014 2013
% %
China South Intimex Technology (Shenzhen) PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 18 January 2004 30 30 Website and software development
Co,, Lid. 8/ hE AR AR10,0000007T 18012004 S EN T
EERENA(DIERA
Harbm Huayilong Fur Market Co, Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB21,000,000 17 January 2014 25 -~ Property leasing
REEZRERENARLA /B KR ARH21,0000007  17-01-2014 VELE

The associates have financial year end of 31 December. The
consolidated financial statements are adjusted for the material
transactions between the associates and the group companies
between 1 January and 31 March annually.

The associates have been accounted for using the equity method in
these financial statements.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of
the Group'’s associates:

BN BEEEZ12A318 1 < &6
BBmAmEE1 1B E3A31 B AR E A q)
HEEKE AR ZENEARZIELAE -

L UNCIVEIPR: Sz iSRS p s PN

RIS EE RS QRN BERGE

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Assets BE 43,751 5,860
Liabilities BE 18,661 3,864
Revenue A 18 69
Loss BB (2,874) (1,171)

China South City Holdings Limited ZEr3H iR G R A 7
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22,

23.

24,

Finance Lease Receivables

The balance represents entrusted loans provided by the Group to
lessees through Shanghai Pudong Development Bank in connection
with the finance lease of its properties. The finance lease receivables,
which bear interest at rates ranging from 6.336% to 6.435% per
annum, are repayable by monthly instalments within 10 years. The
carrying amounts of the finance lease receivables approximate to
their fair values. The amounts of the current portion of the finance
lease receivables of HK$8,204,000 and HK$8,221,000 were included
in prepayments, deposits and other receivables as at 31 March 2014
and 2013, respectively.

Deposits Paid for Purchase of Land Use Rights
The balance represents deposits paid for acquisitions of land use
rights for parcels of land in Mainland China. The carrying amounts
of the deposits paid for the purchase of land use rights approximate
to their fair values.

22,

23.

mEHEREKRRE
HEHRIEAEBFEYENRENE - BB LEH
RERBITMABRARBONEZATER - EHEE
JEUW R IE I FEF RN F6.336% £6.435%:T 2
WERI0OFRNSTADHEE - EASRKR
HRRmEBEE A TERS - R20144F %2013
F3A31H  BERERKRFIENANENS S
2 7l 28,204,000/ 7T 128,221,000/ 7T » E5TA
B FIE -~ e REMBKGUE -

BELERAEANRSE

Aok HE T R B KT IO SR 0 £ S o PR 521
WS o BE LA RS MR ER
HAFEARE -

Properties Held for Sale 24. FEHEWE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAET
Completed properties held for sale EEHER TS 7,093,329 3,369,886
Properties under development expected to be TEEIR IEE & ERER
completed within normal operating cycle BT HEERERYE 6,361,371 6,011,292
13,454,700 9,381,178
Properties under development expected to be BRAPYETBERT K
completed and ready for sale AI{ESHE
Within one year — &R 3,001,786 3,557,546
Beyond one year —F% 3,359,585 2,453,746
Total ®’E 6,361,371 6,011,292
Certain of the Group’s properties held for sale with an aggregate RIS EARRE - BRE{E S 3,707,127,0000% 7T

carrying value of HK$3,707,127,000 (2013: HK$2,339,936,000) at
the end of the reporting period were pledged to secure the bank
loans granted to the Group (note 30).

(20134F : 2,339,936,000/8 7T ) B AN EHE T 45
RS MEE RIFE AN S EERIBITERME
R(KIFE30) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BA RS SRR MY AL (48D

31 March 2014 201443 H31H

25. Trade Receivables

25. B E 5 IR

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHER T

Trade receivables EUE SERRN 2,964,107 1,037,648
Impairment NERIE] (158,268) (100,721)
2,805,839 936,927

Trade receivables represent sales income, rentals receivable and
service income receivables from customers which are payable on
issuance of invoices or in accordance with the terms of the related
sale and purchase agreements. The Group generally allows a credit
period of not exceeding 60 days to its customers. Overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of this and
the fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number
of diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing. The carrying
amounts of the trade receivables approximate to their fair values.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables based on the payment due
date as at the end of the reporting period, net of provision, is as
follows:

FEWE 5 R R R B R RN SARIZERE B
BB ErNEERA - BEES RR
WA - REE—RIRHTBBOREERT
P - eRERETRENB DRSS - HENIT
MAEENERESEFERETRZFHRE
B BEAEHEERR - BRAEZEHR SR

B o BYE SR AREEEE A FERE

RS
R BEHERNRESTIOT

HIRES - IRIBAHREIHR - BRE SRR

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000

FHER FAT

Within 1 month KEEIPNA 1,805,792 554,520
1 to 2 months 1Z=2{8A 208,048 97,758
2 to 3 months 2Z23fE A 316,165 97,650
Over 3 months 31 A 475,834 186,999
2,805,839 936,927
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR IR M T (4R

31 March 2014 201443 H31H

25. Trade Receivables (Continued)

The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables are as

follows:

25. BEWE ZRR (%)
FEIE B IR R R RS BT

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FET

Carrying amount at beginning of year REVREREE 100,721 64,829
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) B R REEE (FiEE7) 58,697 34,540
Exchange realignment PE W AR (1,150) 1,352
Carrying amount at end of year RERREREE 158,268 100,721

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not individually

nor collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:

BRI AT RE RRERN K E 5 R RARR

ERAMIAT -

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$'000

THERT FAT

Neither past due nor impaired Ao HA K AR RE 499,802 496,856
Less than 1 month past due wHILR1EA 1,305,990 57,664
1 to 3 months past due w1 =31E B 524,213 195,408
Over 3 months past due B HA3ME A LA E 475,834 186,999
2,805,839 936,927

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired and past due
but not impaired relate to a large number of diversified customers
for whom there was no recent history of default. The Group would
not release the property ownership certificates to the buyers before
the buyers fully settle the payment.

R N AREA K B BB KR ER B FIR
HAETRAEFER  WEROLE|RRE
HEERE2BUFENKE - AEETERHEELE

EE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR IR M T (4R

31 March 2014 201443 H31H

26. Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables 26. ARIE ~ ReERHEMERFRIE

Group REE
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$’'000
THET FET

Prepayments TEFIE 222,290 61,047

Receivables for disposal of subsidiaries* H 5 BT /B8 A R O R L kIR 202,107 438,464

Deposits and other receivables Re REA IR 296,872 134,849

Current portion of finance lease receivables BhE 7 & FEIGRIE 2 B ERER

(note 22) (Fff7E22) 8,204 8,221
729,473 642,581

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to PR Bl eR A BRR) & RO E B Rl WA R FREC 8% o

receivables for which there was no recent history of default.

o The amount represented receivables from an independent third party * FER2012F - RBYE=HBEBHES THE
in connection with the disposal of certain subsidiaries by the Group in NElZ W - AR¥200,000,000 T4 F EE
2012. An amount of RMB200,000,000 was settled in the current year 7 - FBHAIM 201543 B31 B 2 A2 5B € 4 Uk
and the remaining balance is expected to be collected before 31 March B o EWFIENERESEE N FERE -

2015. The carrying amount of the receivables balance approximates to
its fair value.

27. Held for Trading Investments at Fair Value 27. BBEmUAANFEIKZFEEER

Through Profit Or Loss &
Group REH
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Listed investment funds at market value EhmEfEN LmEES 29,120 117,643
The above listed investment funds at 31 March 2014 and 2013 were R2014F 20133 H31H « Lt FTiIREE
classified as held for trading upon initial recognition, and designated SRR DERFEREE - ARBESES
by the Group as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss FERNEHNHEREO - WAKEBEEEE
since they were acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of AEBREEAATFEIERENERIEE °

selling or repurchasing in the near term.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR IR M T (4R

31 March 2014 201443A31H

28. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash  28. 4 RESZEEYRSREES

Group REE
2014 2013
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
P sE THET FHTT
Cash and bank balances R& RIRITEEH 12,777,108 6,777,842
Less: Restricted cash o XRFIRE * (1,474,064) (513,128)
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRSFEY 11,303,044 6,264,714
Company RAE]
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRSFED 2,774,381 1,264,811

* Restricted cash mainly comprises (i) guarantee deposits for the
mortgage loan facilities granted by the banks to purchasers of the
Group's properties; (ii) guarantee funds of construction projects to meet
local authorities’ requirements; (iii) certain amount of pre-sale proceeds
of properties placed as guarantee deposits for the construction of
related properties; and (iv) certain amount of proceeds from leases
of several properties to be used for future repayment of certain bank
borrowings.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
HK$8,219,500,000 (2013: HK$5,054,838,000). RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one day and three months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances and restricted cash
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

* XRARSTZEE  (MBEAKEMXZE
RERTETHRBEFBENRERS © (I
FRAEBWRES - AT A EHEBANER ¢ (i)
MERENE TREFIASE - WERBEYME
BRORBESRVWEEWENE THEMS
RIELFARREERN -

RBEHR  AEBUARBABENNES
18 & % {8 ¥8,219,500,000 78 7t (2013 4F :
5,054,838,000787T) © ARMEWA] B HRAE
EAEHEE - SAM - ARIR A BIRRERINES B 150
KRAETE - HEREERT - NEE B REE
EITINEEBMRITBARE LB AR EE -

FRIRITIRERIBEE A RT3 RS B =
RIS - MAEMERNERIEE  B—X
E-EAATE  BFAKERNKHNESHERM
JE - TALS BB 852 HARE BA T KR SRR ER - 4R
TTHEBREZBHR S HFRNEERF BT
R RFLERIRTT ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR IR M T (4R

31 March 2014 201443 H31H

29. Trade and Other Payables 29. B RHEMEMNTIE
Group REE
2014 2013
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
B E THET FHTT
Other payables and accruals H A eI R EETIR B 2,647,884 916,752
Notes payables i ANES (i) 62,495 453,677
Deposits and receipts in advance e K FEW R IE 5,120,311 3,792,892
Construction fee and retention payables FENHEEERANEFRES (ii) 5,979,226 3,002,406
13,809,916 8,165,727
(i)  Anaged analysis of the Group’s notes payable presented based () RBERRFEEEREZHZENER
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as RBRER DATLOT -
follows:
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
1 to 2 months 1221@AH 62,495 135,455
Over 3 months BE31E A - 318,222
62,495 453,677
(i) An aged analysis of the construction fee and retention payables (i) RMEBARELEERARGKRBEEMNFKIED
as at the end of reporting period is as follows: BRECHTAAT -
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FHTT
Within 1 year 14E R 5,923,618 2,923,753
Over 1 year BiE1F 55,608 78,653
5,979,226 3,002,406
The construction fee and retention payables are non-interest- BEBRRRESENFEARERAR
bearing and repayable within the normal operating cycle or on —RERREA S FEESK(EE -
demand.
The other payables are non-interest-bearing. HiENFIEREE °

178  china South City Holdings Limited %5312 5 R 2 &



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BA RS SRR MY AL (48D

31 March 2014 201443 H31H

30. Interest-Bearing Bank and Other Borrowings 30. ;STESBITREMEE
2014 2013
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
(%) (%)
ERAI= Maturity HK$'000 ERA= Maturity HK$'000
Group P (%) ) ThT (%) gL T
Current B
Bank loans - unsecured BITED— B 6.00%-7.87% 2014~2015 2,163,740 6.00%-7.54% On Demand/ 1,626,152
HIBOR+2.75% HIBOR+2.75% EEk/
2013~2014
Bank loans - secured BITER-FER 5.40%-6.80% 2014~2015 1,122,660  5.40%-7.54% 2013~2014 874,930
Other borrowings - unsecured EfpfaE - mER - - - 6.15%-630%  OnDemand/ 707,443
2013~2014
Current portion of long term REBTREMEED
bank and other borrowings: A -
Bank loans - unsecured RTER-EER 6.15%-7.38% 2014~2015 606,632  6.15%-7.07% 2013~2014 272,479
Bank loans - secured BITER-BER 5.90%-7.07% 2014~2015 1,948,688  5.90%-7.07% 20132014 937,250
5,841,720 4,418,254
Non-current FENH
Bank loans - unsecured FIED—EHH 6.15%-7.38% 2015~2020 1,190,789 6.15%-7.07% 2014~2017 272,478
Bank loans - secured RITEH - HHEH 5.90%-7.07% 2015~2020 5419886  5.90%-7.07% 2014-2020 4,309,263
6,610,675 4,581,741
12,452,395 8,999,995
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BA RS SRR MY AL (48D

31 March 2014 201443 H31H

30. Interest-Bearing Bank and Other Borrowings

(Continued)

30. sTERTREMES®)

Group
rEE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHTT
Analysed into: DIHNA -
Bank loans repayable: BT HAREER
RITE ¢
Within one year or on demand —FANHEEK 5,841,720 3,710,811
In the second year F_F 2,834,159 1,678,940
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F=FFRF
(BEEEMFEA) 3,182,155 2,149,311
Beyond five years & 594,361 753,490
12,452,395 8,292,552
Other borrowings repayable: AR AT EEEER
HiEE :
Within one year or on demand —F R EER - 707,443
12,452,395 8,999,995
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BA RS SRR MY AL (48D

31 March 2014 201443A31H

30. Interest-Bearing Bank and Other Borrowings
(Continued)
Bank loans with a total amount of HK$8,491,234,000 (2013:
HK$6,121,443,000) are secured by:

(i)  Certain of the Group's buildings with aggregate carrying values
of approximately HK$15,952,000 and HK$16,677,000 as at 31
March 2014 and 2013, respectively (note 14);

(i) Certain of the Group’s investment properties situated
in Mainland China with aggregate carrying values of
approximately HK$16,035,574,000 and HK$13,108,315,000 as
at 31 March 2014 and 2013, respectively (note 15);

(i) Certain of the Group’s properties under development
situated in Mainland China with aggregate carrying values of
approximately HK$234,035,000 and HK$55,350,000 as at 31
March 2014 and 2013, respectively (note 16); and

(iv) Certain of the Group’s properties held for sale with aggregate
carrying values of approximately HK$3,707,127,000 and
HK$2,339,936,000 as at 31 March 2014 and 2013, respectively
(note 24).

Except for the bank loan equivalent to HK$500 million (2013:
HK$400 million), which is denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
bears interest at floating rate of HIBOR+2.75%, the other interest-
bearing borrowings of the Group are denominated in RMB and bear
interest at floating rates ranging from 5.40% to 7.87% per annum.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank and other borrowings
approximate to their fair values, which have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows at the prevailing interest
rates.

30. ;T EBTREMEE®)

8,491,234,0007% 7T (20134 : 6,121,443,0007%
TT)BYERTTE 3K THI BRI -

()  H2014%F %2013F3 A31BEREAZED R
#915,952,0007% 7T & 16,677,000 JT &) A<
SEETEF(MIFE14)

(i)  P2014F %2013F3 A31 BHEREEED A
#916,035,574,000 7% 7T & 13,108,315,000
BT AEEMRAREKENS TIREY
% (FsE15)

(i) M2014F K% 2013F3 A31 HEEmEAEED A
#9234,035,0005% 7T }2.55,350,0005 JT Y 2%
EBEMAFREARENS TEHREHE MG
16) :

(iv) #2014F %2013F3 31 HEEEEED A
#93,707,127,0007 7T K 2,339,936,000
TCH AN EE TH{EHEE W (MFE24) -

BRIZBEBIRITRIERBNN2.75% F B F K51 EH
5005 88 7T (20134 : 400E &8 7T) IRITER
AT AN - AEERA M B AR
AREBEN - WIREF5.40%E7.87%H)2H)
FEETE -

AEEFERTRAMERNRAELZE A TE
BE - TIRERARESRENE R AR

= o
Eal
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
/\Zl-i%#ﬁi BTT HE ( n‘ﬁ )

31 March 2014 201443A31H

31.

32.

Derivative Financial Instrument

Pursuant to an agreement entered into between the Company and
a third party, which is a subsidiary of Tencent Holdings Limited (the
“Investor”), on 15 January 2014 (the “Investment and Cooperation
Agreement”), the Investor has subscribed for an aggregate of
680,300,000 new shares of the Company at a subscription price of
HK$2.20 per share. Pursuant to the Investment and Cooperation
Agreement, the Company has also agreed to irrevocably grant
the option to the Investor to subscribe for a further 244,800,000
new shares at the option price of HK$3.50 per share (subject to
adjustments (if any)) during the period from 23 January 2014 to
23 January 2016 (the “Tencent call option”). The fair value of the
option at 31 March 2014 is HK$181,291,000.

Senior Notes
The Group issued the following senior notes in the current and prior
years:

(i)  On 14 January 2011, the Company issued senior notes with an
aggregate principal amount of US$250,000,000 (the “2011
Notes”). The 2011 Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited. The 2011 Notes carry interest at
13.5% per annum, are payable semi-annually on 14 January
and 14 July in arrears, and will mature on 14 January 2016,
unless redeemed earlier. The offering price was at 97.381% of
the principal amount of the 2011 Notes.

At any time on or after 14 January 2014, the Company may
redeem the 2011 Notes, in whole or in part, at a redemption
price equal to the percentage of the principal amount set
forth below plus accrued and unpaid interest as of (but not
including) the redemption date if redeemed during the twelve
month period beginning on 14 January of each of the years
indicated below:

Period Redemption price
2014 106.750%
2015 and thereafter 103.375%

China South City Holdings Limited ZEr3H iR G R A 7

32.

1. TTE€mT A
BEARNFEE =7 (BAIZERERA
%Qﬂ)(ﬁxﬁ%m‘ézomim15E|ﬁﬁaT_LEr’a
BEREERZ  REELRRBEESR220%

TL R A $£680,300,000 B FT A% 15 © 1R IF 5% #
& - ARRIRIE AR H A1 E A R AR
1 AR AR ER ENR3.50/8 7T (AT T F 2 (4N
A)) > 201451 A23B E201651 5238 Hif
M3 — R 8% 244,800,0008% 3 A7 (I B =R B8 A%
) o R2014F3A318 @ RBREZAFES
181,291,000/ 7T °

BEARE
AR BN S RIABTFERITA TEEEE

() M2011F1H14H ° KARBEITASE
¥H250,000,000& T B EH (12011 F
B 20N EBEERFIMNEELERSATE
FRAR L™ 2011 2L FEFIE13.5%
e BEEM A14B R7A 148 8114
St R 201645 1 A 14 8 B EF (K 3k
REER) - BEE R0 ZEASEDN
97.381% °

R2014F1 A48 2 B EMEERE - XA
RIAMREER T ASER H LA iEE
B ZNEEELRBH(EREEZB)D
S RANFE - BEEZ2 I I;BH20112
BWR NI RS EE1 A 14BFIB/12
& A 2R g )

HARS EEE
20144 106.750%
2015F K 2 1% 103.375%



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BA RS SRR MY AL (48D

31 March 2014 201443A31H

32. Senior Notes (Continued)

0)

(ii)

(Continued)

On 30 September 2011 and 2 February 2012, the Company
repurchased the 2011 Notes with principal amounts of
US$5,000,000 and US$4,000,000, respectively, from the
open market. The total consideration of the repurchase was
US$6,932,000 (equivalent to HK$54,069,000), which includes
repurchase price at 74.15% and 75.80%, respectively, of the
principal amounts and pro rata accrued and unpaid interest.
The carrying amount of the repurchased 2011 Notes was
US$8,729,000 (equivalent to HK$68,087,000), resulting
in a gain on repurchase of the 2011 Notes amounting to
HK$14,018,000 for the year ended 31 March 2012.

On 20 February 2014, the Company redeemed the outstanding
2011 Notes with a principal amount of US$241,000,000 from
the open market. The total consideration of the redemption
was US$260,521,000 (equivalent to HK$2,032,064,000),
which includes redemption price at 106.750% of the principal
amount and pro rata accrued and unpaid interest. The carrying
amount of the redeemed 2011 Notes was US$237,946,000
(equivalent to HK$1,855,982,000), resulting in a loss on
redemption of the 2011 Notes amounting to HK$176,082,000
for the current year.

On 17 October 2012, the Company issued senior notes with
an aggregate principal amount of US$125,000,000 (the “2012
Notes”). The 2012 Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited. The 2012 Notes carry interest at
13.5% per annum, payable semi-annually on 17 April and 17
October in arrears, and will mature on 17 October 2017, unless
redeemed earlier. The offering price was at 97.381% of the
principal amount of the 2012 Notes.

At any time on or after 17 October 2015, the Company may
redeem the 2012 Notes, in whole or in part, at a redemption
price equal to the percentage of the principal amount set
forth below plus accrued and unpaid interest as of (but not
including) the redemption date if redeemed during the twelve
month period beginning on 17 October of each of the years
indicated below:

Period Redemption price
2015 106.750%
2016 and thereafter 103.375%

32. BREE®

0)

(ii)

(58)

M2011498308 K%201242H2H * AR
A5 Bl B AR M5B A £ 58 /55,000,000
2 7T % 4,000,000 € T B 2011 T #& - 2
1B B B M 2K (B 56,932,000 7T (1B E
754,069,000 ) * BIESRINAERE
74.15% [ 75.80% st HE By & B (B & #Z bt
BIETE B R KA FE o FTiEE2011
=R IRE E /58,729,000 T (B E K
68,087,000 7T ) * EH N E E 201243
A31TALEFEHSER201 ZHA K
14,018,000/ 7T °

MR2014F2H208 » ARG EHRAH
MEEE[20MER | 2B T A%
74 241,000,000 % jT » B E B K E A
260,521,000 7t (#8 & 722,032,064,000/%
TT) » BIEAAREEE106.75% - E A E T E
MR I E R R R AN FE - FriED
2011 EE MR (E A&237,946,0003 7T (48
B 41,855,982,000/8 ) EHRAFE
$%15176,082,0007 JT/E 18

R2012F 108178 * KARIETAEGHE
125,000,000 T B L E4& ([2012F
B C20RFBRAFMEZLRSAE
FRAR L™ 2012 B E R FFIE13.5%
B B¥EFER4A17AR10817BHIE
St WiAER2017F 10817 B 2 25 (B 3E
REED) - BEEBAR20NEEASEN
97.381% °

2015410817 B ek 2 & E{A B R » A
RAEAZMEER T ACE T D LR ER
B ZNEEELBH(EREEZB)W
R RAMNFE - EE 2520122
BUWR TXATRESFEI10A17B AR
1218 AR ) -

AR EEE

20154 106.750%

20165 R 2 1% 103.375%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BA RS SRR MY AL (48D

31 March 2014 201443A31H

32. Senior Notes (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(Continued)

At any time prior to 17 October 2015, the Company may at
its option redeem the 2012 Notes, in whole but not in part, at
a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of
the 2012 Notes plus the applicable premium and accrued and
unpaid interest, if any, as of (but not including) the redemption
date.

At any time prior to 17 October 2015, the Company may
redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of the
2012 Notes with the net cash proceeds of one or more sales
of common stock of the Company in an equity offering at a
redemption price of 113.5% of the principal amount of the
2012 Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but
not including) the redemption date, provided that at least 65%
of the aggregate principal amount of the 2012 Notes originally
issued remains outstanding after each such redemption and
any such redemption takes place within 60 days after the
closing of the related sale of the Company’s capital stock and is
subject to certain conditions.

On 29 January 2014, the Company issued senior notes with an
aggregate principal amount of US$400,000,000 (the “2014
Notes”). The 2014 Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited. The 2014 Notes carry interest at
the rate of 8.25% per annum, payable semi-annually on 29
January and 29 July in arrears, and will mature on 29 January
2019, unless redeemed earlier. The offering price was at
98.999% of the principal amount of the 2014 Notes.

At any time and from time to time on or after 29 January 2017,
the Company may redeem the 2014 Notes, in whole or in part,
at a redemption price equal to the percentage of the principal
amount set forth below plus accrued and unpaid interest as of
(but not including) the redemption date if redeemed during the
twelve month period beginning on 29 January of each of the
years indicated below:
Period Redemption price
2017

2018 and thereafter

104.1250%
102.0625%

China South City Holdings Limited ZEr3H iR G R A 7

32. BEREE®m)

(ii)

(iii)

(&)

2015510817 B AR R - NAQ A
AMEMAE R 2012 R BN 58 100% HIHE [E
B SNHEEZE-DAH(ER2EZA)
2022 BHEREBUA R R ANFIE
() » EE2IPEIEFD20122E -

2015610817 B BRI R - N2 A
A LATEBR DB & R 1T — IR Bk Z N SHE R
NREBRMBRIESHIBFE © 122012
ZEARSFEI135%NERE @ ZNEHE
JEE R (BETEEZ B )R RANF)
B(nA) BRRZ2012EEASEEH
35% & HEFREBEE20122HBRETARE
wEEmL6e5%ANAER - BERABAE
EIZEREEA R R A S E &R %608 A
ETREBRRE TIEME -

R2014F1H298 » KARAIEITAE R
%8400,000,0003 T B L =K ([ 2014
B1) c 2014ZERFT N BLHR S ATH
FRAR] LT o 20142 E 3% F F = 8.25%
R BEEMIA298 &7 A29B8 #1158
AT AR 201941 A29 B 2 B (B 3E
RPHED) - BEFA2014ZBARSEN
98.999% °

R2017F 1 A29 8 sk 2 B EMEFR + &AA
AAERASR TARASEE D LA EDE
B ZSNEZERLBH(ETEEZE)N
Z2ETRARMFE - BEEEHEFH 2014
BUWR NI REEE1 A298 FIA/Y12
& A 8 RfE ) -

HiRg e E
20174 104.1250%
2018F K 218 102.0625%



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BA RS SRR MY AL (48D

31 March 2014 201443A31H

32. Senior Notes (Continued)

(iii)

(Continued)

At any time prior to 29 January 2017, the Company may at its
option redeem the 2014 Notes, in whole but not in part, at a
redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of
the 2014 Notes plus the applicable premium and accrued and
unpaid interest, if any, as of (but not including) the redemption
date.

At any time and from time to time prior to 29 January 2017,
the Company may redeem up to 35% of the aggregate
principal amount of the 2014 Notes with the net cash proceeds
of one or more sales of common stock of the Company in
an equity offering at a redemption price of 108.25% of the
principal amount of the 2014 Notes, plus accrued and unpaid
interest, if any, to (but not including) the redemption date,
provided that at least 65% of the aggregate principal amount
of the 2014 Notes originally issued remains outstanding after
each such redemption and any such redemption takes place
within 60 days after the closing of the related sale of the
Company'’s capital stock and is subject to certain conditions.

The 2011 Notes, 2012 Notes and 2014 Notes (the “Senior Notes")
contain liability components and early redemption options as follow:

0)

(ii)

The liability component represents the present value of
the contractually determined stream of future cash flows
discounted at the prevailing market interest rate at that time
applicable to instruments with comparable credit status that
provided substantially the same cash flows, on the same terms,
but without the embedded derivatives.

The interest charged for the period is calculated by applying
effective interest rates of approximately 14.62%, 14.62%
and 8.90% per annum to the liability component of the 2011
Notes, 2012 Notes and 2014 Notes, respectively, since they
were issued.

Early redemption options are regarded as embedded derivatives
not closely related to the host contract. The directors consider
that the fair value of the above early redemption options is
insignificant on initial recognition and at 31 March 2014.

32. BEREE®m)

(iii)

(&)

20171 298 ATEAERE - AR R A
RHEEN2014F B A £ 5 100% 1) fE =
B SNHEEZE-DAH(ET2EZA)
20142 BHER B R 2 R ANFIE
() » EE2IPEIEFD20142 -

201751 A29 BRI E MR - A AFA
RN BEEFET AR ZREERR
RAIEBRATS MRS FUESE © 1820142
BARSEE108.25%WERE @ SMEEE
B HHA(ENEEZA) MR RAMTF B
(n7A)  BEEZRZ2014ZBEARSEBL
35% & HEEREBEEE20142F RETARE
R L6e5%ANAER - BERABEE
BRI AR R AN E 4 R1860H
EITREBRRE &G -

2001124~ 202 B R 2014F EH([EBLAE
ENEea Ty aEHs & LR R EEHE

0)

(ii)

BERIEANMEEARASRELRA
BRI AL BESF AL ILBREFIRE AR
HHERREREEERATETANTA
ERERNRITHSMNETRNEE -

B U ER RO A B 5322011 E4% ~ 201224
N2014Z BT AR B &S H 2 5IEA
BEREMERL14.62%  14.62% $%8.90%

o
Al

RREREREEATIEEESNERYHE
FEHRANTETE - EERAENIAER
N#E201453A31H @ Lt REEER
NFEETK ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR IR M T (4R

31 March 2014 201443 H31H

32. Senior Notes (Continued)
The Senior Notes recognised in the statement of financial position

33.

were calculated as follows:

32. BREE @)
BRI R S RN A= G T

2014 2013

HK$°000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

Carrying amount at the beginning of year REIHEREE 2,853,402 1,844,984
Additions NE 3,012,607 927,527
Payment of interest SRAFE (378,330) (253,773)
Redemption of 2011 Notes fEE2011 FE (1,855,982) -
Interest expenses (note 6) B (k) 425,141 334,664
Carrying amount at the end of year RELNEEEE 4,056,838 2,853,402

The fair value of the Senior Notes at 31 March 2014 amounted to
HK$4,157,767,000 (2013: HK$2,991,726,000). The fair value is
calculated using the market price of the Senior Notes on 31 March

2014.

Deferred Tax

R2014%3 A31H
4,157,767,0007% 7T (20134 : 2,991,726,0007
TL) o AETEREBERER2014F3A31H
KT ISERETHE -

33. IERERIE
R EEHIEABEREESHNOT -

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year

are as follows:

CBAERBOAFEE

Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEAE
Group AEH
Revaluation
of property,
Accelerated Revaluation plant and
tax  ofinvestment  Withholding equipment
depreciation properties tax ¥ BER Total
MEFERE ~ RENEER B BGER @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR FAT TR TARL
At 1 April 2013 #201364A18 144,691 2,831,250 421,247 95,485 3,492,673
Deferred tax charged to the statement of FRNBER AR
profit or loss during the year (note 10) EERA(HE0) 46,779 316,571 54,455 - 417,805
Exchange realignment B 5 A% (1,046) (11,109) (1.73) (191) (14,069)
At 31 March 2014 M2014%63A31H 190,424 3,136,712 473,979 95,294 3,896,409
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31 March 2014 201443 H31H

33. Deferred Tax (Continued) 33. IEEEMIE (%)
Deferred tax assets EERIBEESE
Group FEE
Loss available Tax effect of
for offsetting Provision for government
against future impairment  grants relating
Taxeffect  taxable profits of trade to assets
of LAT  WHEHAR receivables RBEEL
THRERY  EREAED PR MBI Total
HikweE i3 HERRE HHgE st
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TiER T TER TR
At 1 April 2013 R2013F4R 18 397,407 - 31,792 157,033 586,232
Deferred tax credited to the statement of ER ABRRAL
profit or loss during the year (note 10) EEHA(F10) 317,570 53,401 13,027 71,037 455,035
Exchange realignment A% (5.929) (798) (274) (1,463) (8,464)
At 31 March 2014 R201483 7318 709,048 52,603 44,545 226,607 1,032,803
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEARE
Group REE
Revaluation
of property,
Accelerated Revaluation plant and
tax  of investment Withholding equipment
depreciation properties tx  WEF BEK Total
MEFERE ~ RENFER 2l BGERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAL TAT TAT TAT
At 1 April 2012 201264818 108,574 2,480,033 256,739 - 2,845,346
Deferred tax charged to the statement of FRNERRAINGRA
profit or loss during the year (note 10) EREBE(FE10) 34,165 312,861 158,856 - 505,882
Deferred tax charged to other REM2ERAR
comprehensive income ETHE - - - 95,485 95,485
Exchange realignment A% 1,952 38,356 5,652 - 45,960
At31 March 2013 R2013%34318 144,691 2,831,250 421,047 95,485 3,492,673
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31 March 2014 201443A31H

33. Deferred Tax (Continued)

33. IEZEBIE (1)

Deferred tax assets IR IBEE
Group EH
Loss available Tax effect of
for offsetting Provision for government
against future impairment grants relating
Tax effect taxable profits of trade t0 assets
Of AT AIRERAK receivables EBAEY
AR ERBRIE FEMERS KR Total
hite B RERE hikve @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL
At1 Apil 2012 120124418 232,231 17,091 18,066 - 267,388
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to the statement  FERRERFNA/(31%)
of profit or loss during the year (note 10) HIEERB(MEE10) 159,734 (17,099) 13,300 154,971 310,906
Exchange realignment (BN A= 5,442 8 426 2,062 7,938
At 31 March 2013 12013434318 397,407 - 31,792 157,033 586,232

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$185,205,000
(2013: HK$189,201,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose.

The Group also has tax losses in Mainland China of HK$282,767,000
(2013: HK$209,525,000) that will expire in one to five years for
offsetting against future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making
for some time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The Group is therefore liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by subsidiaries established
in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008. In the current year, the Group accrued withholding tax of
HK$54,455,000 (2013: HK$158,856,000) for those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China.

China South City Holdings Limited ZEr3H iR G R A 7

AE BN EBE LR T IEETE185,205,000/8 7T
(20134 : 189,201,000/ 7T ) » A] EE[R HA&S# -
DARSHEE £ B IR RIAR R FE R BUSEF o

ZNES B R A R B K e = AR F TR E5181282,767,000
#70(20134F : 209,525,000 7T) @ BR—EH
ERER - AT AR SE AR S ERRBUSE A

HRZEEEHD HREE RN E QR
EX - BRR R 8EH 78 R A B SRBU HI A
HEZENBANRIAER S ERZEER
EREIETHIAEE -

REF B EMSFE - R BIRHAK FINE
BECERBINEEESTRNKREAZNI0%
FEF - RIERTEH200851 A1HEAR - I
EAMR2007F12 A31 BEBRI AR o fw B
ANEEELGIMEE BT RARERE ST S RIS R4 -
RIS TEEL - Bt - NEBE AR R E
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FLE R B Rt Ak Sz /B B A BIVE S 2 FERT TN
4 454,455,000/ 7T (2013 4F : 158,856,000/
JL) °
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31 March 2014 201443A31H

34. Convertible Notes 34. IR EE
On 9 April 2013, the Group issued convertible notes (the “Notes”) M20135F4A9R - AEEHTHEHERITSAS
with a nominal value of HK$975 million. The Notes are convertible BT AR ([ R ]) - ZIEFEAERE
at the option of the noteholders at the conversion price of HK$1.56 R .56 T2 KRB HRER - RIERNITM
per share. The Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities WHRERZSHARAT LT - ZIREZEEARIZF
Trading Limited. The Notes carry interest at the rate of 6.5% per 65EE - BH¥EN4AIBRRI0A9HAEX
annum, payable semi-annually on 9 April and 9 October in arrears, - WER2018F4 A9 H X Hf -

and will mature on 9 April 2018.

The fair value of the liability component of the Notes was estimated EEREEMBINATEIREITARE S RE Y
at the issuance date using an equivalent market interest rate for BURE 2 ABRTISFIREE - FIeresBA|HE
similar notes without a conversion option. The residual amount is AtEm by Wit ARRR R ©
assigned as the equity component and is included in shareholders’
equity.
The convertible notes issued during the period have been split into AR BT AR ZIB D B T A B RERES
the liability and equity components as follows: 7
HK$'000
FAET
Nominal value of convertible notes issued HABBITAIRRER 2 ZRE
during the period 975,000
Equity component (note 37) R (MI3E37) (37,360)
Direct transaction costs attributable to the BEIDEIGEERFEA
liability component (2,936)
Liability component at the issuance date RETAHZEBREES 934,704
Interest expense (note 6) FEFAX (FfEE6) 106,430
Interest payment FESZ (31,688)
Liability component as at 31 March 2014 MR2014F3 8318 2 AEHH 1,009,446
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31 March 2014 201443A31H

35. Share Capital 35. fRas
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT
Issued and fully paid: BETREE
6,907,114,000 (31 March 2013: 6,053,564,000) 6,907,114,000/% (201343 A
ordinary shares 31H : 6,053,564,0004%)
Timhk 4,684,476 60,536
During the years ended 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013, the B E20145M2013F3 A31 A LLFE - B #1T
movement in issued capital was as follows: RSB
Share Capital
Number of premium redemption
sharesinissue Issued capital account reserve Total
ERTRHYE ERTRA RiVEER  ErRERHE b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR THT TR
At 1 April 2012 M2012%4R18 5,987,564,000 59,876 3,050,723 204 3,110,803
Exercise of share options TERERRE 66,000,000 660 93,398 - 94,058
At 31 March 2013 ®2013%3A31H 6,053,564,000 60,536 3,144,121 204 3,204,861
At 1 April 2013 #2013%4R18 6,053,564,000 60,536 3144121 204 3,204,861
Exercise of share options TR RE 173,250,000 1,732 265,362 - 267,59
Issuance of new shares BITHR 630,300,000 6,303 1,205,218 - 1,212,021
Transfer to issued capital BAREIRA - 4,615,405 (4,615,201) (204) -
At 31 March 2014 12014534310 6,907,114,000 4,684,476 - - 4,684,476
Note: Pursuant to the transitional provisions for the abolition of the nominal MizE - IRBFN BB R RMRD - BRARERRAZEER
value of share capital included in the new Hong Kong Companies BEEOIEAR2014FE3 A3 A3 » 201443
Ordinance which became effective on 3 March 2014, the balances A3 BEREREABERFEEEADET
of the share premium account and capital redemption reserve as at 3 B&ARAR o

March 2014 have been transferred to issued capital.
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36. Share Options 36. BIRAE

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 4 September
2009 (the “Share Option Scheme”) to provide incentives and reward
to selected eligible persons which includes directors, employees,
officers, agents, consultants or representatives of the Group for
their contribution or potential contribution to the Company or its
subsidiaries. The Share Option Scheme became effective on 30
September 2009 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for 10 years from that date. Further details of the
Share Option Scheme are set out in the “Report of the Directors” in
the Company’s annual report.

On 11 April 2011, a total of 226,900,000 share options under the
Share Option Scheme were granted. These share options have an
exercise price of HK$1.29 per share and an exercise period ranging
from 11 April 2011 to 10 April 2016. Of the total 226,900,000 share
options, 15,000,000 share options were granted to an executive
director of the Company, and 211,900,000 share options were
granted to certain employees of the Group.

The fair value of the 226,900,000 share options granted was
HK$58,175,000 of which the Group recognised a share option
expense of HK$1,860,000 during the current year (2013:
HK$6,226,000). 7,600,000 share options were forfeited during
the year and HK$2,266,000 was transferred from the share option
reserve to retained profits.

On 27 June 2012, a total of 116,870,000 share options under the
Share Option Scheme were granted. These share options have an
exercise price of HK$1.15 per share and an exercise period ranging
from 27 June 2012 to 26 June 2017. Of the total 116,870,000 share
options, 69,870,000 share options were granted to certain executive
directors, and 47,000,000 share options were granted to certain
employees of the Group.

The fair value of the 116,870,000 share options granted was
HK$25,140,000, of which the Group recognised a share option
expense of HK$3,369,000 during the current year (2013:
HK$21,695,000).

ANATEH20094E9 A4 BB HET2I ([ 5
fRiEEEl]) - MEAQRREMBARELE
B EEERNECIESERAL(BEASE
EE - EE BAKE  AB -  BERRR)E
HAEE) R m3R - EEARERT 8] 5200949 A30H #E
R W E B RFEF (BRIEEUHS ELRE
5]) o BERRIEET BIR#E — P RHIBHN A R F P
mIESEgRE] -

M20ME4ANMNAB - AEBRBEAH
226,900,000 17 FE Ak ¥ - % SFHEARERITEE
BERR129%8T - ITEAA201MFL4RA11BEE
201654108 » & £226,900,00017 i A% #
# - 15,000,000 R IEE X T AR B — BT
EE © $5211,900,00017 Ak #E A3 T AN EEE
FESE -

Fir # H 226,900,000 1 & Kk #E 2 A FE B
58,175,000 7T * ER RSB R AFEHRE
A& 5 % 1,860,000/ 7T (20134 : 6,226,000/
JL) ° H 7,600,000 ¥ A% AE E 7 B AR K &
2,266,000/ T R IB AR E R HEESEEREBAE -

M2012%F 6 278 » AEB K H A H
116,870,00088 f%#E - 2 FBBRENITHEEAS
f&1.158 7 » 1TEHA20129F6 A27HE2017
F6H26H - N4 ££116,870,00017 BB A HEF -
69,870,0007 BERIEER TARRMITES ' 5
47,000,000 FERR MR T AN EE TES -

Fr #% H 116,870,000 0 Bk #E W A FE B
25,140,000/ 7T « HFAEBE 2R ANFERNER
fEAR RS2 3,369,000/ 7T (20134F 21,695,000
YEIT) °
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36. Share Options (Continued)

On 27 June 2013, a total of 186,300,000 share options under the
Share Option Scheme were granted. These share options have an
exercise price of HK$1.69 per share and an exercise period ranging
from 27 June 2013 to 26 June 2018. Of the total 186,300,000 share
options, 70,800,000 share options were granted to certain executive
directors of the Company, and 115,500,000 share options were
granted to certain employees of the Group.

The fair value of the 186,300,000 share options granted was
HK$44,470,000, of which the Group recognised a share option
expense of HK$36,064,000 during the current year. 8,500,000
share options were forfeited during the year and HK$195,000 was
transferred from the share option reserve to retained profits.

The share options grant on 27 June 2013 were estimated as at
the date of grant by Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited
("Vigers"”), using a binomial model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted. The following
table lists the inputs to the model:

6. BRE®)

201356 270  RIBEERETE R LS &
186,300,000 A #E - Z SHERENITFEE
BEIR1.69%8 7T - 1T A2013F6 278 E
20186 H26H - 4 £186,300,00017 & i ##
H -+ 70,800,000 B EER T AR RHMITE
%+ 5115,500,00017 B AR A T AR EEE T
B8 -

RAEE - A% H186,300,00017 B I& 1 2 A F
{B/544,470,000787C + HP RSB BERERER
3736,064,0007%8 7T ° H A18,500,00017 BEAZEE
R ERAIE 25 K2 195,00058 7T B IR E R E R =
RBFE -

7201356 A27 BE LRSI - BRI EERT
HEMARAR ([ BT DR L B 8RA =18
ANEXEZEEREETHE  EPEERER
PR R OISR R A& - TRYIRETRER A
UNEE

Share price at the date of grant (HK$) REH B ZRECET) 1.69
Exercise price (HK$) TEEGET) 1.69
Dividend yield (%) AR5 & (%) 5.50
Expected volatility (%) TEER B 1% (%) 30.00
Risk-free interest rate (%) F 2 B2 2R (%) 1.20
Exercise multiple ITIERZER 1.50-2.20

On 17 February 2014, a total of 48,000,000 share options under
the Share Option Scheme were granted. These share options have
an exercise price of HK$4.14 per share and an exercise period
ranging from 17 February 2014 to 16 February 2019. Of the total
48,000,000 share options, 8,000,000 share options were granted to
certain independent non-executive directors of the Company, and
40,000,000 share options were granted to certain employees of the
Group.

The fair value of the 48,000,000 share options granted was
HK$45,557,000, of which the Group recognised a share option
expense of HK$22,064,000 during the current year.

China South City Holdings Limited ZEr3H iR G R A 7

201462178 @ BRIBEERETE R LS &
48,000,000/ %4 - ZEBERENTTFEEAS
f&4.147%8 7T 1TEBA2014F2 17822019
F2H168 ° KA H148,000,0001 B A #EF
8,000,00017 FEAREE I T AR N BB IEMITE
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36. Share Options (Continued) 36. EBRE®E)
The share options granted on 17 February 2014 were estimated as R2014F2 178 R HAOERE - BRI T
at the date of grant by Vigers, using a binomial model, taking into HEASEA —IE R R Y2 SR AREE Tt - &
account the terms and conditions upon which the options were Fh 2 R R AR TR H B AV IR B 1 - TR
granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model: NETRE X A AE ¢
Share price at the date of grant (HK$) AR B Z R ECET) 4.14
Exercise price (HK$) TERECET) 4.14
Dividend yield (%) A% B (%) 3.63
Expected volatility (%) TEERR E)1E(%) 41.90
Risk-free interest rate (%) 48 B T 2R (%) 1.24
Exercise multiple 1T 1.38-2.20
The expected life of the options is based on historical data and is BIRENTERFRIRELEERSE - RAVE
not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. TRAJBEEELEMTTRIEN - TEERDR BTV R £
The expected volatility was determined based on the movement of HERARRREBZHEMETE - RV EERLE
the share price of the company since listing, which may also not R HFEATER - WEZ B L AERED
necessarily be the actual outcome. No other feature of the options E AR
granted was incorporated into the measurement of fair value.
The following share options were outstanding under the Share TR S NIR R B AR A R T &l R AR TR
Option Scheme during the year:
Year ended 31 March
BZ3A31BLEE
2014 2013
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price exercise price
per share Number of per share Number of
SRIE options R options
FHTHEE BREHA TFi917{RE kSR
HKS$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT T4 BT Fin
At beginning of year REEA)) 1.2354 299,970 1.2933 218,200
Granted during the year FRNERHE 2.1919 234,300 1.1500 116,870
Exercised during the year FRNIE 1.3020 (173,250) = =
Forfeited during the year FREK 1.5012 (16,100) 13105 (35,100)
Atend of year RER 1.8393 344,920 12354 299,970
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36. Share Options (Continued) 36. MR AE(w)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options HEREHKR  RTEBRENTTERE NRITEL
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: PN
2014 20144
Number of options Exercise price Exercise period
BREHE TEE 175
‘000 HK$ per share
T8’ BRET
12,400 1.29 11-04-2011 to 10-04-2016
201148118 E20165F4510H
2,600 1.29 11-04-2012 to 10-04-2016
2012548118 £201654 7108
7,950 1.29 11-04-2013 to 10-04-2016
201348118 £2016%F4810H
8,800 1.29 11-04-2014 to 10-04-2016

2014548118 E201654A10H

47,435 1.15 27-06-2012 to 26-06-2017
201256 H27HZ2017%6A26H

48,435 1.15 27-06-2013 to 26-06-2017
201356 H27H 201756 H26H

3,000 1.15 27-06-2014 to 26-06-2017

2014565278 £201756526H

69,900 1.69 27-06-2013 to 26-06-2018
201356 H27H 201856 H26H

88,150 1.69 27-06-2014 to 26-06-2018
20146 H27H £2018%6H26H

8,250 1.69 27-06-2015 to 26-06-2018

201556 H27H£201856H26H

22,000 4.14 17-02-2014 to 16-02-2019
201452 H178 £2019%2816H

24,000 414 17-02-2015 to 16-02-2019
201528178 E2019%2H16H

2,000 414 17-02-2016 to 16-02-2019

20165F2H17HZ2019%2A16H

344,920
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36. Share Options (Continued)
2013

BREE)

20135

Number of options

Exercise price

Exercise period

fERRREEL B T8 FT{E ER
‘000 HK$ per share
TR BB
76,200 1.29 11-04-2011 to 10-04-2016
20114 A11B 22016548 10H
47,700 1.29 11-04-2012 to 10-04-2016
20124 411HE201654H10H
47,700 1.29 11-04-2013 to 10-04-2016
20134 A11H=2016F4H10H
11,500 1.29 11-04-2014 to 10-04-2016
20144 811B 22016548 10H
55,435 1.15 27-06-2012 to 26-06-2017
20126 H27H=2017F6H26H
58,435 1.15 27-06-2013 to 26-06-2017
20136 H27H 220176 H26H
3,000 1.15 27-06-2014 to 26-06-2017
201456 A27H%201746H26H
299,970

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 344,920,000

R E R - RIBHBRETE ﬁ&?*ﬁ‘

share options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme, which
represented approximately 4.99% of the Company’s shares in issue
as at that date. The exercise in full of the outstanding share options
would, under the present capital structure of the Company, result in
the issue of 344,920,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company
and additional share capital of HK$634,425,000 (before issue
expenses).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a total of 60,300,000
shares were exercised, of which have an weighted average exercise
price of HK$1.31 per share.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 284,620,000 share options outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme, which represented approximately 4.08% of the Company’s
shares in issue as at that date.

344,920,000 RIT{EHEAR#E - ABE
HEZBITRD414.99% ° BIEAR TEEH s’]ézx
BEMS  2EITERTEERESSERAR
A A% 17344,920,000 H FE SN 8 A% K2 5B SR A
634,425,000/ 7T (FIRREEI TR AT) ©

RIEIRI & $£60,300,00017 A E AT
i - R SREFSTERER.31ET

Rz ST HRRIAES B - BIBERETS - &
284,620,000 8 K77 FEAR#E - FEE A

NG|
AFEE BB BTN A14.08% °
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37. Reserves
(a) Group

37. #E
(a) ~&£H

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements

therein for the current year and the prior year are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 101

to 102 of the financial statements.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-foreign
joint venture enterprises, a portion of the profits of the
Group's subsidiaries which are established in the PRC has been
transferred to the statutory reserve which is restricted as to use.

AEENFEESBEARATFERBAEFTE
R E) TR IERERE101 2 102B NGRS

BREHRIT -

REFINEELRERERLER A%
[ 7 TS £ R B B SZ RO Y /B8 2 B9 38 0 A
EHREREXRHIEERHES

(b) Company (b) &2 F]
Capital
redemption Share Share
reserve option premium Retained
N reserve account profits Total
il BRERE RORER RE HEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TAT FAT TAT TAT
At 31 March 2012 72012438318 204 92,225 3,050,723 150,679 3,293,831
Profit for the year FRFHE = - - 471,248 471,248
Lapse of share options BN S R - (28,360) - 28,360 -
Equity-settled share option DN et =Rl file
arrangement (note 36) ZHE(HT7E36) = 27,176 = = 27,176
Final 2012 dividend paid BEff2012KRHRE = - - (4,950) (4,950)
Exercise of share options 1B AR - (24,758) 93,398 = 68,640
Proposed final dividends (note 12)  #bRAEAML 2 (Ki3E12) = = - (605,356)  (605,356)
At 31 March 2013 M2013%3H31H 204 66,283 3,144,121 39,981 3,250,589
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37. Reserves (Continued) 37. #E @)
(b) Company (Continued) (b) & T)(E)
Capital
redemption Share Share
reserve option premium Convertible Retained
EXEE reserve account notes profits Total
it BRERE ROSEER TERREE REFE @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT

At 31 March 2013 $2013F3H31H 204 66,283 3,144,121 - 39,981 3,250,589
Profit for the year ERHE - - - - 1245835  1,245835
Issuance of new shares BT - - 1,205,218 - - 1,205,218
Lapse of share options (note 36)  EERRIE R4 (F13T36) - (2,461) - - 2,461 -
Equity-settled share option M A B M iRARE
arrangement (note 36) Zhk(F13E36) - 63,357 - - - 63,357
Final 2013 dividend paid ER2013RBRE - - - - (10,504) (10,504)
Exercise of share options (note 36) 1T BRI (Ff5£36) - (42,022) 265,862 - - 223,840
Equity component of convertible #2207 K AT IR AT Z 1%
notes (note 34) (PzE34) - - - 37,360 - 37,360
Transfer to issued capital (note 35) & A2 Z{TAA
(B7E35) (204) - (4,615201) - - (4,615,405)
Proposed final dividends (note 12) #ERA RS (F5E12) - - - - (966,996)  (966,996)
At 31 March 2014 M201443A318 - 85,157 - 37,360 310,777 433,294
38. Business Combination 38. ¥K&0t
Pursuant to an agreement entered into with Shenzhen HOBA RREDRY T B FREEHR D BR AT ([ 4
Home Furnishing Chain Store Company Limited (“HOBA AERE)R2013F7 ATl LN A%
Furnishing”) in July 2013, the Group has agreed to subscribe for BB R EREBLL A FHK/ERI360,000,0008 A7
360,000,000 shares of HOBA Furnishing with a total amount of #MRE A ARK522,210,0007T ° FA2013411
approximately RMB522,210,000. In November 2013, an amount of R AEEEHN AR 104,442,0007T (8%
RMB104,442,000 (equivalent to HK$132,861,000) has been paid up 132,861,000 7T) - REBAEHAERE
by the Group. The amount represents a 37.5% of the issued share UG RE1% 2 B 31T H37.5% c FRAFRELE
capital of HOBA Furnishing after the acquisition made by the Group. A EEAREERAR L - HEEERE
HOBA Furnishing is principally engaged in the leasing and operations EmMEE -

of furnishing centers in the PRC for the supply of quality home
furnishing products and accessories.
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38. Business Combination (Continued)

38. ¥%a 6t

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of HOBA RWER - fEFRENAHHEEEERNR
Furnishing as at the date of acquisition were as follows: FEIT
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
W RE B TSR Y
AEE
Notes HK$'000
FtaE FHTT
Property, plant and equipment Wz - WE REE 14 9,424
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERTRIE ~ Re REAMEWRIE 35,904
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTH 354,021
Trade and other payables B 5 R HMPERFRIE (136,061)
Non-controlling interests IR A (164,555)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BA B FEELNTE 98,733
Goodwill on acquisition EBAREREEDE 18 34,128
Satisfied by: BRI
Cash e 132,861

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$1,086,000 for this
acquisition. These transaction costs have been expensed and are

included in administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of X °

profit or loss.

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for

income tax purposes.

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect

of the acquisition is as follows:

AEBERREBRELENRZ FHAA1,086,00078

TC ° WRZKRAE BIRERE Bk T TR

RECERHERMARNEHNMEHAE

RRB RS RBSEBYMRAFEIMAT

HK$'000
BT
Cash consideration HERE (132,861)
Cash and bank balances acquired FrURFBEIR & R ERTTAE#4 354,021
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included in KREEHRERBEFEZRE R
cash flows from investing activities ReEEYRLEFE 221,160
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38.

39.

40.

Business Combination (Continued)

Since the acquisition, HOBA Furnshing contributed HK$67,794,000
to the Group’s turnover and HK$6,132,000 to the consolidated loss
for the year ended 31 March 2014.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year, the
revenue and the profit of the Group would have had no significant
difference as compared to the amounts reflected in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Pledge of Assets

Details of the Group’s bank and other borrowings, which are
secured by the assets of the Group, are included in notes 14, 15, 16,
24 and 30 to the financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities
At the end of each reporting period, contingent liabilities not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

38.

39.

40.

¥BREe6tm

AU - BE201463A31BFEFREER
167,794,000 T U A J 755K 6,132,0007% 7T /&5
BYAEH -

& HREVIDET - AIARBEEAFEMESL
U A R MR 6 B AR & 1B 25k U PT35S FR 7

il

BEEKHA
LAREEE R E EEIRIRRIRIT R B B FFEE
RS RARMTFE14 ~ 15~ 16 ~ 24%30 ©

HNAEME
REREMR - BERRAREREOLARE
mT

Group Company
rEHE b N
2014 2013 2014 2013
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt e THET FET THET FET
Guarantees given to banks in AT & HERE
connection with facilities & MRk T
granted to: RELRER
A subsidiary —KHE AR (i) - - 500,000 400,000
Third parties E=F (ii) 3,741,002 1,366,416 - -
3,741,002 1,366,416 500,000 400,000

(i) As at 31 March 2014, the banking facilities granted to
a subsidiary subject to guarantees given to the banks by
the Company were utilised to the extent of approximately
HK$500,000,000 (2013: HK$400,000,000).

() M2014F3F318 » AR A AEITRE
ER—FMNBARERMNBITHESL
500,000,000 7t (20134 : 400,000,000
BIL)BEA °
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31 March 2014 201443A31H

40. Contingent Liabilities (Continued)

(ii)

The Group has provided guarantees in respect of banking
facilities granted by certain banks to the purchasers of the
Group's properties held for sale and held for finance lease.
Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, if there is default
of the loan payments by the purchasers and lessees, the
Group is responsible to repay the outstanding loans together
with accrued interest thereon and any penalty owed by the
defaulted purchasers and lessees to banks. The Group is
then entitled to take over the legal titles and usage rights of
the related properties. For trade center units and residential
properties sold, the guarantee period commences from the
dates of grant of the relevant loans and ends when the
purchasers obtain the building ownership certificate which will
then be pledged with the banks. For residential and commercial
properties under finance leases, the guarantees will be released
along with the full repayment of loan principal by the lessees.

The Group did not incur any material losses during the financial
year in respect of the guarantees provided for mortgage
facilities granted to the purchasers and lessees of the Group's
properties. The directors consider that in case of default on
payments, the net realisable value of the related properties
can cover the repayment of the outstanding mortgage loans
together with any accrued interest and penalty, and therefore
the fair value of the guarantees is not significant.

41. Operating Lease Arrangements

(a) As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 15) and
properties sold with cooperation and leasing arrangements
with the purchasers under operating lease arrangements
negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 12 years. The terms of
the leases also require the tenants to pay security deposits.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

41.

40. FIAREBE )

(ii)

ETRITETASEBFEHENELRE
HEMEMERNRITEE - AEERZ
ERTEFTREER - REZFERK
Ao WMZEFERREARABRETER -
AEBEREEERNER  EREF
B ARRFRER KA A RIRITEOE
mElE - HR - AKREBRZERBEYE
HAEEERERE - EEXZTOAEMH
REEMETE - EREAHBEETRD
HEEEE R ERER TRITNE
EREAHLE -  ARERE THEERE
EMEMS  BEREBEAEAEEERK
BRERR o

]

N SE) SN SRRz ESEIRN SETEE 3
B R MAE ABRIZIS R & Priz B R %
BEFNEAEE - EZR5 - HWHRER
SIENIER - BRI ER R R FE R A
A ARIEE RIS B B B A A A8 K&
0 ERERATELIFEEATE -

REHEERH

(a) FEREHBEA

AEERBEEEHELHHERRENE
(M1 REBRNEEREERHNE
HEMH - WEFIZ126MEEH - HE
ERTRERP RS -

MREREHR - AEBRIFEEBF I
AR EHEEHER TIIFHE 2 KRR &
EREMHESAFEEMT

Group EE
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET AT
Within one year —FR 380,299 192,169
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_EZERF(BREEEMFEN) 721,201 444,175
After five years AFE 671,594 530,666
1,773,094 1,167,010
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41. Operating Lease Arrangements (Continued) 4. KREHERH @)
(b) As lessee (b) fEAZEFEA
The Group leases certain of its land and buildings, vehicles and AEBUKLHELHEEE T L EE
properties under operating lease arrangements. Leases are B - ABREEYME  UEN—E=+/N\F
negotiated for terms ranging from one to eighteen years. RMEEH -
At the end of each reporting period, the Group and the REREHR - AEB AR GRIERA
Company had total future minimum lease payments under SR ER TR BB 2 R RKIEM
non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: SHERBEMAT
Group Company
rEE PN
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FTET FAT
Within one year —FR 343,479 127,525 2,356 1,382
In the second to fifth years, F_EZFERF
inclusive (BREERMEFEAN) 822,356 509,821 4,622 -
After five years h & 345,050 = - =
Total st 1,510,885 637,346 6,978 1,382
42. COMMITMENTS 42, EiE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note B EXCHisE41 () et AR 2 S AN - IRE
41(b) above, the Group had the following commitments at the end WMEHR - AEEAR THIEE

of each reporting period:

Group REH
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Contracted, but not provided for: EHEVEES T E
Properties under development ERPYIE 5,763,592 3,636,413
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31 March 2014 201443A31H

43. Related Party Transactions
(a) In addition to the transactions disclosed elsewhere in the
financial statements, the Group had the following material

43. BEALRS
(a) BRUBRERZAEBRBORHI - RF
A AEBEEBEEALETT TIEKR

transactions with related parties during the year: RS
Group AEE
2014 2013
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Lz FET FAT
Rental expense and related service fees ¥ AEAITE S 5 MARRAIRTS
for an office property paid to: BRYAT :
A company of which a director of the RNARESHEERRR
Company is a controlling shareholder EOPNGT (i) 1,902 1,828
Rental expenses for certain units of FEZSHOLNEEAS
trade centers paid to: SIFF
Certain directors and a close YEETEEEN—REEN
family member of a director TR B (i) 398 725
Construction project design fee income  T21E B &g A USER :
received from:
A company of which a director of RNARESHEERRR
the Company is a controlling EORNG]
shareholder (iii) 1,121 -
Rental income for certain offices units A AL U AULER
received from:
A company of which a director of RARESEAIERRRD
the Company is a controlling NG|
shareholder (iv) 367 298
Notes: BfsE

()  The Group leased the office property of a company of which a
director of the Company is a controlling shareholder. The rental
and related service fees were based on terms mutually agreed
between both parties.

(i) The Group leased certain units of the trade centers owned by
certain directors and a close family member of a director. The
rental fees were based on terms mutually agreed between the
Group and the related parties.

(i)  During the year, the Group provided construction project design
services to a related party of which a director of the Company is
a controlling shareholder. The design service fee was determined
according to the published prices and conditions offered to the
major customers of the Group.

(ivy  The Group leased office units to a related party of which a
director of the Company is a controlling shareholder. The rental
was based on the rental charge to the other tenants of the
Group.

202 china South City Holdings Limited E &R ER A &

() AEERARAEREEEREERNAE
HARRE - HEREHRERREET %

TEMRETE -

(i) AEEABEIBEER - REENAR
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31 March 2014 201443 H31H

43. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(b)

(9]

(d)

Other transaction with a related party

During the year, China South City Group Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered into an
acquisition agreement with Huang Wenjie, a non-controlling
shareholder of Xi'an China South City Company Limited, to
acquire the non-controlling interests of Xi‘an China South City
Company Limited.

Outstanding balances with related parties
Details of the Group’s amounts due from/to its joint venture
and associates as at the end of each reporting period are
disclosed in notes 20 and 21, respectively.

43. BEATR S )

(b) HAhEER 5
AEREFHEMERARD(—RMEEE
P8 72 ) ) B SCAN 55 A 2T 37 M 8 4 kM
BLEE AR A R IR - Bk
AEZERHARA R —HAIHRBRAR -

(c) EERAE A L ZBEMRE (TSR
AEBRSHREHROEYR BN —RE
BRI E R RFIBF D LM
FF20 M 21155 o

Compensation of key management (d XEEFEEEAEHMH
personnel of the Group
Group EE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHBIT
Short term employee benefits RHESRET 73,856 53,951
Post-employment benefits B M2 A 30 30
Share-based payments LA A E B 23,414 14,504
Total compensation paid to key SHTFEEEEAE
management personnel BEr B 42 RE 97,300 68,485

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8
to the financial statements.

The rental expense and related service fees for the office property
and trade centers paid to the related parties, and the construction
project design fee income and rental income for office property
received from the related parties above also constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

FEMeME—SHBRANHEREN
e

ERBEXIR AR RSP ONEE S RAE
RS ERNEEA LR S R EMEIRTIZER
R A RS ABEOE S WA BEA LS TR
B MR RIE14ARE R M BIER 5 5 ERE
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44.

45.

Financial Instruments by Category

Other than the held for trading investments at fair value through
profit or loss as disclosed in note 27 and the derivative financial
instrument as disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements which
are stated at fair value, all financial assets and liabilities of the
Company and the Group as at 31 March 2014 and 2013 are loans
and receivables and financial liabilities stated at amortised cost,
respectively.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial
Instruments

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial instruments, other than those with carrying
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

Group and Company

44,

45.

ERIAEDE

BB IS RERMI 27 TR R A B BB A A FE
NERZHIEEBRERMEFIAMTEENTES
MTEEAEMEERBERATENIERH
AR FI S FER IS E ALLIN - R2014F &
20135F3A31H ' ARRINASRENAME R E
EMAED B AE KR UGS & IR K AN A
RHEHMEE -

EMIRZAFERAFESRRE
AEBRAAAZEHIAZ REBERATE
(REERATEELBIERINET -

FEBRARQT

Carrying amounts Fair values
BREIE A¥E
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T FHET THETT
Senior notes BrEE 4,056,838 2,853,402 4,157,767 2,991,726

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, trade receivables, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, financial liabilities
included in trade and other payables, amount due from a joint
venture and amounts due from/(to) associates, amounts due from/(to)
subsidiaries approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s management is responsible for determining the
policies and procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The management reports directly to the directors and
the audit committee. At each reporting date, the management
analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation
is reviewed and approved by the directors. The valuation process
and results are discussed with the audit committee twice a year for
interim and annual financial reporting.

China South City Holdings Limited ZEr3H iR G R A 7
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45. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial 45. 2@ T A AFERATLEEREE

Instruments (Continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liguidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used
to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of finance lease
receivables, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-performance
risk in interest-bearing bank and other borrowings as at 31 March
2014 was assessed to be insignificant. The fair value of the liability
portion of the convertible notes is estimated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using an equivalent market interest rate
for a similar convertible note with consideration of the Group’s own
non-performance risk. The fair values of the non-current portion
of finance lease receivables and interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, and the liability portion of the convertible notes are not
materially different from their carrying amounts.

The fair value of senior notes is calculated using the market price on
31 March 2014.

As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, the Group’s financial instruments
which comprised held for trading investments at fair value through
profit or loss were measured at fair value. The fair values of held for
trading investments at fair value through profit or loss are based on
guoted market prices.

The fair value of the derivative financial instrument, which represents
option granted on 23 January 2014 to subscribe for the Company’s
shares by the Investor, is calculated by an external valuer using a
Binomial Model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the option was granted. The following table lists the inputs to
the model:

Share price at the date of grant (HK$)
Exercise price (HK$)

Dividend yield (%)

Expected volatility (%)

Risk-free interest rate (%)

The expected volatility was determined based on the movement
of the share price of the company since listing, which may not
necessarily be the actual outcome. No other feature of the option
granted was incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

(#&)
TREERABNAFHERITEEEE) (BE
BB E RSN 2 R MR BT 52 5 1T SR
TEANSHEAR - ERATIIERBRREAF
EHEITIART -

BB ERUGRIE « 5T ERIT RE M EEIERNE
o2 AFERAEZETEBLUER - EER
% N TRIBR S HRRE ) 2 IR TR R TR BAR SRR & %
SHETIIEAESE - B2014F3A318 » A&
A HFBRITREMER 2 TRAORBRETE
B REKX - IRREE 7 BESHHATFES
BT I5 AR AR SRR A R R AL
BETEARER @ sTE ISR T R 2 RATH =
AR RIS REEITAIR - ghER S EUGK
I8~ FHBIRTT R EME B IERNER S A AT AR R
BraEB NATFEEERABREETAK °

BEEEZ AT ETRE2014F3 831 BT S

MR2014F & 2013F3A31H  AEB 2SR T
EREEBEmNATEYERZIFEAEREN
ANFETE - BBRESAANTETRZIHEER
WE 2 N FETIBEMISRESE

R2014F1 A23RRTREERBARAIRMD 2
BREZITESMTARFE  HE=J7HHED
KA ZRAEAYZEBREETGE - EPE
ZERERRER DR ERRRN o TRIRA
REAMBAE :

R EZRE BT 4.25
TEE(BIT) 3.50
AR 22 (%) 3.63
TEHERR B 14 (%) 48.54
B[R PR 2 (%) 0.36

TAER BN TR B LT AR AR RIRE 2 28
MEE * RVRERER - FFEAFER @ LE
ZBAIR G BE R EA R o

Annual Report 2013/14 3



206

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2014 201443 H31H

45. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial

Instruments (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy
of the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

Group

As at 31 March 2014

EMIAZAVHERAFESHRE
()

DFESER

AREERTIER  RAKEBSRIAY
AFHE

BAYE

pal13

A

A5

R201453H31H

Fair value measurement using
quoted prices in active markets
(Level 1)

ERNERT S 2 RE

AR {ERE

(B18R)

HK$°000

THERT

Held for trading investments at fair value through
profit or loss

BBERARNTETRZ
RIEEBEKRE

29,120

As at 31 March 2013

7201343 A31H

Fair value measurement using
quoted prices in active markets
(Level 1)
EARNERTISZ RE
BATFER =

(FE14%)

HK$'000

FHETT

Held for trading investments at fair value through
profit or loss

FRERARNTETIRZ
RIERERE

117,643

The Company did not have any financial assets measured at fair
value as at 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2014.
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45. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Liabilities measured at fair value:

Group and Company

As at 31 March 2014

EMIAZAVHERAFESHRE
()

DN ESEH )
BRATEEZBE
AEBRAAT

A2014%€3831H

Fair value measurement using
significant observable inputs
(Level 2)
FEREXRTBRERAE
WAFEN &

(%B24%)

HK$'000

FHET

Derivative financial instrument

181,291

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements

between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfer into or out of Level 3
(2013: Nil).

The Group and Company did not have any financial liabilities

measured at fair values as at 31 March 2013.

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:
Group and Company:

As at 31 March 2014

RERN R FEAERFIRREE2RF 2 H
I g it o S A S =34 AI (20134 ¢
&) o

201338318 ' AEERARREUAATE
AENESRAE-

EEEATEZEMAE

REERAQT :

A201453H31H

Fair value measurement using
quoted prices in active markets
(Level 1)

FERARNERN S ZHRE
WAFEE

(B—%)

HK$°000

THET

Rl
ofF
il
5

Senior notes

4,157,767

As at 31 March 2013

7201343 A31H

Fair value measurement using
quoted prices in active markets
(Level 1)
ERRERT 52 RIE

AT ERTE

(B—%)

HK$’000

FHETT

Senior notes BEEE

2,991,726
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46. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies
The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank and
other loans, senior notes, convertible notes, a derivative financial
instrument and cash and short-term deposits. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets such as
trade receivables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign exchange risk and
equity price risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to the
Group's borrowings. The interest rates and terms of repayment of
the Group’s borrowings are disclosed in notes 30, 32 and 34 to
the financial statements. The Group’s policy is to obtain the most
favourable interest rates available for its borrowings.

The Group will constantly assess the interest rate risk it encounters to
decide whether it is required to hedge against the possible interest
rate risk that may arise.

On 31 March 2014, if the interest rate of bank borrowings had
increased/decreased by 0.5% and all other factors remained
unchanged, the profit after tax for the year of the Group would
have decreased/increased by approximately HK$38,868,000 (2013:
HK$29,795,000).
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46. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
Credit risk
The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets, which comprise cash
and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, arises from default
of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments. The Group is also exposed to credit
risk through the granting of financial guarantees, further details of
which are disclosed in note 40(ii) to the financial statements.

To manage the risk, deposits are mainly placed with banks with
high credit quality. The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. For the sales of properties, the Group
has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to buyers with
appropriate financial strength and appropriate percentage of down
payments. The Group would not release the property ownership
certificates to the buyers before the buyers fully settle the payment.
It also has other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews regularly the recoverable amount of each individual trade
receivable to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. With exposure spread over a number
of counterparties and customers, the Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 25 to the
financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of bank loans, senior notes
and convertible notes.
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46. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 46.

Policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted

payments, was as follows:

BEEEEEEERBE®)

REESER ()
AEER B RBEA RS NS R E BRI AR
(RBARKFBEAZOMT :

Group REE
2014
On Within One to Two to Beyond
demand oneyear twoyears fiveyears five years Total
EEXR —FR H-2-F H-EIF LE# #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TET THT TER TER
Amounts due to associates  JETHEL A FIFIE 3,134 - - - - 3,134
Financial liabilities included in & AFERTE 5 Rt
trade and other payables ENFENSRAR - 8,689,605 - - - 8,689,605
Senior notes BERE - 389,025 389,025 5,130,450 - 5,908,500
Convertible notes EEE s - 63,380 63,380 1,381,590 - 1,508,350
Financial quarantees granted ¥ 5 =H#&F ¥
to third parties BIFEHE(R 3,741,002 - - - - 3,741,002
Interest-bearing bank and FEHRITR
other borrowings HifEE - 6,467,445 3,156,099 3,485,952 652,474 13,761,970
Total H=t 3,744,136 15,609,455 3,608,504 9,997,992 652,474 33,612,561
2013
On Within One to Two to Beyond
demand one year two years five years five years Total
JEE3K —FR F-ZE-F F-EHF hFE w5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR TR THET THT THT
Amount due to an associate B —REEE A R FUE 3,141 - - - - 3,141
Financial liabilities included in st AJEFH & 5 M E Ath
trade and other payables ENFENSREE - 4,372,835 - - - 4,372,835
Senior notes EERE - 385,398 385,398 3,503,448 - 4,274,244
Financial guarantees granted ¥/ =H#%F
to third parties B HE(R 1,366,416 = = = = 1,366,416
Interest-bearing bank and TEHRITR
other borrowings HirfeE 84,995 4,778,186 1,936,639 2,482,214 848,952 10,130,986
Total st 1454552 9,536,419 2,322,037 5,985,662 848,952 20,147,622
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46. I EBEEEERBE®)

REESER ()
AR TR AR RSN S RE BRI
(RBARKFBEAZOMT :

46. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)
The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted

payments, was as follows:

Company AAT
2014
On Within One to Two to
demand oneyear twoyears five years Total
FEZR —FR H-ZE=F ZE-ELF s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET THET THET
Due to subsidiaries FEATB B A )78 28,812 - - - 28,812
Financial liabilities included in FHAE MR RRIE -
other payables, accruals and FEFIE B REWIREH
deposits received G =t - 126,073 - - 126,073
Financial guarantees granted H—ZRMBRAKT
to a subsidiary BITSFE(R - 500,000 - - 500,000
Senior notes BEZRE - 389,025 389,025 5,130,450 5,908,500
Total @t 28,812 1,015,098 389,025 5,130,450 6,563,385
2013
On Within One to Two to
demand one year two years five years Total
JEE R —FRN F-—E-F F_FAF et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT
Due to subsidiaries B AR ZIA 35,924 - - - 35,924
Financial liabilities included in STAHEMRENTRIE
other payables, accruals and FEFIE B RE YIRS
deposits received G =t - 72,534 = = 72,534
Financial guarantees granted H—ZRMBRAKT
to a subsidiary ISR - 400,000 - - 400,000
Senior notes BEZE - 385,398 385,398 3,503,448 4,274,244
Total FoE 35,924 857,932 385,398 3,503,448 4,782,702
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46. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 46. BIEEREEEEREE M)

Policies (Continued)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group only conducts business within Mainland China. Except
for interest payables, repayment of foreign currency loans obtained
to finance the Group’s operations and any potential future dividend
its subsidiaries that might be declare of to their shareholders, the
bulk of the Group’s revenue, capital investment and expenses
are denominated in RMB. At the date of approval of the financial
statements, the Group had not experienced any difficulties in
obtaining government approval for its necessary foreign exchange
purchases. During the year, the Group did not issue any financial
instruments for hedging purposes.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s
profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets
and liabilities).

4B R

REBEEPBRAELEER - RENNE A
SEBE LEMTEMEIGNINE B TRAERIAR
HIE DR A ae M IR R B IR EEER R
o REBARHOWA - ERRERFIIAA
REEREBAL - REFSIARER - AREER
BB XABBERINETE - 1eR8B EER
WEE - FA - AREWESE B OMETTER
CRITH -

TRETEMEEMEEEFTENERT - A
SEBRAFNBEREE ARG AREERNATEES
ESHNHRE - ARRANBNES HEEE
BENABOHRFELRESETE -

Group rEE
Increase/
(decrease) in
Changes in profit before tax
RMB rate  BiA1FI @10,
ARHERZE Om4)
% HK$°000
THET

2014 20145
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB RS T A A R 55 5 25,385
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB /BT H A R #E0 3 (15,223)
2013 20134
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB BT AR a5y 5 5,214
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB BT A R EEg 3 (3,128)
Equity price risk PR 18 B B

212

The equity price risk of the Group mainly arises from the changes in
market prices for held for trading investments at fair value through
profit or loss. The book values of this type of financial asset held by
the Group are recognised according to market quotes as at the end
of the reporting period.
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46. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
Equity price risk (Continued)
On 31 March 2014, if the price of listed equity securities held by
the Group had increased/decreased by 10%, and all other factors
remained unchanged and excluding tax items, the book values
of the listed equity securities of the Group would have increased/
decreased by HK$2,912,000 (2013: HK$11,764,000).

Capital management
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it
in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject
to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by the total equity. Net debt includes interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings, senior notes and convertible notes, less cash
and cash equivalents and restricted cash. The gearing ratios as at the
end of the reporting period were as follows:

46. I EREEEEREE ®)

B B B (40

20143 A318 -« WASE A& _EmikiEE
EWMEBREH THK10% - MATAEtmEEY
RETE(TPEERE) - AAEEN ETRES
FHBREE S 0,5 42,912,000/ 70 (2013
£ 111,764,000/ 7T) °

EXEHE
AEEEAEENERZRRER T RANEERS
BRRLBRENL RN  ASHSTEERE
ERERZFARREE -

AE BRI E BN E B K BRI & Er R
@ BEEEANEBIHEELTAE - BfEFk
AREBALERE  AEEM S ARRREIREN
BB - MARERRIEEAREITHR - AEE
BAEEBFEMINAENNERETE - 8 ZE2014
F3A31AK2013F3A31BILFE @ T EFK
BEATEMNBE - BoRsiER -

AEBRBEANBBEL R (ERFRGARRE
BEREARBR - EHFREEBRITRE
ffEE BERBRATBERERRE MASE
EBYEZRHERS - RBESHR - EAEFELE
L

Group INEE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT

Senior notes (note 32) BAEER(HIFE32) 4,056,838 2,853,402
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (note 30) =+8 %817 & HAEE (FizF30) 12,452,395 8,999,995
Convertible notes (note 34) AR HR (M7E34) 1,009,446 =
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash & : I& RIELSE MM

(note 28) SRR 2 (HE28) (12,777,108) (6,777,842)
Net debt ER5 R 4,741,571 5,075,555
Total equity e E e ok 20,144,145 16,042,761
Gearing ratio BAREGEEE 24% 32%
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47. Events After the Reporting Period

48.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

On 18 April 2014, Hefei China South City Company Limited,
a subsidiary of the Company, successfully bid for the land use
right for a parcel of land located in Hefei with a total site area
of 347,000 sg. m. at a total consideration of RMB208.4 million.
(equivalent to approximately HK$259,903,000).

On 9 May 2014, China South International Industrial Materials
City (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, has
completed the issuance of notes with a total principal amount
of RMB1 billion at an interest rate of 7.5% per annum in
the national inter-bank market in the PRC. The notes have a
maturity period of 5 years from 9 May 2014 to 9 May 2019.

The Company has repurchased an aggregate of 31,336,000
shares during the period from 11 April 2014 to 5 May 2014 at
a total consideration of approximately HK$109.6 million.

Approval of the Financial Statements
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 24 June 2014.
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48.

R2014F4 8188 » AR AIMB AR AR
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